
 
 

Ridgway Town Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, May 14, 2025 

 
Pursuant to the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy, 

the meeting will be conducted both in person and via a virtual meeting portal. Members of the 
public may attend in person at the Community Center, located at 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, 

Colorado 81432, or virtually using the meeting information below. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83503515988?pwd=c9m6yI3PhdgFi0XaU7BQybX1hL12EE.1  

Meeting ID: 835 0351 5988 
Passcode: 863131 

Dial by your location 
        +1 346 248 7799 US  
        +1 253 215 8782 US 

 
5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL Councilors Kevin Grambley, Polly Kroger, Michelle Montague, Terry Schuyler, Josey 

Scoville, Mayor Pro Tem Beth Lakin and Mayor John Clark  
 
ADDITIONS & DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT CALENDAR   All matters listed under the consent calendar are 
considered to be routine by the Town Council and enacted by one motion.  The Council has 
received and considered reports and recommendations prior to assigning consent calendar 
designations.  Copies of the reports are on file in the Town Clerk’s Office and are available to the 
public.  There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion is requested, that item 
will be removed from the consent calendar and considered separately. 
 
1.   Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 9, 2025. 
 
2.   Minutes of Workforce and Affordable Housing Committee from April 9, 2025.  
 
3.   Minutes of the Special Meeting on April 29, 2025. 
 
4.   Register of Demands for May 2025. 

 
5.   Renewal of liquor store license for Ridgway Liquors.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   Established time for the public to address the Council regarding any item 
not otherwise listed on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person. 
 
POLICY MATTERS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
6.    Presentation and requested adoption of the Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

- Glenn Boyd, Ouray County Emergency Manager. 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per 
person; discussion of each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
7.    Request to use public streets and rights-of-ways for the Fete D La Musique on June 29th and 

Rally Thru the Alley on October 5th - Ashley King-Grambley, Sherbino/Weehawken.  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83503515988?pwd=c9m6yI3PhdgFi0XaU7BQybX1hL12EE.1


Town Council Agenda 
May 14, 2025 
Page 2 

 
 

8.    Request to close Clinton Street between Cora and Laura, between 2:00 and 9:00 pm on 
August 16th, for the annual Ouray County Pride event - Steven Laster.  

 
9.    Request to permanently fly the Flag of Planet Earth on the Town flagpole in Hartwell Park - 

Hansa Devi.  
 
10.  Proclamation Recognizing and Raising the Flag of Planet Earth - Mayor Clark.  
 
11.  Proclamation Declaring May 2025 as Mental Health Awareness Month - Mayor Clark. 
 
12.  Proclamation Recognizing Public Lands Day - Mayor Clark.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
13.  Application for Restaurant Liquor License at 618 Clinton Street; applicant: Adauto M. Jimenez, 

dba:Tacos and Beer Ridgway - Town Clerk.   
 
POLICY MATTERS   Public comments will be limited to 5 minutes per person; overall discussion of 
each item may be limited to 20 minutes. 
 
14.  Issuance of Revocable Encroachment Permit to Tacos and Beer Ridgway to serve food and 

beverages, including alchoholic beverages, on the sidewalk adjacent to 618 Clinton Street - 
Town Clerk.  

 
15.  Annual presentation from the Ridgway Youth Advisory Council - Town Manager. 
 
16.  Notice of Award for the 2025 Housing Needs Assessment Project - Town Manager.  
 
17.  Consideration of enacting Voluntary Water Restrictions pursuant to the Town’s Water and 

Conservation Management Plan - Town Manager.  
 
18.  Discussion and direction regarding electric vehicle charging stations in Hartwell Park parking 

lot - Town Manager.  
 
19.  Update on annual Town Council Scholarship to a senior at Ridgway Secondary School - 

Mayor Clark. 
 
WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS   Written reports may be provided for informational purposes 
prior to the meeting updating Council on various matters that may or may not warrant discussion 
and action. 
 
20.  Letter from Mayor Clark regarding appointment to the Planning Commission. 
 
21.  Town Manager’s Report. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION The Town Council will enter into a closed session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-
402(4)(b) for the purpose of receiving legal advice regarding the Town of Ridgway’s access to the 
Beaver Creek Diversion and the Ridgway Ditch.  
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   Informational verbal reports from Councilors pertaining to the 
following committees, commissions and organizations: 



Town Council Agenda 
May 14, 2025 
Page 3 

 
 

 
Committees & Commissions: 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor Montague and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilor Kroger 
Ridgway FUSE - Councilor Grambley 
Ridgway Sustainability Advisory Board - Councilor Schuyler; alternate - Mayor Pro Tem 

Lakin 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Mayor Pro Tem Lakin and Mayor Clark 
 

 
Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Mayor Pro Tem Lakin; alternate - Town Manager 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor Montague, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom 

McKenney; alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Sneffels Energy Board - Councilor Schuyler and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Clark 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Town Manager 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Mayor Pro Tem Lakin; alternate - Councilor 
Montague 
Water and Land Committee for the Uncompahgre Valley - Councilor Montague; alternate - 

Town Manager 
Colorado Communities for Climate Action – Mayor Pro Tem Lakin; alternate - Town 
Manager 
Colorado Municipal League Policy Committee - Town Manager 
Home Trust of Ouray County - Town Manager 
 

Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Scoville 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Schuyler 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Deadline for agenda items for next regular meeting, Wednesday, June 4, 2025 at 4:00 p.m., Town 
Clerk’s Office, 201 N. Railroad Street, Ridgway, Colorado. 



 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 
APRIL 9, 2025 

 
 
 
 
OATH OF OFFICE     
 
The Town Clerk administered the oath of office to recently elected Council Members Polly Kroger, 
Beth Lakin and Michelle Montague.  
 
ADJOURN TO MEETING OF THE WORKFORCE AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING COMMITTEE 
 
The Council entered into a meeting as the Ridgway Workforce and Affordable Housing Committee 
at 5:30 p.m. and convened into the regular meeting at 5:50 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was held both in person and via virtual meeting portal Zoom Meeting, pursuant to 
the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy.  
 
The Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:50 p.m.  The Council was present in its entirety with 
Councilors Grambley, Kroger, Lakin, Montague, Scoville, Schuyler and Mayor Clark in 
attendance.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 12, 2025. 
 
2. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 12, 2025.  
 
3. Register of Demands for April 2025. 

 
4. Renew tavern liquor license for Steps Tavern. 

 
5. Renewal of tavern liquor license for Steps Patio.  
 
ACTION: 
 
It was moved by Councilmember Kroger, seconded by Councilor Schuyler and carried on a roll 
call vote with Councilor Montague abstaining to approve the consent agenda. 
 
POLICY MATTERS 
 

Town Manager Neill suggested since the Mayor is connected via a virtual portal, the Council 
consider appointing a temporary Mayor Pro Tem for the meeting in case of loss of internet 
conductivity.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Kroger moved to appoint Beth Lakin Mayor Pro Tem for this meeting.  Councilmember 
Grambley seconded, and the motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 

  



Town Council Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 2 
 

 
 
PUBLIC REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS    
 
6. Update on the Home Trust of Ouray County Parkside Townhomes project 

 
Andrea Sokolowski with the Home Trust of Ouray County reported the Parkside Townhomes 
project will be ready for occupancy on April 15th.  The project was completed with many 
donations, including a number from the Town.  The project was constructed with financing of 
$647,923 and donations and grants totaling $382,301.  The homeowner selection process 
was undertaken in conjunction with Housing Resources to ascertain income and assets; and 
a selection committee reviewed five applications and based on a point system, two families 
were chosen to purchase the units.  The project was set at 120% AMI and below, and the 
home buyers selected were at 105 AMI and below.  Each of the two housing units have 1,582 
square feet of living space with a 276 square foot garage.  She explained “market rate cost” 
is $293.06 a square foot, the “hard costs at market rate” $213.09 per square foot, and the 
Home Trust costs “which we are passing on to the homebuyers” was $177 square foot, “well 
under budget”.   

 
7. Request for closure of South Lena Street to Hyde Street Intersection for 40th Anniversary 

Party of Ridgway Hardware  
 

Stephen Laster requested permission for closure of South Lena Street, after the entrance to 
Mountain Market, to the Hyde Street intersection, on June 14, 2025 from 12:00 p.m. to 4:00 
p.m. to celebrate the 40th Anniversary Party of Ridgway Hardware. 
 
There were questions from the Council. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Montague to approve the request to block South Lena Street, after entrance 
to Mountain Market, to Hyde Street intersection, on June 14, 2025 from 12:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
for the 40th Anniversary Party of Ridgway Hardware. After a second by Councilor Grambley a call 
for a roll vote carried unanimously.    
 
8. Quarterly update from the Ridgway Sustainability Advisory Board 

 
Dave Jones with the Town Sustainability Advisory Board presented the boards first quarterly 
report, and reviewed the goals established for 2025.  These included request adoption of a 
resolution establishing a net-zero goal by 2030; establish a ‘road map’ to net zero; provide 
quarterly updates to the Town Council; draft and recommend idle-free regulations; conduct 
two educational outreach meeting events; work to align out region to an approach for the 
2024 International Energy Conservation adoption; evaluate a goal date for Town construction 
projects to be all electric; work to decrease event waste by encouraging composting and 
recycling; recommend options for incentives and rebates for participation in local composting; 
increase local natural food production and consumption; recommend options for instituting a 
turf replacement program; explore potential wildlife corridors and mitigating speeding on US 
Highway 550 and State Highway 62.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 3 
 

 
POLICY MATTERS 
 
9. Resolution No. 25-06 Reaffirming Ridgway’s Commitment to Climate Action 
 

The Town Manager noted the first 2025 goal for the Sustainability Advisory Board is also 
included in the Town 2025 Strategic Plan, which is to establish a goal for net zero carbon 
emissions by 2030.  He presented a resolution which establishes the goal along with an all 
electric net zero energy use policy for housing projects with financial investments from the 
Town.  
 
There were comments from the Council. 
 
Speaking from the audience Jake Niece suggested the resolution refer to fossil fuel gases, 
or include reference to propane gas.   
 
The Town Attorney stated the document is not an amendment to the building code, but a step 
towards achieving a goal. 
 
There were discussion by the Council.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Kroger moved to approve Resolution No. 25-06 Reaffirming Ridgway’s Commitment to 
Climate Action, Establishing a Goal for Net Zero Carbon Emissions, and Establishing an All 
Electric, Net Zero Energy Use Policy for Housing Projects with Financial Investment from the 
Town of Ridgway, with a change to the language regarding fossil fuel, Councilor Lakin seconded 
and the motion carried on a roll call vote with Councilor Scoville voting no.  
 
10. Letter of support for the Town application to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

Housing Planning Grant Program to support the Housing Needs Assessment Project  

 
Planner Kemp presented a letter of support needed for the housing planning grant application 
being made to the Colorado Department of Local Affairs for a housing needs assessment 
and a housing action plan.  She noted the Town has also received a letter of support from 
Ouray County. The Planner explained there are funds budgeted for the study which can be 
used as the 25% local match if the application is successful.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Lakin moved to approve the letter of support for the Housing Planning Grant Program 
from the Department of Local Affairs.  Councilor Kroger seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
11. Adoption of Ordinance No. 01-2025 Amending Zoning Regulations and Short-Term Rental 

Regulations  

 
Staff Report dated 4-4-25 from the Town Planner presenting proposed code amendments to 
Short Term Rental regulations.  
 
Planner Kemp noted Council introduced the ordinance at the previous meeting, and then 
reviewed proposed revisions to the current provisions.  



Town Council Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 4 
 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Lakin moved to approve Ordinance No. 01-2025 Amending Section 7-4-6 (N) Short 
Term Rental Regulations and Section 8-5 Short Term Rentals of the Ridgway Municipal Code. 
Councilmember Kroger seconded and the motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote.   
 
12.  Adoption of Ordinance No. 02-2025 Amending Chapter 11 of the Ridgway Municipal Code 

Concerning the Sale of Dogs and Cats Born or Raised in Inhumane Commercial Breeding 
Facilities  

 
Manager Neill reported at the September 11,  2024 meeting, after a public presentation, staff 
was directed to prepare an ordinance enacting regulations to ban the sale of dogs and cats 
raised in inhumane commercial breeding facilities.  He noted Council introduced the 
ordinance at the previous meeting.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilmember Schuyler, seconded by Councilor Grambley to adopt on second 
reading, Ordinance No. 02-2025, an Ordinance of the Town of Ridgway Colorado Amending 
Chapter 11 of the Ridgway Municipal Code Concerning the Sale of Dogs and Cats Born or Raised 
in Inhumane Commercial Breeding Facilities.  After a call for the vote the motion carried 
unanimously on a roll call vote.  
  
POLICY MATTERS   (Continued) 

 
13.  Approval to expend budgeted funds and enter into a contract for purchase of two patrol 

vehicles for Marshals Department  
  

Staff Report from Marshal Schmalz requesting authorization to expend budgeted funds for 
purchase of patrol vehicles. 

 
The Marshal reported funds were budgeted to purchase a Ford Power Boost Hybrid Truck 
and an EV Lighting Truck.  The trucks were ordered months ago, and have been outfitted 
and equipped for police use, and are now ready for delivery. 
 
There were comments by the Council.    

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Lakin, seconded by Councilmember Schuyler, the motion to authorize staff 
to expend budgeted funds and enter into a contract with Western Slope Ford for the purchase of 
a fully equipped Ford F150 Power Boost Hybrid Truck and a fully equipped Ford F150 Lighting 
EV Truck for a price not to exceed $171,000 carried unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 
14.  Water Lease Agreement with the Hess Family Trust  
 

The Town Manager presented a lease agreement for use of a water right from Tidwell Ditch 
for ¼ of one cubic foot of water per second, or 0.25 c.f.s.  He explained Joe Hess has 
generously agreed to lease to the Town from a senior water right on the ditch, for the 
remainder of the year.  He noted this is a “huge win for the Town” as the diversion at Beaver 
Creek which is blocking the Town from receiving water, will not be repaired until late in the 
year.  
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 5 
 

The Mayor noted this is a “very generous offer” and Mr. Hess “stepped up to help the Town 
in a very tough time”.  
 

ACTION: 
 
Councilor Schuyler moved to approve the Water Lease Agreement dated April 1, 2025 between 
the Hess Family and the Town of Ridgway.   Councilor Lakin seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously on a roll call vote.   
 
15.  Ridgway Area Trails Group annual bike ride  
 

Staff Report from the Town Clerk dated 4-1-25 presenting requests for the Ridgway Area 
Trails Group. 
 
The Clerk reported the annual Ridgway Area Trails Group event will be held on June 6th and 
7th at MTN Lodge on Palomino Trail.  The bike ride will take place on the 6th and the organizers 
are seeking approval to use the southern end of Palomino Trail to start the ride which will 
travel from there along county roads.  Additionally, this year they wish to use the lot to the 
south side of the Lodge for camping by participants; porta-potties will be staged on the 
property for use by riders and persons wishing to camp.  She noted use of a Town street 
requires Council approval for use of a public right-of-way. 

 
ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Montague, seconded by Councilmember Grambley to approve the request 
from Ridgway Area Trails Group to start the bike ride on Palomino Traill and allow camping on 
private property adjacent to MTN Lodge for use by riders in the event.  The motion carried 
unanimously on a roll call vote.   
 
16.  Special Event Permit Application from Youth Advisory Council for a Pickleball Tournament at 

Ridgway Athletic Park  
 

Staff Report from the Town Manager dated 4-4-25 presenting a request for a Special Event 
Permit from the Ridgway Youth Advisory Council.  

 
 Manager Neill announced the Youth Advisory Council has chosen a pickleball tournament for 

their annual fund raiser, at the Athletic Park on May 31st.  Proceeds from the entry fees will 
be split between the Ridgway Pickleball Club and The Dolphin House Child Advocacy Center.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilmember Kroger moved to approve the Special Event Permit for the Youth Advisory 
Council, and provide authority to staff to approve event details.  Councilor Schuyler seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously on a roll call vote. 
 
17.  Annual appointment of Mayor Pro Tem and review of Council representation on commissions, 

committees and boards  
 

Staff Report from the Town Clerk dated 3-27-25 presenting a list of current Council 
representation on commissions, committees, boards and organizations; and noting the 
annual appointment of a Mayor Pro Tem.  
 
The Mayor asked for nominations for a Mayor Pro Tem to serve until April of 2026.  
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 6 
 

ACTION: 
 
Moved by Councilor Schuyler to nominate Beth Lakin as Mayor Pro Tem, the motion was 
seconded by Councilor Kroger.  The motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 

The Council reviewed the list of representation on boards, committees, commission and 
organizations and decided to make the following changes:  Councilor Montague will serve on 
the Ridgway Planning Commission with the Mayor; Council Montague will serve as 
representative to the Ouray County Joint Planning Board; Mayor Pro Tem Lakin will serve as 
representative on the Ouray County Water Users Association and Councilor Montague as 
the alternate; Councilor Montague will serve as representative on the Water and Land 
Committee for the Uncompahgre Valley.  
 
The new list of representation is as follows: 
 

Committees & Commissions: 
Ridgway Planning Commission - Councilor Montague and Mayor Clark 
Ridgway Parks, Trails & Open Space Committee - Councilor Kroger 
Ridgway FUSE - Councilor Grambley 
Ridgway Sustainability Advisory Board - Councilor Schuyler; alternate - Mayor Pro Tem 

Lakin 
Ridgway Scholarship Committee - Mayor Pro Tem Lakin and Mayor Clark 
 

Board Appointments: 
Ouray County Weed Board - Mayor Pro Tem Lakin; alternate - Town Manager 
Ouray County Joint Planning Board - Councilor Montague, citizens Rod Fitzhugh & Tom 

McKenney; alternate - Councilor Schuyler 
Sneffels Energy Board - Councilor Schuyler and Town Manager; alternate - Mayor Clark 
Region 10 Board - Mayor Clark 
WestCO Dispatch Board - Town Marshal; alternate - Town Manager 
Gunnison Valley Transportation Planning Region - Town Manager 
Ouray County Transit Committee - Town Manager 
Ouray County Water Users Association - Mayor Pro Tem Lakin; alternate - Councilor 
Montague 
Water and Land Committee for the Uncompahgre Valley - Councilor Montague; alternate 

- Town Manager 
Colorado Communities for Climate Action – Mayor Pro Tem Lakin; alternate - Town 
Manager 
Colorado Municipal League Policy Committee - Town Manager 
Home Trust of Ouray County - Town Manager 
 

Liaisons: 
Chamber of Commerce - Councilmember Scoville 
Communities That Care Coalition - Mayor Clark 
Ouray County Fairgrounds - Councilor Schuyler 

 
MISCELLANEOUS REPORTS 

 
The Council received in writing a copy of the 2025 First Quarter Update on Ridgway 
Wetterhorn Deed Restricted Community from Jim Kolnik, with Impact Development Services. 
 
The Town Attorney gave an update on discussions regarding the street access request from 
the Railroad and Ranch History Museums.  
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
April 9, 2025 
Page 7 
 

The Town Manager presented an overview of the monthly written Managers Report. 
 
Councilor Schuyler addressed the Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting.  
 
Councilor Montague presented an update on the Planning Commission.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

MINUTES 
 

WORKFORCE AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING COMMITTEE  
 

APRIL 9, 2025 
 
 
 

The Town Council acting in its capacity as the Workforce and Affordable Housing Committee 

convened for a meeting at 5:30 p.m. in the Ridgway Community Center at 201 N. Railroad Street. 

The meeting was held both in person and via Zoom Meeting, a virtual meeting portal, pursuant to 

the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy.  

In attendance John Clark, Kevin Grambley, Polly Kroger, Beth Lakin, Michelle Montague, Josey 
Scoville and Terry Schuyler.  
 
1.   Consideration of an exception request from Nancy Madsen to add non-permitted capital  

improvements at Ridgway Wetterhorn 
 
Memorandum dated 3-4-25 from Jim Kolnik with Impact Development Services, presenting a 
capital improvement request from Ridgway Wetterhorn property owner Nancy Madsen. 
 
Mr. Kolnik explained Rural Homes sent a mailing soliciting submittal of exception requests for 
non-permitted improvements at Ridgway Wetterhorn.  He explained if approved the improvement 
costs can be added to the sale of the residence, but must be submitted to the Housing Committee 
prior to installation.  He provided a request from Nancy Madsen for costs incurred to install a 
storage shed, fence and vanity cabinet.  Staff reviewed the items and they all met the criteria to 
provide long lasting benefits to the home and future owners., however, he noted, staff is 
recommending denial of the request as the Committee denied a similar request in August because 
it was not submitted prior to installation.  
 
There were questions from the Committee regarding the mailing from Rural Homes requesting 
exemptions after installation of improvements.  Answering a question from the Committee, Mr. 
Kolnik noted “homeowners should have been aware” of the requirement to submit the request 
prior to paying for and installing the upgrades.  There was discussion by the Committee.  
 
ACTION: 
 
Beth Lakin moved to deny the request for capital improvements. Polly Kroger seconded and the 
motion carried with Michelle Montague voting no, and Terry Schuyler abstaining.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Pam Kraft, MMC 
Town Clerk 



 
RIDGWAY TOWN COUNCIL  

 
MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 

 
APRIL 29, 2025 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was held both in person and via virtual meeting portal Zoom Meeting, pursuant to 
the Town’s Electronic Participation Policy. 
 
The Mayor called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the Community Center at 201 N. Railroad 
Street, Ridgway, Colorado.   In attendance Councilors Grambley, Kroger, Montague,  Schuyler, 
Mayor Pro Tem Lakin and Mayor Clark.   Councilor Scoville was absent.  
 
1.     Notice of Award for Beaver Creek Diversion Restoration Project 
 

Staff Report dated 4-25-25 from the Town Manager presenting recommendation for hiring an 
Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) for the Beaver Creek Diversion Restoration Project. 

 
Manager Neill explained staff issued a request for proposals in March for Construction 
Manager at Risk (CMAR) for the Beaver Creek Diversion Restoration Project.  The qualified 
firm will provide pre-construction procurement and construction services and work with the 
Town and RESPEC engineering firm.   CMAR is an alternative project delivery method which 
differs from the traditional design/build method and will provide cost estimates and help to 
inform the design. Four proposals were received, and a six member panel interviewed two 
of the firms. After a thorough reference check process, the interview panel is recommending 
the hiring of Meridian Contracting Inc.   The company has completed numerous civil and 
industrial projects, and have an office on the Western Slope.   
 
Members of the interview panel addressed the interview process. Members of Meridian 
Contracting addressed the companies background.  

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Schuyler moved to issue the Notice of Award for pre-construction services for the 
CMAR for the Beaver Creek Diversion Restoration Project to Meridian Contracting Inc.   Mayor 
Pro Tem Lakin seconded, and the motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 
2.      Notice of Award for Professional Architecture and Engineering Design Services for the  
        Ridgway Athletic Park Baseball Fields and Pickleball Courts 
 

Staff Report from the Town Manager dated 4-25-25 presenting recommendation for hiring 
architectural and engineering design services for the baseball field and pickleball courts at 
the Athletic Park. 
 
The Town Manager explained in March a Request for Proposal was issued and bids opened 
on April 17th for professional architectural and engineering design services for baseball fields 
and pickleball courts in the Athletic Park.   Two proposals were received and evaluated by a 
committee, and the recommendation is to enter into an agreement with DHM Design for 
$124,825.   
 
There were questions and discussion by the Council; and comments by Clark Gilbert with 
the Ridgway Pickleball Club.  
 

 



Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 
April 29, 2025 
Page 2 
 

 
ACTION: 
 
Councilor Schuyler moved with Councilor Kroger seconding to authorize staff to enter into a 
Professional Services Agreement with DHM Design for Professional Architectural and 
Engineering Design Services for the Ridgway Athletic Park Baseball Fields and Pickleball Courts.  
The motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Pam Kraft 
Town Clerk 



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Arielle Bielak Alpine-Operating Account

Comm. Room Coord. - Apr 2025 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -2,175.20

TOTAL -2,175.20

Producers Co-Op Alpine-Operating Account

fertilizer 666GO2 · Landscaping Rights-of-Ways -221.70

TOTAL -221.70

Yulia Avgustinovich Alpine-Operating Account

mural - down payment 778PO1 · Decker Room -12,500.00

TOTAL -12,500.00

Sani Serv LLC Alpine-Operating Account

p.potties - Weaver & Rollins - Apr - May ... 732POO · Supplies & Materials -390.01
p.potties - plant - Apr 2025 932WOO · Supplies & Materials -150.00

TOTAL -540.01

Moderate Cow LLC Alpine-Operating Account

LYVF - band 781POO · Events & Festivals -1,200.00

TOTAL -1,200.00

Brett Neumann Alpine-Operating Account

LYVF - sound 781POO · Events & Festivals -400.00

TOTAL -400.00

Cash Alpine-Operating Account

LYVF - cash box 781POO · Events & Festivals -2,000.00

TOTAL -2,000.00

Caselle Inc Alpine-Operating Account

Jun 2025 914SOO · Consulting & Engineering Servs -171.00
Jun 2025 914WOO · Consulting & Engineering Ser... -171.00

TOTAL -342.00

Montrose Water Factory, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -14.25
732POO · Supplies & Materials -14.25
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -14.25
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -14.25

TOTAL -57.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2025

Page 1



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Southwestern Systems Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

pump & clean lift station @ SMPA 931SOO · Maintenance & Repairs -2,830.57

TOTAL -2,830.57

Community Planning Strategie... Alpine-Operating Account

AH provisions - Apr 2025 513GOO · Planning Consulting -472.50
on call - Apr 2025 513GOO · Planning Consulting -1,082.25

TOTAL -1,554.75

Amie K. Minnick Alpine-Operating Account

refund Minnick - 9/21 - 7/24 403GOO · Sales Tax -1,301.56
refund Minnick - 9/21 - 7/24 405GOO · Sales Tax - capital imprvments -260.37

TOTAL -1,561.93

Western Slope Party Rentals Alpine-Operating Account

LYVF - table rental final pmnt 781POO · Events & Festivals -243.00

TOTAL -243.00

San Miguel Power Assoc, Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

542GOO · Utilities -87.36
595GOO · Electric Vehicle Charge Station -241.88
783PO1 · Broadband Station -298.04
638GO2 · Street & Sidewalk Lighting -386.58
642GO2 · Utilities -107.54
742POO · Utilities -167.32
742PO1 · Utilities - comm cntr/town hall -87.37
842GO3 · Utilities -87.36
942SOO · Utilities -4,426.77
942WOO · Utilities -1,087.17

TOTAL -6,977.39

Axon Enterprise Inc Alpine-Operating Account

tasar batteries & holster mounts 832GO3 · Equipment & Supplies -236.20

TOTAL -236.20

Armor Proseal LLC Alpine-Operating Account

repair Laura St. 637GO2 · Paving & Maintenance -16,200.00

TOTAL -16,200.00

Colorado Communities for Cli... Alpine-Operating Account

CC4CA - annual dues 2025 5040GO1 · Other Contributions -500.00

TOTAL -500.00

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2025

Page 2



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Christopher J Bolane Alpine-Operating Account

reimb - parts for plant 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -69.31

TOTAL -69.31

Scott's Printing & Design Alpine-Operating Account

beanies (30) 781POO · Events & Festivals -804.00

TOTAL -804.00

Clear Networx, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

May 2025 543GOO · Telephone -56.00
May 2025 643GO2 · Telephone -56.00
May 2025 843GO3 · Telephone -61.00
May 2025 943WOO · Telephone -56.00
May 2025 943SOO · Telephone -56.00
May 2025 530GOO · Computer -50.00
May 2025 630GO2 · Computer -50.00
May 2025 730POO · Computer -50.00
May 2025 830GO3 · Computer -50.00
May 2025 930WOO · Computer -50.00
May 2025 930SOO · Computer -50.00
May 2025 843GO3 · Telephone -40.00

TOTAL -625.00

Clear Networx, LLC Alpine-Operating Account

May 2025 778PO1 · Decker Room -100.00

TOTAL -100.00

Core & Main Alpine-Operating Account

1 1/2" meters (6) 988WOO · Taps & Meters -9,100.50

TOTAL -9,100.50

Christopher J Bolane Alpine-Operating Account

plant operations - Apr 2025 914WOO · Consulting & Engineering Ser... -5,100.00
plant operations - Apr 2025 914SOO · Consulting & Engineering Servs -900.00
replace pump - plant 931WOO · Maintenance & Repairs -230.00

TOTAL -6,230.00

Montrose Signs Inc. Alpine-Operating Account

Main St. Conference - decal 532GOO · Creative/Main Street Progam -24.44

TOTAL -24.44

Ferguson Waterworks Alpine-Operating Account

sprinkler rotors & solenoid assy 732POO · Supplies & Materials -1,674.12

TOTAL -1,674.12

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2025

Page 3



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Sunset Automotive Alpine-Operating Account

window switch -  2001 Ford F350 961SOO · Vehicle & Equip Maint & Repair -485.98

TOTAL -485.98

Impact Promotional Products Alpine-Operating Account

LYVF - glasses 781POO · Events & Festivals -598.08

TOTAL -598.08

Federal Express Alpine-Operating Account

990WOO · Testing - water -140.06

TOTAL -140.06

Black Hills Energy-Town Hall Alpine-Operating Account

3/24/25 - 4/22/25 742PO1 · Utilities - comm cntr/town hall -46.58
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 842GO3 · Utilities -46.58
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 542GOO · Utilities -46.59

TOTAL -139.75

Black Hills Energy-PW Office Alpine-Operating Account

3/24/25 - 4/22/25 642GO2 · Utilities -21.64
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 942SOO · Utilities -21.64
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 942WOO · Utilities -21.65

TOTAL -64.93

Black Hills Energy-PW Building Alpine-Operating Account

3/24/25 - 4/22/25 742POO · Utilities -38.83
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 642GO2 · Utilities -38.83
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 942SOO · Utilities -38.83
3/24/25 - 4/22/25 942WOO · Utilities -38.83

TOTAL -155.32

Black Hills Energy-Lift Station Alpine-Operating Account

3/24/25 - 4/22/25 942SOO · Utilities -25.45

TOTAL -25.45

Black Hills Energy-Hartwell Park Alpine-Operating Account

3/24/25 - 4/22/25 742POO · Utilities -37.92

TOTAL -37.92

Black Hills Energy-Broadband Alpine-Operating Account

3/24/25 - 4/22/25 783PO1 · Broadband Station -16.26

TOTAL -16.26

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2025

Page 4



Name Memo Account Paid Amount

Kim's Housekeeping LLC Alpine-Operating Account

Apr 2025 779POO · Janitorial Service - parks -1,410.00
Apr 2025 779PO1 · Janitorial Services-c c/t hall -465.00
Apr 2025 545GOO · Janitorial Services -465.00
Apr 2025 778PO1 · Decker Room -270.00

TOTAL -2,610.00

True Value Alpine-Operating Account

632GO2 · Supplies & Materials -204.36
732POO · Supplies & Materials -222.50
732PO1 · Supplies - c center/town hall -33.08
932SOO · Supplies & Materials -391.51
932WOO · Supplies & Materials -191.21

TOTAL -1,042.66

CEBT Alpine-Operating Account

Jun 2025 902SOO · Health Insurance -1,679.00
Jun 2025 902WOO · Health Insurance -2,397.00
Jun 2025 602GO2 · Health Insurance -469.50
Jun 2025 502GOO · Health Insurance -8,102.48
Jun 2025 802GO3 · Health Insurance -5,114.00
Jun 2025 702POO · Health Insurance -1,408.50
Jun 2025 526GOO · Life Insurance (all) -122.92
PRDD - Jun - DeFrancesco 66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expen... -980.00
PRDD - Jun - Duncan 66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expen... -48.00
PRDD - Jun - Neill 66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expen... -1,412.00
PRDD - Jun - Patton 66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expen... -943.00
PRDD - Jun - Schmalz 66000 · Payroll Expenses (Payroll expen... -41.00

TOTAL -22,717.40

Town of Ridgway
Register of Demands

May 2025

Page 5



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6 
 



R. Glenn Boyd 
Ouray County Emergency Manager 
Office: 970-325-7273 ext. 1 | Cell: 970-318-9603 
Email: gboyd@ourayco.gov | Fax: 970-325-0225 
421 6th Ave; PO Box C, Ouray Co 81427 

TO:   Ridgway Town Council 
CC:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 

Shane Schmalz, Marshal 
FROM:   Glenn Boyd, Ouray County Emergency Manager 
DATE:   May 14, 2025 
SUBJECT:  Recommendation for Adoption of the Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection  

Plan (CWPP) 

Mayor and Council Members, 

I am writing to respectfully recommend adoption of the 2025 Ouray County Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan (CWPP) by the Town of Ridgway. 

This plan was developed with the support of JEO Consulting Group, in collaboration with Ouray 
County, the City of Ouray, local fire protection districts, the West Region Wildfire Council, and state 
and federal land management agencies. Ridgway staff and representatives were active participants 
in the planning process. The CWPP adheres to the standards of the Healthy Forests Restoration 
Act (2003) and the Colorado State Forest Service Minimum Standards (2022) for CWPP 
development. 

Why Adoption Is Critical for the Town of Ridgway: 

• Ridgway faces real wildfire risk. The Town is located in the Wildland-Urban Interface (WUI) 
and is identified as a high-priority community within the plan. Increasingly dry conditions, 
encroaching vegetation, and complex topography all contribute to the wildfire threat. 

• It unlocks access to mitigation funding. Formal adoption enhances eligibility for federal 
and state grants supporting fuel treatments, fire-adapted community initiatives, and 
infrastructure protection projects. 

• It reflects community concerns. In the CWPP’s public survey, 70% of respondents 
believed a major wildfire is likely within the next five years, and 77% reported high concern 
about its potential impact on their homes, lives, or values. 

• It identifies local mitigation projects. The CWPP includes project recommendations 
specifically for Ridgway and the surrounding area, including source water protection 
actions, evacuation planning enhancements, and defensible space initiatives. 

• It supports regional coordination. The CWPP ensures Ridgway’s wildfire mitigation 
priorities align with Ouray County, the City of Ouray, and regional partners, promoting 
unified planning and response. 

• It demonstrates forward-thinking leadership. Adoption positions Ridgway as a proactive 
community committed to protecting its residents, economy, and environment in the face of 
growing wildfire risks. 



R. Glenn Boyd 
Ouray County Emergency Manager 
Office: 970-325-7273 ext. 1 | Cell: 970-318-9603 
Email: gboyd@ourayco.gov | Fax: 970-325-0225 
421 6th Ave; PO Box C, Ouray Co 81427 

This CWPP is not a response plan—it is a strategic roadmap for long-term mitigation and resilience. 
I strongly encourage the Council to adopt the plan as presented and demonstrate continued 
leadership in wildfire preparedness and public safety. 

Please feel free to reach out with any questions or to request a formal presentation to the Council. 

Respectfully, 
Glenn Boyd 

 



Prepared By:

Ouray County 
Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan

2025



Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 i 

CWPP Certification 
 

 
The Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan was developed in accordance with the 
guidelines set forth by the Healthy Forests Restoration Act (2003) and the Colorado State Forest 
Service’s Minimum Standards for Developing Community Wildfire Protection Plans (2022). 
 

• This plan was collaboratively developed through planning meetings with representatives 
from the fire protection districts, Ouray County, federal agencies, state agencies, 
communities, and other organizations invited to participate 
 

• This plan identifies and prioritizes areas for vegetation-fuels reduction treatments to 
reduce the wildfire threat to human welfare and economic values at risk in the county. 
 

• This plan recommends measures to reduce the ignitability of structures and loss of life. 
 

• This plan provides recommendations on ways to improve wildfire response capabilities for 
the fire protection districts. 

 
The following entities mutually agree with the contents of the Ouray County Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan: 
 
 
 
 

 

  



ii Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

 

  



Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 iii 

Table of Contents 
 

 
CWPP Certification ....................................................................................................................... i 

Table of Contents ....................................................................................................................... iii 

Figures ........................................................................................................................................ v 

Tables ........................................................................................................................................ vi 

List of Acronyms ......................................................................................................................... vi 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................... 1 

The Need & Purpose .............................................................................................................. 1 

CWPP Goals .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Wildfire Risk Assessment ....................................................................................................... 1 

Action Plan ............................................................................................................................. 3 

1| Living with Wildfire ................................................................................................................. 6 

The Need ............................................................................................................................... 6 

The Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 6 

CWPP Goals .......................................................................................................................... 6 

County Overview .................................................................................................................... 7 

Planning Process Summary ..................................................................................................15 

CWPP StoryMap ...................................................................................................................19 

2| Wildfire Preparedness ...........................................................................................................20 

Planning Preparedness .........................................................................................................20 

Wildland-Urban Interface .......................................................................................................22 

Potential Operational Delineations .........................................................................................26 

Fire District Capabilities .........................................................................................................26 

Evacuation Preparedness......................................................................................................34 

3| Wildfire Risk Assessment ......................................................................................................37 

Wildfire History ......................................................................................................................37 

Wildfire Risk ..........................................................................................................................40 

Fire Intensity ..........................................................................................................................43 

Burn Probability .....................................................................................................................45 

Potential Control Location Suitability .....................................................................................47 

Watershed Risk .....................................................................................................................49 

Values to Protect ...................................................................................................................56 

4| Action Plan ............................................................................................................................59 

Fire-Resilient Landscapes Actions .........................................................................................59 



iv Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Fire-Adapted Communities Actions ........................................................................................66 

Safe and Effective Wildfire Response Actions .......................................................................69 

Project Funding .....................................................................................................................70 

Implementation & Updates ....................................................................................................70 

Appendix A: Public Survey Summary 
Appendix B: Fuel Treatment History 
  



Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 v 

Figures 
 

 
Figure 1: Combined Wildfire Risk Map ....................................................................................... 2 
Figure 2: Shorter-Term Fuel Treatment Locations ...................................................................... 3 
Figure 3: Longer-Term Fuel Treatment Locations ....................................................................... 4 
Figure 4: Social Vulnerability Overview ...................................................................................... 8 
Figure 5: Overall Social Vulnerability .......................................................................................... 9 
Figure 6: Social Economic (Left) & Household Vulnerability (Right)...........................................10 
Figure 7: Racial and Ethnic Minority (Left) & Housing Type/Transportation Vulnerability (Right) 10 
Figure 8: Land Ownership ......................................................................................................... 11 
Figure 9: Average Monthly Precipitation ....................................................................................12 
Figure 10: Monthly Climate Normals Temperature (°F) ..............................................................12 
Figure 11: Colorado Average Temperature (1895-2020) ............................................................13 
Figure 12: Existing Vegetation ...................................................................................................14 
Figure 13: Measures Taken to Protect Home or Property ..........................................................18 
Figure 14: Ouray County Hazards Survey Postcard ..................................................................18 
Figure 15: WUI & WUI Priority Areas .........................................................................................23 
Figure 16: Home Ignition Zones ................................................................................................24 
Figure 17: WRWC Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments - Ouray County........................................25 
Figure 18: POD Boundaries ......................................................................................................27 
Figure 19: Fire Districts in Ouray County ...................................................................................28 
Figure 20: Evacuation Zones and Routes .................................................................................35 
Figure 21: Wildfire Occurrence by Year in Ouray County ..........................................................37 
Figure 22: Wildfire History, 1992-2020 ......................................................................................38 
Figure 23: Cow Creek Fire ........................................................................................................39 
Figure 24: Simms Incident.........................................................................................................40 
Figure 25: Combined Wildfire Risk ............................................................................................42 
Figure 26: Fire Intensity Example ..............................................................................................43 
Figure 27: Fire Intensity ............................................................................................................44 
Figure 28: Burn Probability Table - Ouray County .....................................................................45 
Figure 29: Burn Probability ........................................................................................................46 
Figure 30: Wildfire Control Point ...............................................................................................47 
Figure 31: Potential Control Location Suitability ........................................................................48 
Figure 32: Watershed Debris Flow Probability ...........................................................................50 
Figure 33: Watershed Sedimentation Risk ................................................................................51 
Figure 34: Watershed Hydrologic Change Risk .........................................................................52 
Figure 35: Wildfire River Pollution .............................................................................................53 
Figure 36: Combined Watershed Risk .......................................................................................54 
Figure 37: Forest to Faucets - Drinking Water Importance ........................................................55 
Figure 38: Values to Protect Ranking ........................................................................................56 
Figure 39: Ouray County Courthouse ........................................................................................57 
Figure 40: Highly Ranked Values to Protect ..............................................................................58 
Figure 41: Shorter-Term Fuel Treatment Projects ......................................................................60 
Figure 42: Longer-Term Fuel Treatment Project Locations ........................................................62 
Figure 43: WRWC Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments - Ouray County........................................68 

  



vi Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Tables 
 

 
Table 1: Population in Ouray County (1970-2022) ...................................................................... 7 
Table 2: CWPP Communities ....................................................................................................15 
Table 3: CWPP Development Process ......................................................................................16 
Table 4: High-Risk Evacuation Areas ........................................................................................36 
Table 5: Example Combined Risk Scores ..................................................................................41 
Table 6: CWPP Communities & Risk Rating ..............................................................................41 
Table 7: Fuel Treatment Projects Summary ...............................................................................65 

 

List of Acronyms 
 

 
BLM – Bureau of Land Management 
CDC – Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
CSFS – Colorado State Forest Service 
CWPP – Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
FPD – Fire Protection District 
GPM – Gallons Per Minute 
PCL – Potential Control Location Suitability 
PODs – Potential Operational Delineations 
PPE – Personal Protection Equipment 
SWPP – Source Water Protection Plan 
USFS – U.S. Forest Service 
WRAP – Wildfire Ready Action Plan 
WRWC – West Region Wildfire Council 
WUI – Wildland-Urban Interface 
 
 



 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 1 

Executive Summary 
 

 

The Need & Purpose 
Wildfires are an escalating threat across the U.S., especially in Colorado, putting lives, homes, 
critical infrastructure, tourism, recreation, and natural environments at risk. Driven by climate 
change and prolonged drought, these fires are becoming more frequent and intense, leaving 
communities increasingly exposed. Decades of well-meaning fire suppression and pests have 
disrupted natural fire cycles and allowed dangerous fuel buildup, compounding the danger. In 
Ouray County, it’s no longer a question of if a large wildfire will occur but when. When a large 
wildfire does occur, the county and residents need to be prepared by hardening their homes, 
creating defensible space, preparing for evacuation, and supporting fuel reduction projects. 
 
The Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) is a proactive blueprint for 
reducing wildfire risk and strengthening community preparedness. Created with broad 
collaboration, the CWPP can help secure critical fuel reduction and mitigation funding. It defines 
the wildland-urban interface (WUI), prioritizes high-risk areas for treatment, and outlines concrete 
actions the county and other stakeholders can take to reduce wildfire risks. 
 
The CWPP Stakeholder Group led the planning process and development of the CWPP. This 
group consisted of representatives from Ouray County, Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray, fire 
protection districts, power companies, Colorado State Forest Service (CSFS), U.S. Forest Service 
(USFS), Bureau of Land Management (BLM), and West Region Wildfire Council (WRWC). 
 

CWPP Goals 
Goals are a critical component of a CWPP. They help to guide the planning process and ensure 
that the actions identified meet the needs of the residents and visitors of the county. Below are 
the three goals for the Ouray County CWPP. 
 
Goal 1: Fire-Resilient Landscapes 
Develop and maintain landscapes across the county that are resilient to wildfire, mitigate 
undesirable fire outcomes, and protect highly valued resources and assets. 
 
Goal 2: Fire-Adapted Communities 
Empower the county and its residents to “live with wildfire,” including being prepared to withstand, 
respond to, and recover from wildfires. 
 
Goal 3: Safe and Effective Wildfire Response 
Enable safe and efficient wildfire response through improved planning, coordination, and capacity 
building. 
 

Wildfire Risk Assessment 
The image below shows the wildfire risk map created during the CWPP process. The CWPP 
Stakeholder Group felt that none of the created risk maps accurately reflected wildfire risk in the 
county. A new wildfire risk map was created using the inputs of fire intensity, burn probability, 
potential control location suitability, and overall watershed risk. Additional information about the 
map and risk assessment can be found in the plan's 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment section. 
 



Executive Summary 

2 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 1: Combined Wildfire Risk Map 

 
 

  



 Executive Summary 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 3 

Action Plan 
The two maps below show the shorter-term fuel treatment locations and the longer-term fuel 
treatment project locations. The shorter-term projects have already started the planning process 
or are underway. The longer-term projects are areas where the CWPP Planning Team identified 
that projects should take place in the future. These projects have not started the planning process. 
Additional project information can be found in the 4 | Action Plan section. 
 

Figure 2: Shorter-Term Fuel Treatment Locations 

 



Executive Summary 

4 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 3: Longer-Term Fuel Treatment Locations 

 
 



 Executive Summary 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 5 

Fuel treatments are not the only type of project that can be implemented to reduce wildfire risk. 
Other wildfire mitigation actions identified by the CWPP Stakeholder Group can be broken down 
into three categories: Watershed Actions, Fire-Adapted Communities Actions, and Safe & 
Effective Wildfire Response Actions. Watershed actions are those projects that can help reduce 
wildfire risk to drinking water and natural waterways. The fire-adapted community actions are 
projects that empower residents to withstand, respond to, and recover from wildfires. Safe and 
effective wildfire response actions are those projects that support first responders through 
planning, coordination, and capacity building. Specific actions related to each of the categories 
can be found below. 
 
While these actions will help mitigate the impacts of wildfire, homeowners and residents must 
also do their part to protect themselves and their property. All individuals in the county need to 
have an evacuation plan in place. All property owners should also take steps to harden their 
homes and have defensible space. 
 

Watershed Actions 
• Implement Projects Identified in the Dallas Creek Water Company Source Water 

Protection Plan 
 

• Implement Actions Identified in the Town of Ridgway Source Water Protection Plan 
 

• Develop a Source Water Protection Plan for the City of Ouray 
 

• Develop Wildfire Ready Action Plans 
 

• Wet Meadows Improvement / Creation 
 

Fire-Adapted Communities Actions 
• Joint Task Force on Wildfire Education 

 

• Wildfire Code Updates and Enforcement 
 

• Neighborhood-Level Evacuation Planning 
 

• Protect County Structures and Infrastructure 
 

• Insurance Company Collaboration 
 

• Subdivision Wildfire Requirements 
 

• Conduct Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments 
 

• Promote the West Region Wildfire Council’s Wildfire Ready Home Program 
 

• City of Ouray Forest Management Program 
 

Safe & Effective Wildfire Response Actions 
• Water Source Improvements 

 

• Emergency Response Radio and Emergency Alert Training 
 

• Affordable Housing for Fire District and Governmental Personnel 



 

6 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

1| Living with Wildfire 
 

 

The Need 
Every year, destructive wildfires sweep across areas of the United States and Colorado, even as 
more people choose to settle where wildfires pose a real threat. These fires endanger lives and 
properties, disrupt ecosystems, damage vital infrastructure, and impair air and water quality. 
Furthermore, climate change and prolonged droughts are intensifying the frequency and severity 
of wildfires, making communities increasingly vulnerable. Without proper planning, recovery 
efforts become more expensive, and the long-term environmental and social consequences 
worsen. 
 

From the early 1900s until the 1960s, rangeland and forest management in the western United 
States has adhered to a simple strategy: “Prevent Wildfires.” Initially, this approach was meant to 
safeguard human settlements, forest, and rangeland resources. However, decades of fire 
suppression have led to unintended adverse effects. Many natural ecosystems rely on wildfires 
to maintain healthy growth and trigger reproduction. Overgrown forests, excessive shrub growth, 
and invasive species like cheatgrass have reached hazardous levels without regular fire cycles. 
 
For fire and forest management agencies at both county and state levels, it’s no longer a matter 
of whether a wildfire will occur but when and what impact it will have. Identifying the areas most 
at risk and where fires could have the most significant consequences allows for implementing 
targeted mitigation measures before disaster strikes. As Ouray County continues to grow, 
developing a CWPP and completing the identified actions becomes essential for ensuring that 
residents can live safely alongside the risk of wildfire. 
 

The Purpose 
The Ouray County CWPP is a strategic plan identifying specific wildland fire risks facing 
communities and fire districts within Ouray County, Colorado. It provides prioritized mitigation 
projects and activities designed to reduce those risks. The CWPP brings together diverse local 
interests to discuss their mutual concerns for public safety, community sustainability, and natural 
resources. The plan provides prioritized access to state and federal grant funding to support 
identified vegetation-fuel management projects and other mitigation activities to reduce wildfire 
risks throughout the county. It also allows the county to establish a localized definition and 
boundary for the WUI. The planning area for the CWPP is the entire county. 
 
Effective wildfire mitigation is an evolving process as forests and communities continually change. 
The CWPP implementation process is designed with built-in flexibility to adapt to this shifting 
landscape. Regular updates and annual plan reviews capture these changes and document 
progress. This CWPP is not a wildfire response plan, which focuses on the immediate actions 
taken during a wildfire event to protect life and property. While both are essential to wildfire 
resilience, this CWPP emphasizes long-term risk reduction. 
 

CWPP Goals 
Goals are a critical component of a CWPP, providing clear direction and focus for the plan and 
the planning process. By clearly outlining what the county strives to accomplish, these goals 
ensure that all efforts align with local priorities, resources, and capabilities. The Ouray County 
CWPP goals are detailed below, with corresponding actions outlined in the Action Plan section of 
this document. 



 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 7 

Goal 1: Fire-Resilient Landscapes 
Develop and maintain landscapes across the county that are resilient to wildfire, mitigate 
undesirable fire outcomes, and protect highly valued resources and assets. 
 
Goal 2: Fire-Adapted Communities 
Empower the county and its residents to “live with wildfire,” including being prepared to withstand, 
respond to, and recover from wildfires. 
 
Goal 3: Safe and Effective Wildfire Response 
Enable safe and efficient wildfire response through improved planning, coordination, and capacity 
building. 
 

County Overview 
Ouray County, Colorado, has a striking and diverse landscape, earning it the nickname 
"Switzerland of America." The county is dominated by the rugged San Juan Mountains, which 
feature dramatic peaks, deep canyons, and alpine meadows. Elevations range from 6,257 feet in 
the lower valleys to 14,150 feet at the highest summits. Steep, forested mountains, jagged 
ridgelines, and cascading waterfalls characterize the southern part of the county. The northern 
region transitions into the fertile Uncompahgre River Valley and rolling foothills, eventually giving 
way to mesa lands. The area is rich in natural beauty, with towering rock formations, lush aspen 
and pine forests, and pristine high-altitude lakes. The Uncompahgre River flows northwesterly 
through the center part of the county and feeds into the Ridgway Reservoir.  
 
Major transportation routes include U.S. Highway 550, which travels north-south through the 
center part of the county, and State Highway 62, which travels west-southwest from the Town of 
Ridgway. There are no rail lines or public airports in the county. 
 
Population 
There are two incorporated communities, the City of Ouray and the Town of Ridgway. The City of 
Ouray is in the southern portion, and the Town of Ridgway is in the county's central portion. 
According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Ouray County has an estimated population of 4,936 in 
2022. Population growth has been significant, with a 24% growth from 2000 to 2022. Population 
in the unincorporated areas of Ouray County has been increasing, but at a slightly slower pace 
than the two communities. Homes and individuals in unincorporated areas may be at higher risk 
of wildfire due to additional nearby vegetation. 
 
Table 1: Population in Ouray County (1970-2022) 

Jurisdiction 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2022* 

City of Ouray 741 684 644 813 1,000 898 1,007 

Town of Ridgway 262 369 423 713 924 1,183 1,093 

Unincorporated 
Areas of Ouray 
County 

543 872 1,228 2,216 2,512 2,793 2,836 

Total 1,546 1,925 2,295 3,742 4,436 4,874 4,936 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau 1, 2 

*ACS Estimate 

 

 
1 U.S. Census Bureau. “2022 Census Bureau American Community Survey: S0101: Age and Sex.” 
https://data.census.gov/. 
2 “2020 Census Bureau Decennial Census: P1: Race.” https://data.census.gov/. 

https://data.census.gov/
https://data.census.gov/


1| Living with Wildfire 

8 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Social Vulnerability 
Social vulnerability is crucial in wildfire risk analysis because it helps identify populations 
struggling to prepare for, respond to, and recover from wildfires. Social vulnerability encompasses 
demographic and socioeconomic factors that put populations at greater risk when facing hazards 
and other stressors.3 Specific social vulnerability factors for wildfire include the following. 
 

1. Evacuation Challenges – Older populations, people with disabilities, and those without 
reliable transportation may have difficulty evacuating quickly during a wildfire. 
 

2. Access to Resources – Some populations may lack the financial resources to implement 
fire-resistant home improvements or purchase insurance. 
 

3. Health and Safety Risks – Those with pre-existing respiratory conditions can be 
disproportionately impacted by smoke exposure and air quality issues. 
 

4. Recovery Disparities – Wealthier communities typically recover more quickly after a 
wildfire, while socially vulnerable groups may face prolonged displacement, job loss, and 
difficulty securing assistance. 

 
By being aware of where socially vulnerable populations are, decision-makers can prioritize 
resources, enhance emergency planning, and develop equitable strategies to protect at-risk 
populations. The diagram below shows variables that make up the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention’s (CDC) Social Vulnerability Index. 
 
Figure 4: Social Vulnerability Overview 

 
Source: CDC 4 

 

 
3 CDC. 2022. “Social vulnerability Index.” https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html. 
4 CDC. 2022. “Social vulnerability Index.” https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html. 

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html
https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html


 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 9 

The figures below show Ouray County’s overall socially vulnerable population information and the 
four social vulnerability factors. Overall, the eastern and southern portions of the county have 
higher overall social vulnerability. When looking at the four main areas, the eastern and southern 
portions have high vulnerability in the Social Economic, and Housing Type/Transportation areas. 
Additional evacuation planning and economic support might be necessary in those areas of the 
county. 
 

Figure 5: Overall Social Vulnerability 

 
Source: CDC 5 

 

 
5 CDC. 2022. “Social vulnerability Index.” https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html. 

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html


1| Living with Wildfire 

10 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 6: Social Economic (Left) & Household Vulnerability (Right) 

 
Source: CDC 6 

 
Figure 7: Racial and Ethnic Minority (Left) & Housing Type/Transportation Vulnerability (Right) 

 
Source: CDC 7 

 
Land Ownership 
Ouray County shares borders with Montrose County to the north and northwest, San Miguel 
County to the west, San Juan County to the south, Hinsdale County to the southeast, and 
Gunnison County to the northeast. There is a substantial amount of federally owned land in the 
county. Notably, the Uncompahgre National Forest covers large portions of southern, 
northwestern, and northeastern Ouray and is owned by the USFS. The state and BLM own land 
in the north-central portion of the county. Figure 8 shows the land ownership in and surrounding 

 
6 CDC. 2022. “Social vulnerability Index.” https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html. 
7 CDC. 2022. “Social vulnerability Index.” https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html. 

https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html
https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/place-health/php/svi/index.html


 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 11 

the county. Adjacent landowners include the USFS, BLM, State of Colorado, and private 
landowners. 
 

Figure 8: Land Ownership 

 



1| Living with Wildfire 

12 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Climate 
Ouray County has low humidity with annual precipitation and temperature that varies widely due 
to high peaks and low valleys. Rainfall in the county can be as much as 40 inches in the high-
elevation areas to as little as 13 inches in the Ridgway area. Afternoon thunderstorms are 
common in summer, and lightning causes many wildfires. Precipitation is highest in March, July, 
August, and September (Figure 9). The temperature in Ouray County ranges from an average 
high of 79°F in summer to an average low of 15°F in the winter (Figure 10). 
 

Figure 9: Average Monthly Precipitation 

 
Source: NOAA, 1991-20208 

 
Figure 10: Monthly Climate Normals Temperature (°F) 

 
Source: NOAA, 1991-20209 

 
  

 
8 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Centers for Environmental Information. 

November 2024. "Data Tools: 1991-2020 Normals". https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/us-
climate-normals/. 

9 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Centers for Environmental Information. November 2024. "Data Tools: 
1991-2020 Normals". https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/us-climate-normals/. 

1.89
1.71

2.38
2.15

1.77

0.91

2.41 2.42 2.39
2.12

1.92

1.56

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

In
c
h

e
s

34.4 36.5

44.5

52.2

63.4

73.7
79.1

75

68.9

57.4

44.2

34.9

24.7
27.5

34.5

41.5

51.2

60.1

65.9
63.1

56.8

45.6

34

25.2

15
18.5

24.6

30.8

39

46.5

52.7 51.2

44.7

33.8

23.7

15.5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Normal Max Temp Normal Avg Temp Normal Min Temp

https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/us-climate-normals/
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/us-climate-normals/
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/us-climate-normals/


 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 13 

Drought creates ideal conditions for wildfire to start, spread, and become more destructive. 
Droughts can lead to increased dry vegetation, winds, and water shortages. Historically, drought 
has occurred in the county in 25% of months.10 Climate change is anticipated to increase the 
likelihood, intensity, and duration of drought events, leading to increased wildfire risks. 
 
Since 1895, Colorado’s average temperature has increased by 2.1°F. While overall temperature 
shifts have not been consistent, the trend for rising temperatures is apparent. Climate modeling 
suggests warmer temperatures will continue in the coming decades and increase steadily into the 
mid-century. Additionally, the length of the frost-free season has increased nationally since the 
1980s. These changes in temperature, water availability, pest pressures, and tree mortality may 
exacerbate wildfire event conditions. 
 

Figure 11: Colorado Average Temperature (1895-2020) 

 
Source: National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administrat ion, 2020 11 

 
Vegetation 
Ouray County is approximately 44% forested, with many remaining vegetation types dominated 
by pinyon/juniper, oak shrubland, shrubland, grasslands, and agriculture. The forested areas are 
primarily spruce-fir (15.6%), hardwood (12.9%), ponderosa pine (8.4%), and mixed conifer 
(5.4%).12 Figure 12 shows the existing vegetation for the county. Spruce-fir dominates the 
southern portions of the county, while a mixture of pinyon-juniper, shrubland, and conifer can be 
found in the northern portions. 
 
The impacts of insects on the health of trees in Ouray County have been an ongoing concern. In 
2023, the Western Balsam Bark Beetle, Western Spruce Budworm, Spruce Beetle, Douglas-Fir 
Beetle, Fir Engraver, Ips Pinon, and Pine Bark Beetle were all detected in the county.13 These 
insects can leave stands of dead trees that may increase fuel for wildfires throughout the county. 

 
10 National Centers for Environmental Information. 1895-Oct 2024. “County Time Series”. 
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/county/time-series/CO-
037/pdsi/all/9/1895-2023?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000. 
11 National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, 2020. “Climate at a Glance: Statewide Time Series”. 
Accessed May 2023. https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/statewide/time-
series/5/tavg/12/12/1895-
2020?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000&trend=true&trend_base=100&begtrendye
ar=1895&endtrendyear=2020  
12 Colorado State Forest Service. 2022. “2022 Colorado Wildfire Risk Assessment Summary Report.” 
13 Colorado State Forest Service. 2023. “2023 Report on the Health of Colorado’s Forests”. 

https://csfs.colostate.edu/forest-management/forest-health-report-2023/insects-and-diseases/. 

https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/county/time-series/CO-037/pdsi/all/9/1895-2023?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/county/time-series/CO-037/pdsi/all/9/1895-2023?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/statewide/time-series/5/tavg/12/12/1895-2020?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000&trend=true&trend_base=100&begtrendyear=1895&endtrendyear=2020
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/statewide/time-series/5/tavg/12/12/1895-2020?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000&trend=true&trend_base=100&begtrendyear=1895&endtrendyear=2020
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/statewide/time-series/5/tavg/12/12/1895-2020?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000&trend=true&trend_base=100&begtrendyear=1895&endtrendyear=2020
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/monitoring/climate-at-a-glance/statewide/time-series/5/tavg/12/12/1895-2020?base_prd=true&begbaseyear=1901&endbaseyear=2000&trend=true&trend_base=100&begtrendyear=1895&endtrendyear=2020
https://csfs.colostate.edu/forest-management/forest-health-report-2023/insects-and-diseases/


1| Living with Wildfire 

14 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 12: Existing Vegetation 

 
 
  



 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 15 

CWPP Communities in Ouray County 
The table below lists the communities identified in this CWPP. These CWPP communities include 
incorporated communities (towns and cities), neighborhoods, and homeowner’s associations. 
Later in the document (Table 6), each CWPP community will be listed along with the fire protection 
district that provides coverage to the community and a risk rating based on the combined wildfire 
risk map. 
 
Table 2: CWPP Communities 

Community Name 
City of Ouray 

Town of Ridgway 

Colona 

Cornerstone 

Dallas Meadows 

Dave Wood South 

Elk Meadows 

Horsefly Tracts 

Idlewild 

Juniper Hills 

Lake Lenore/Panoramic Heights 

Log Hill Village / Fairway Pines 

Mineral Farms 

North Log Hill Mesa 

Park Estates 

Piedmont Hills / Vista Heights 

Pleasant Valley 

Ponderosa Village / Indian Springs 

Silverado Estates 

Vista Terrace 

Whispering Pines 

 

Planning Process Summary 
The Ouray County CWPP planning process involved several steps and included input from 
various governments, organizations, and individuals. This CWPP is tailored to follow the 
standardized steps (Table 3) for developing a CWPP as outlined in Preparing a Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan: A Handbook for Wildland-Urban Interface Communities14 and the CSFS 
Minimum Standards for Community Wildfire Protection Plans.15 
 
  

 
14 Communities Committee et al. March 2004. “Preparing a Community Wildfire Protection Plan: A 
Handbook for Wildland-Urban Interface Communities.” 
https://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/documents/resources/communities/cwpphandbook.pdf. 
15 Colorado State Forest Service. 2022. “Minimum Standards for Developing Community Wildfire Protection 
Plans.” https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/2022-CSFS_CWPP_Min_Standards.pdf. 

https://www.forestsandrangelands.gov/documents/resources/communities/cwpphandbook.pdf
https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/2022-CSFS_CWPP_Min_Standards.pdf


1| Living with Wildfire 

16 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Table 3: CWPP Development Process 

Step Task Explanation 

One Convene Decision Makers 
Form an operating group of representatives from local 
governments, fire authorities, and CSFS. 

Two Involve Federal Agencies 
Engage local representatives of the BLM, USFS, and 
other land management agencies as appropriate. 

Three Engage Interested Parties 
Contact and encourage participation from a broad range 
of interested organizations and stakeholders. 

Four Establish a Base Map 
Develop a county base map to understand better 
communities, critical infrastructure, and forest/open 
space at risk. 

Five Develop a Risk Assessment 

Develop a risk assessment that considers fuel hazards, 
community and commercial infrastructure, resources, 
and preparedness capability. Rate the level of risk and 
incorporate it into the base map as appropriate. 

Six 
Establish Priorities and 

Recommendations 

Use the risk assessment and base map to facilitate a 
collaborative public discussion that prioritizes fuel 
treatments and non-fuel mitigation practices to reduce 
fire risk and structural ignitability. 

Seven 
Develop an Action Plan and 

Assessment Strategy 
Develop a detailed implementation strategy and a 
monitoring plan to ensure long-term success. 

Eight Finalize the CWPP 
Finalize the county CWPP and communicate the results 
to interested parties and stakeholders. 

Source: Communit ies Committee et al . ,  2004  

 
CWPP Stakeholder Group 
The initial step in developing the CWPP was identifying a CWPP Stakeholder Group as the 
decision-making committee. The CWPP Stakeholder Group consisted of representatives from 
Ouray County, Town of Ridgway, City of Ouray, fire protection districts, power companies, 
Colorado State Forest Service (CSFS), U.S. Forest Service (USFS), Bureau of Land Management 
(BLM), West Region Wildfire Council (WRWC), and others. Members of the CWPP Stakeholder 
Group collaborated with residents and other stakeholder groups to help develop the plan, provide 
input on wildfire risk tools, and identify fuel reduction projects and other wildfire mitigation actions. 
 
CWPP Meetings 
As part of the planning process, four public CWPP meetings were held to discuss various key 
steps and pieces of the plan. Participants in the CWPP Stakeholder Group were directly invited 
through email to each meeting. These meetings were also open to the public, and meeting 
advertisements were made on the county’s social media pages, county website, and the Ouray 
Plaindealer. Below are summaries for each of the CWPP meetings. 
 
1st CWPP Meeting – August 19, 2024 
The first CWPP meeting aimed to introduce the project, outline what a CWPP entails, discuss the 
benefits of developing a CWPP, and begin initial discussions on the wildfire risk assessment. A 
total of 32 individuals joined the meeting either in person or virtually. 
  



 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 17 

2nd CWPP Meeting – October 28, 2024 
During the second CWPP meeting, the 29 CWPP 
Stakeholder Group attendees participated in an 
activity to rank values to protect from wildfire, further 
discuss wildfire risk maps, and started to define the 
wildland-urban interface. 
 
3rd CWPP Meeting – December 16, 2024 
A total of 28 individuals attended the 3rd CWPP 
meeting. Attendees included members of the CWPP 
Stakeholder Group and residents in Ouray County. 
During the meeting, results of the public survey were 
shared, risk maps and wildland-urban interface 
definitions were finalized, and wildfire mitigation 
project examples were shared. 
 
4th CWPP Meeting – February 18, 2025 
The 4th CWPP meeting primarily identified fuel 
projects and discussed other wildfire mitigation 
actions. The 30 attendees participated in a fuel 
projects identification activity where each person 
could vote on locations in the county where they 
would like fuel reduction projects to occur. The group 
then discussed other non-fuel treatment actions and 
reviewed the final combined wildfire risk map. 
 
Public Survey 
A public survey was developed with the ongoing 
Hazard Mitigation Plan update to engage the public 

further and gather more local input on wildfire risks and concerns in the county. Postcards with 
QR Code links to the survey (Figure 14) were created and sent to every address in the county. 
Gunnison County also shared social media posts with links to the public survey. Hard copy 
versions were available at the Ouray County Courthouse and Land Use Office. There were 266 
total responses to the public survey. 
 
Of those who completed the survey, 77% said they had the highest or second highest level of 
concern that wildfire will impact them or the values they care about. Additionally, 70% felt that 
Ouray County would have a major wildfire in the next five years. Only 13% of respondents 
answered that they had not taken any measures to protect their homes from wildfire. Of those 
who had taken measures, 77% cleared litter, debris, and other combustible materials from around 
their property, and 45% used fire-resistant materials on their homes. The most commonly 
identified barriers to wildfire mitigation work on private property included cost, time, and 
knowledge of what to do. Cost and time can be challenging to overcome; however, public 
education can help address the “knowledge of what to do” barrier. A complete summary report of 
the survey responses can be found in Appendix A: Public Survey Summary. 
 



1| Living with Wildfire 

18 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 13: Measures Taken to Protect Home or Property 

 
 

Figure 14: Ouray County Hazards Survey Postcard 

 

17

34

38

68

72

120

206

0 50 100 150 200

Other

None of the above

Installed sprinkler system

Contacted West Regional Wildfire Council
about opportunities for fire mitigation funding

Installed fire resistant landscaping

Built or retrofitted structure(s) with fire
resistant materials

Cleared litter/debris/vegetation/combustible
materials from around your property



 1| Living with Wildfire 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 19 

CWPP StoryMap 
To further connect the public with the CWPP and to provide additional public education, an online 
StoryMap was created. The online StoryMap includes an overview of the CWPP planning process, 
wildfire risk assessment, identified fuel treatment projects, identified mitigation actions, and steps 
that homeowners can take to protect their property. This StoryMap will continue to be updated by 
Ouray County as fuel treatment projects are completed and new information is gathered. 
 
The online StoryMap can be viewed here: https://arcg.is/0OuHzv0. 
 

 
 

https://arcg.is/0OuHzv0


 

20 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

2| Wildfire Preparedness 
 

 
Preparing for wildfires is crucial to reducing risk and ensuring safety before a fire starts. In Ouray 
County, diverse land ownership and jurisdictional boundaries necessitate strong interagency 
coordination, planning, and collaboration for effective wildfire management. This cooperation is 
essential for fire suppression and prevention, preparedness, mitigation, and financial 
sustainability. This section will highlight key local planning documents and wildfire-related 
programs, examine the wildfire-urban interface, explore potential operational delineations, and 
provide an overview of local fire district capabilities. 
 

Planning Preparedness 
Wildfire planning is a crucial process that helps communities, land managers, and emergency 
responders prepare for, mitigate, and respond to wildfire threats. The plans and programs below 
relate to wildfire mitigation, response, and recovery within Ouray County. 
 
Existing CWPPs 
The previous Ouray County CWPP was completed and approved in 2011. The Ouray County 
CWPP is a valuable resource that provides the foundation for understanding wildfire risk and 
presents attainable milestones designed to reduce potential losses from wildfire. Communities, 
home-owner associations, and individual fire protection districts can take further action by 
developing their area-specific CWPP, which would tier the countywide CWPP. The following area-
specific CWPPs can be found in Ouray County. 
 

• 4 Neighborhood CWPP (2007) 

• Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District (2012) 
 
Firewise USA 
The National Fire Protection Association administers the Firewise USA recognition program and 
provides a framework for neighborhoods and communities to increase ignition resistance of 
homes and reduce wildfire risks locally. Firewise participants in Ouray County include Log Hill 
Mesa and the Fisher Canyon South.16  
 
Ouray County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
The Ouray County Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies the natural and human-caused hazards that 
threaten the county and communities, the likely impacts, and the identified mitigation actions to 
reduce the effects of those hazards. The plan is being updated and is anticipated to be approved 
in the summer of 2025. Wildfire is directly discussed in the plan, and this CWPP’s risk assessment 
has been integrated into it. Several wildland fire mitigation actions were identified in the plan and 
added to this CWPP as applicable. Once approved, the hazard mitigation plan will be found here: 
https://ouraycountyco.gov/272/Emergency-Management. 
 
Ouray County Master Plan 
The master plan is designed to guide the future actions and growth of the county. Wildfire is 
directly discussed in the plan, and a specific wildfire strategy is identified. The plan calls for the 
county to “continue to maintain strong wildfire mitigation regulations and encourage fire protection 

 
16 National Fire Protection Association. March 2025. “Firewise USA Sites.” https://www.nfpa.org/education-
and-research/wildfire/firewise-usa#firewise-usa-sites. 

https://static.colostate.edu/client-files/csfs/documents/4Neighborhood_cwpp.pdf
https://static.colostate.edu/client-files/csfs/pdfs/LogHillMesaFPD-CWPP.pdf
https://ouraycountyco.gov/272/Emergency-Management
https://www.nfpa.org/education-and-research/wildfire/firewise-usa#firewise-usa-sites
https://www.nfpa.org/education-and-research/wildfire/firewise-usa#firewise-usa-sites


 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 21 

and water supply entities to work proactively to make further improvements for fire safety, 
including the possible creation of a unified fire protection district or entity that covers the entire 
county.” Also discussed in the plan are natural environment, land use, emergency management, 
and infrastructure strategies. Strategies related to emergency management include supporting 
hazard mitigation and evacuation plans, integrating mitigation strategies into the Land Use Code, 
limiting development in areas where emergency services cannot be provided, and enhancing 
emergency services in Ouray County. To view the 2025 Ouray County Master Plan, visit: 
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/21045/OC-2025-Master-Plan-Final-
021225?bidId=. 
 
Ouray County Multi-jurisdictional Emergency Operations Plan 
The 2024 Ouray County Emergency Operation Plan outlines general guidelines on how the 
county manages operations related to the five phases of emergency management. It outlines the 
day-to-day management of incidents along with major emergencies and disasters. The plan 
covers emergency management operations, assignment of roles and responsibilities, emergency 
support functions, direction, control, and coordination, information collection and dissemination, 
communications, administration, finance, and logistics. During an emergency wildfire event, the 
emergency operations plan would help to guide the response approach. A copy of the plan can 
be found here: https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20837/Ouray-County-
Multijurisdictional-Emergency-Operations-Plan-EOP-1. 
 
Ouray County Multi-jurisdictional Evacuation Plan 
Ouray County completed its evacuation plan in 2024. Additional information about the plan can 
be found in the Evacuation Preparedness discussion later in this section. 
 
Ouray County Wildfire Annual Operating Plan 
The Ouray County Wildfire Annual Operating Plan establishes standard operating procedures and 
responsibilities to implement cooperative wildfire protection on all lands within the county. It 
contains information about interagency cooperation, preparedness, operations, state of 
emergency fire fund, and interagency fire resource use and reimbursement. During a wildfire 
event, the operating plan will help with interagency coordination. To view the plan, visit 
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/18208/Ouray-County-Wildfire-Operating-Plan. 
 
San Miguel and Ouray County Regional Climate Action Plan 
Ouray County partnered with neighboring San Miguel County to create the 2021 San Miguel and 
Ouray County Regional Climate Action Plan. This climate action plan is a regional roadmap for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and creating a sustainable, thriving future. The plan 
establishes a timeline for high-priority, ongoing, mid- and long-term actions. While there are no 
specific wildfire actions, the overall goal will help to reduce the likelihood and impacts of wildfire. 
A copy of the plan can be found here:  
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/52a753f8e4b049b53e3f219b/t/6171bd130ecd9d0e3e2f9c
5a/1634843945688/EAP_Regional+Cap.FINAL.pdf. 
 
State of Colorado Wildfire Resiliency Code 
As of April 2025, the Colorado Wildfire Resiliency Code Board is creating a statewide wildfire 
resiliency code. Once approved and adopted, all counties and communities must comply with this 
code. However, local wildfire regulations can exceed the state code requirements. For details on 
the code, visit https://dfpc.colorado.gov/WRCB. 
 
  

https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/21045/OC-2025-Master-Plan-Final-021225?bidId=
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/21045/OC-2025-Master-Plan-Final-021225?bidId=
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20837/Ouray-County-Multijurisdictional-Emergency-Operations-Plan-EOP-1
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20837/Ouray-County-Multijurisdictional-Emergency-Operations-Plan-EOP-1
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/18208/Ouray-County-Wildfire-Operating-Plan
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/52a753f8e4b049b53e3f219b/t/6171bd130ecd9d0e3e2f9c5a/1634843945688/EAP_Regional+Cap.FINAL.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/52a753f8e4b049b53e3f219b/t/6171bd130ecd9d0e3e2f9c5a/1634843945688/EAP_Regional+Cap.FINAL.pdf
https://dfpc.colorado.gov/WRCB


2| Wildfire Preparedness 

22 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Wildfire Mitigation Regulations – Land Use Code Section 16 
Ouray County’s 2022 wildfire regulations apply to all newly constructed or improved dwelling units 
in the county. It requires that dwelling units meet standards for roofing, siding, a five-foot hardened 
zone, exterior doors, gutters, and emergency vehicle access. Wildfire mitigation requirements for 
planned unit developments are also included. The regulations do not apply to vacant land or 
commercial structures. A copy of the wildfire mitigation regulations can be found here: 
https://ouraycountyco.gov/391/Wildfire-Mitigation-Regulations---Sectio. The county also has a 
design manual for building wildfire-resilient homes that can be used in conjunction with the 
Wildfire Mitigation Regulations: https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/16898/2024-
02-01-Building-for-Wildfire-Resiliency?bidId=. 
 

Wildland-Urban Interface 
There are many definitions of the Wildland-Urban Interface (WUI). Most identify it as any area 
where improvements are built close to, or within, natural terrain and flammable vegetation and 
where potential for wildland fire exists. It was decided through many discussions at the CWPP 
meetings that the entire county would be identified as the WUI. The CWPP Stakeholder Group 
felt that the whole county should be identified due to potential impacts on recreation and 
vegetation, which are valued resources in the county. 
 
While the entire county would be identified as the WUI, the CWPP Stakeholder Group felt it 
important to identify priority areas. These areas were defined as any location within a half mile of 
power lines, buildings, emergency response and governmental services, communication towers, 
highways, and water infrastructure. These would be the WUI priority areas where wildfire 
mitigation on private property would be focused. Figure 15 shows the WUI map for the Ouray 
County CWPP. 
 
Wildfire mitigation on private property in WUI priority areas is essential because these are high-
risk areas where property, infrastructure, and people come into direct contact with wildland 
vegetation. Without proper mitigation, wildfires in the WUI priority areas can spread rapidly, 
endangering lives, overwhelming emergency responders, and causing devastating economic 
losses. Strategies such as defensible space creation and reducing structural ignitability can 
significantly lower the risk of fire spreading to homes and critical infrastructure. 
 
Defensible Space 
The purpose of defensible space is to reduce the fuel near the home and provide a space for 
firefighters to protect the house. For a structure to survive a wildfire, radiated heat and fire intensity 
must be kept to a minimum. Defensible space is accomplished by a combination of clearing and 
thinning trees and other vegetation around the proposed or existing structures and along the 
driveway. Defensible space requirements are designed to minimize the impact on the property 
while providing safety for the structures, the inhabitants, and the firefighters. 
 
During a large wildfire, there typically aren’t enough firefighters and fire engines to get to and 
protect every home. Defensible space gives homes a much better chance of surviving a wildfire. 
Defensible space slows fire spread, creates buffer zones, and reduces ember ignitions. 
 
The Home Ignition Zone Guide developed by CSFS provides guidelines for creating a defensible 
space. To develop the most effective defensible space plan possible, the property is evaluated 
and divided into 3 Zones (Figure 16). 
 

https://ouraycountyco.gov/391/Wildfire-Mitigation-Regulations---Sectio
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/16898/2024-02-01-Building-for-Wildfire-Resiliency?bidId=
https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/16898/2024-02-01-Building-for-Wildfire-Resiliency?bidId=


 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 23 

Figure 15: WUI & WUI Priority Areas 

 
 
  



2| Wildfire Preparedness 

24 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 16: Home Ignition Zones 

 
Source: CSFS 17 

 
Zone 1 is the area nearest the home (0-5 feet). This zone requires the most vigilance to 
reduce or eliminate ember ignition and direct flame contact with your home. Use 
nonflammable, hard surface materials in this zone, such as rock, gravel, sand, cement, 
bare earth, or stone/concrete pavers. 

 
Zone 2 is the area transitioning away from the home where fuels should be reduced (5-
30 feet). This zone is designed to minimize a fire’s intensity and ability to spread while 
significantly reducing the likelihood that a structure ignites because of radiant heat. 

 
Zone 3 is the area farthest from the home (30-100 feet). It extends 100 feet from the home 
on relatively flat ground. Efforts in this zone are focused on keeping the fire on the ground 
and getting a fire that may be active in tree crowns to move to the ground where it will be 
less intense. 

 
One of the significant issues confronting defensible space is the need for ongoing maintenance. 
Treatment projects in timber or shrub fuels have an effective life span of approximately 10 to 15 
years before vegetation regeneration once again creates hazardous fuel loads. 
 
Structural Ignitability 
There are several characteristics of homes that make them more vulnerable to wildfires. These 
common characteristics are listed below.18 
 

• Horizontal or nearly horizontal surfaces, such as wood decks 

• Wooden or plastic fences 

• Wood or shake-shingle roofs 

• Roofs with eaves 

• Combustible building materials 

• Single-paned windows 

• Vents with gaps that exceed 1/8 of an inch 

 
17 Colorado State Forest Service. 2021. “The Home Ignition Zone”. https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-
content/uploads/2021/04/2021_CSFS_HIZGuide_Web.pdf. 
18 Colorado State Forest Service. 2021. “The Home Ignition Zone”. https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-
content/uploads/2021/04/2021_CSFS_HIZGuide_Web.pdf. 

https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/2021_CSFS_HIZGuide_Web.pdf
https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/2021_CSFS_HIZGuide_Web.pdf
https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/2021_CSFS_HIZGuide_Web.pdf
https://csfs.colostate.edu/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/2021_CSFS_HIZGuide_Web.pdf


 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 25 

• Fuels such as tall grass, woodchips, trees, or shrubs within five feet of a home or under 
decks 

• Pine needles or leaves in gutters 

• Firewood or propane tanks within 30 feet of the home 
 
Using fire-safe building materials such as a Class A fire-resistant roof and reducing vegetative 
fuels surrounding homes are key to reducing structure ignitability. However, completely 
fireproofing structures can be prohibitively expensive. Conversely, trying to provide a defensible 
space large enough for a typical, combustible structure may not be practical because firebrands 
are known to be carried by winds over a mile away from a fire. Combining these two strategies 
may be the best alternative for a particular site. 
 
Research has demonstrated that homes with a Class A-rated roof and a defensible space have 
an 85% chance of surviving a wildfire. The Class A-rated roof protects the home from firebrands 
that may blow onto the roof from a nearby wildfire. The house's structural integrity can be 
improved using fire-resistant siding and other building materials. Wooden decking should be 
avoided because it can be a significant source of home ignition, much like wood roofing material. 
Regular maintenance is also needed to reduce leaves, needles, and other fuels on or near the 
home. Improving the fire-resistant characteristics of a structure goes hand-in-hand with 
developing defensible space. Extensive recommendations can be found in CSFS publications 
available at https://csfs.colostate.edu/wildfire-mitigation/protect-your-home-property-from-
wildfire/. 
 
West Region Wildfire Council Programs 
The WRWC has two programs to help homeowners with defensible space and structural 
ignitability. The first is the Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments. WRWC conducts curbside 
assessments of properties and gives an assessment rating based on criteria from the Wildfire 
Research Center. These ratings have been undertaken on many homes in Ouray County (Figure 
17). 
 

Figure 17: WRWC Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments - Ouray County 

 
Source: West Region Wildf ire Counci l  

https://csfs.colostate.edu/wildfire-mitigation/protect-your-home-property-from-wildfire/
https://csfs.colostate.edu/wildfire-mitigation/protect-your-home-property-from-wildfire/
https://www.cowildfire.org/rapid-risk-assessment


2| Wildfire Preparedness 

26 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

The other program is the Wildfire Ready Home Program. Homeowners can sign up for and learn 
practical steps to reduce risks around their homes. During the program, homeowners work with a 
Wildfire Ready Home Assessor who will provide a detailed Wildfire Ready Home Report that 
contains specific and targeted recommendations. 
 

Potential Operational Delineations 
Potential Operational Delineations (PODs) are planning units that can be used for fire containment 
during wildfire or prescribed fire.19 They symbolize the safest and most effective lines to prevent 
fires from spreading. PODs can be natural (ridges, fuel type transitions, etc.) or human-made 
(roads, fuel breaks, etc.). Ouray County has recently identified the POD boundary lines on non-
USFS lands in the county (Figure 18). PODs had already been developed on USFS lands. These 
POD boundaries can be instrumental in identifying fuel treatment projects because of the strategic 
framework they provide. They can help predict fire behavior and identify areas where fuel 
treatments will most effectively slow or stop wildfire movement. Fuel treatments along POD lines 
can help create safer evacuation routes and provide a common framework for interagency 
coordination. 
 

Fire District Capabilities 
Four fire protection districts operate in Ouray County: Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District, 
Montrose Fire Protection District, Ouray Fire District, and Ridgway Fire District. Only a tiny portion 
of the Montrose Fire Protection District falls within Ouray County, and the rest of the districts are 
located in the county. Figure 19 shows the locations of the fire districts. In addition to the fire 
protection districts, the Horsefly Volunteer Fire Protection Association is a donation-based, all-
volunteer association that provides wildfire fire response and emergency services to properties 
along Government Springs Road, Wildcat Canyon Road, Mariposa Drive, and the Cornerstone 
subdivision in northwestern Ouray County and southern Montrose County. There have been 
discussions about combining all fire districts into one unified fire district that covers the entire 
county. However, nothing has been decided as of this CWPP. 
 
Authority for wildland fire suppression on non-federal land rests with the local fire protection 
districts or the County Sheriff for any areas outside fire protection district boundaries. Federal 
jurisdictional agencies (USFS, BLM) are responsible for wildfire protection on federal land. The 
Colorado Division of Fire Prevention and Control does not have jurisdiction over any lands until 
authority and responsibility are transferred by mutual consent from the County Sheriff. If multiple 
agencies are engaged in a fire on or near common boundaries, agency representatives will 
convene to decide on the best fire strategy and delegate an Incident Commander. Mutual aid 
agreements among the agencies guide the initial wildfire attack and support during an incident. 
Wildfire protection within the county cannot be accomplished by solely one authority because of 
the complexity of land ownership. Cooperation and coordination are key to effective wildfire and 
fuels management, which is coordinated through the Ouray County Wildfire Annual Operating 
Plan. 
 
The following information describes the updated capabilities assessment results sent to all fire 
chiefs. The capabilities discussed include training, personal protective equipment (PPE), 
communications, equipment, and water supply. 
 

 
19 U.S. Forest Service. January 13, 2022. “PODs at a Glance.” 
https://research.fs.usda.gov/rmrs/understory/pods-glance.  

https://www.cowildfire.org/wildfire-ready-home
https://research.fs.usda.gov/rmrs/understory/pods-glance


 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 27 

Figure 18: POD Boundaries 

 
 

  



2| Wildfire Preparedness 

28 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 19: Fire Districts in Ouray County 

 
 
  



 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 29 

Horsefly Volunteer Fire Protection Association 
 

 
 
Training 
The Horsefly Volunteer Fire Protection Association has done a commendable job in wildland fire 
training for a donation-based, all-volunteer fire association. All firefighters must take the entry-
level wildland fire course S-130/190; a few have also taken S-131 Firefighter Type 1. Other 
wildland courses are sought and offered as available. All firefighters must take the annual fire 
refresher (RT-130) to retain wildland firefighter status and be allowed on fires. The work capacity 
test is not required. Department trainings occur twice monthly during fire season, typically May 
through September, and sometimes include a live-fire exercise for one of the trainings each year. 
The association has a dedicated training officer who coordinates training with the fire chief. 
 
Personal Protective Equipment 
Most PPE is provided to firefighters, including Nomex pants and shirts, fire packs, helmets, 
gloves, and new-generation fire shelters. Boots are not provided at this time.   
 
Communications 
The association has ten 800 MHz pack sets, four 800 MHz mobile radios as of the summer of 
2025, and existing VHF handheld and vehicle radios. The association is seeking additional radio 
infrastructure. 
 
  



2| Wildfire Preparedness 

30 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Equipment 
The Horsefly Volunteer Fire Protection Association has two Type 3 engines and three Type 6 
brush trucks at the Mariposa Road station. Additionally, some volunteers have personal brush 
trucks and water trailers staged around the hill.    
 
Water Supply 
The availability and location of water resources are limited throughout most fire association areas. 
The association fills tanks from fill stations along Government Springs Road and within the 
Cornerstone development. The association has a 5,000-gallon cistern at the firehouse. Many 
other areas serviced by the association lack available water supplies. Some homes have cisterns 
and seasonal ponds in certain areas, but they require time and effort to draft water from them. 
Shuttle trips can be set up to bring water back to the fire area; however, that takes additional time, 
personnel, and equipment. 
 

Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District 
 
The Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District has completed several wildfire mitigation projects since 
2011. A summary is listed in Appendix B: Fuel Treatment History in Ouray County. 
 

 
 
Training 
Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District members go through a relatively rigorous training program 
for a volunteer fire department. All firefighters must take the entry-level wildland fire course S-
130/190 within two years of joining. Other wildland courses are also offered to department 
members, including those taught at the statewide fire academies and the Colorado Firecamp. All 
firefighters must take one of two fitness tests offered each year, including the standardized Work 
Capacity Test. Department trainings occur bimonthly on the first Wednesday and second Saturday 
of each month and include a wildfire component during the typical fire season months. An in-
house sawyer class is also offered annually to all department members. 
 
Personal Protective Equipment 
All PPE is provided to firefighters. PPE includes Nomex pants and shirts, fire packs, boots, and a 
new-generation fire shelter. 
 



 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 31 

Communications 
All firefighters are equipped with portable VHF radios compatible with federal and state agencies. 
The chief and assistant chief also have portable 800 MHz radios. All fire apparatus is equipped 
with mobile VHF radios, and select vehicles also have mobile 800 MHz radios.  
 
Equipment 
The Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District has several wildland fire trucks. At the Log Hill Village 
station (Station 2), the district has one 750-gallon Type 3 engine with a 750-gpm pump; one 350-
gallon Type 6 brush truck with a 150-gpm pump; one 3,000-gallon tender with a 500-gpm pump 
and a 3,000-gallon dump-tank; and one utility vehicle (UTV) with a 50-gallon tank and a 50-gpm 
pump. Additionally, at the North Log Hill station (station 1), the district has one Type 3 engine with 
750 gallons of storage and a 750-gpm pump; one Type 6 brush truck with 350 gallons of storage 
and a 150-gpm pump; one 3,000-gallon tender with a 500-gpm pump and a 3,000-gallon dump-
tank; and one UTV with a 50-gallon tank and a 50-gpm pump. 
 
Water Supply 
The availability and location of water resources are an issue in some parts of the district. While 
adequate fire hydrants are within most of the Log Hill Village/Fairway Pines community, many 
other areas serviced by the FPD lack sufficient water supplies. Scattered hydrants and cisterns 
are available in these areas but may not be reliable or known by all fire personnel. See the 
individual community/planning area write-ups for details on water supply within the 
community/planning area.  
 

Montrose Fire Protection District 
 

 
 



2| Wildfire Preparedness 

32 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Training 
The Montrose Fire Protection District (FPD) is composed of 47 members. All FPD members have 
taken the S-130/190 introductory wildland fire course. Additional wildland fire courses are also 
offered by the Montrose FPD and are paid for by the department. A regular training program is 
conducted on duty for FPD members. Furthermore, the Montrose FPD members take the work 
capacity test and fire refresher annually.   
 
Personal Protective Equipment 
Montrose FPD provides Nomex pants and shirts, wildland boots, helmets, fireline packs, and new-
generation shelters.   
 
Communications 
The department uses VHF and 800 MHz radios, with 21 mobile and 55 handheld units. All trucks 
are equipped with radios in their apparatus.  
 
Equipment 
The Montrose FPD has three Type 6 engines, one 500-gallon Type 3 engine, three 1,000-gallon 
Type 1 engines, one 750-gallon Type 1 engine, and one 3,000-gallon tender.  
 
Water Supply 
Water availability varies within the area; however, a minimum of 500 gallons per minute (GPM) is 
available in areas with newer subdivisions. Both hydrants and ponds are present and serve as 
water sources within the region. Flow rates for hydrants are not tested annually. However, flow 
rates vary from 100-500 GPM and depend on the hydrant location. 
 

Ouray Fire District 
 

 
Source: Geryl l  Zehr  



 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 33 

Training 
Though not required, firefighters of the Ouray Fire District are encouraged to take the entry-level 
wildland fire course S-130/190. However, the district attempts to have five department members 
current in this fire course. Additional wildland fire courses are also offered and paid for but not 
required. The work capacity qualification assessment is also offered should members choose to 
take it, but it is not required. The district has a scheduled training program, which occurs bi-weekly 
and includes a wildland component in the spring and summer months.   
 
Personal Protective Equipment 
All wildland PPE is available for purchase by all qualified cardholders in the district.  
 
Communications 
Communication occurs via VHF radios; the district has a VHF radio for every member. All officers 
have full access to 800mh communication with dual-band radios. All apparatus also have radios, 
VHF radios, and 800mhz. The City of Ouray operates under a cumbersome dispatch system, 
whereby the Ouray Fire is dispatched through WESTCO dispatch out of Montrose. 
 
Equipment 
The Ouray Fire District has five fire apparatus. These include one 500-gallon Type 1 engine (4x4) 
with a 1,500 GPM pump, one Type 5 brush truck with a 400-gallon tank and 350gpm pump, one 
500-gallon Type 2 engine (4x4) with a 750 GPM pump, one 2,000-gallon tender with a 1,250 GPM 
pump. All five trucks are housed at the Ouray station. They also have two command/ rescue 
vehicles, which are crewed 24/7. 
 
Water Supply 
The availability of water resources within the communities in Ouray’s district is not a significant 
problem. Hydrants are present throughout most of the city and outlying areas. The district's other 
communities have large ponds and creek and river resources for drafting. Water sources, 
including hydrants, are not marked, however. 
 

Ridgway Fire District 
 

 



2| Wildfire Preparedness 

34 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Training 
All Ridgway Fire Protection District members are required to take 130/190 within their first year of 
training. The work capacity test is not required for all members; however, a majority do take the 
test annually. Any additional wildland classes are open and paid for by the district to any member 
as they work their way through the progression. The department has a weekly training schedule 
with refresher courses and outside instructors. The department also has a Wildland Team that 
deploys statewide and nationally.  
 
Personal Protective Equipment 
All PPE is provided to firefighters by the district. PPE includes Nomex pants and shirts, fire packs, 
boots, gloves, helmets, eye protection, and fire shelters. The fire shelters are the new generation. 
 
Communications 
Communication occurs primarily via VHF radios; 800 MHz is available in every apparatus. 
 
Equipment 
The Ridgway Fire Protection District has several fire trucks in its fleet, including five brush trucks, 
three engines, two tenders, a ladder truck, and two UTVs set up for wildland firefighting and high-
country rescue. 
 
Water Supply 
While most of the Ridgway Fire Protection District is rural, most of the district has an adequate 
water supply. In the areas where water is harder to come by, the Ridgway Fire Protection District 
uses mutual aid for water shuttles and other resources. Most homes being constructed now have 
larger cisterns with dry hydrants to tap into if needed. The district has identified and marked 
additional water supplies for drafting purposes. 
 

Evacuation Preparedness 
Access and evacuation are an essential component of any local wildfire response. Access 
characteristics dictate the efficiency of emergency evacuation and the effectiveness of emergency 
response. Preferably, road design provides multiple points of ingress and egress, supports two-
way traffic flow, and offers adequate emergency apparatus turnaround radius on dead-end roads 
and cul-de-sacs. 
 
Ouray County completed a county-wide emergency evacuation plan in 2024. It identified such 
items as the primary evacuation routes, challenges regarding evacuation, and roles and 
responsibilities during an evacuation event. Figure 20 shows the evacuation zones, routes, 
potential bottlenecks, and travel times. No evacuation centers are located in the county as this 
map assumes a county-wide evacuation. 
 



 2| Wildfire Preparedness 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 35 

Figure 20: Evacuation Zones and Routes 

 
 



2| Wildfire Preparedness 

36 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Designated evacuation routes include the following.  
 

• North-bound towards Montrose via Highway 550 and Ouray County Road 1 

• South-bound towards Silverton via Highway 550 

• West-bound towards Placerville via Highway 62 

• East-bound towards Cimarron/Gunnison via Ouray County Road 8 
 
Several areas are at high risk due to limited transportation corridors throughout Ouray County. 
Many include, but are not limited to, the areas identified below. 
 
Table 4: High-Risk Evacuation Areas 

Area Name 
# of Ways In 

& Out 
Road Identifiers 

Black Lake 2 CR 17 North or CR 17 South 

Colona 2 
US Hwy 550 North, US Hwy 550 South, or 

County Road 1 

City of Ouray 3 US 550 North, US 550 South, or CR 17 

Elk Meadows 1 CR 5 

Idlewild/KOA Campground 2 CR 23 or CR 17 

Log Hill Mesa 3 CR 1, CR 24, or CR 22 

Mineral Farms 1 CR 361 

Park Estates 2 CR 17 North or CR 17 South 

Panoramic Heights/Lake Lenore 1 CR 14 

Pleasant Valley 1 CR 24 

Ponderosa Village 2 US Hwy 550 North or US Hwy 550 South 

Ridgway Reservoir State Park 2 US Hwy 550 North or US Hwy 550 South 

Town of Ridgway 4 
US HWY 550 North, US Hwy 550 South, US 

Hwy 62, or CR 5 

Whispering Pines 1 
US Hwy 550 North, US Hwy 550 South, or CR 

17 

 
Residents and visitors to Ouray County should be aware that evacuation resources are limited. 
Everyone is responsible for evacuating as quickly and safely as possible. Given the scale of the 
plan, it was not feasible to identify evacuation routes for each house or neighborhood. Individuals 
at the neighborhood level should plan the best routes that lead to the main evacuation routes 
identified in the county plan. Individual plans will lead to residents becoming more prepared during 
an evacuation event. 
 
 



 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 37 

3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 
 

 
Assessing wildfire risk is essential for protecting lives, infrastructure, property, and natural 
ecosystems from the devastating impacts of wildfires. By identifying areas with high susceptibility 
and exposure, communities can implement proactive measures such as fuel reduction, home 
hardening, POD boundary hardening, and emergency response planning. Risk assessments help 
land managers and policymakers allocate resources effectively, prioritize mitigation efforts, and 
enhance public awareness. They also play a critical role in policymaking, guiding the development 
of building codes and land management practices that strengthen fire resilience. A well-informed 
risk assessment allows governments, organizations, and individuals to reduce potential losses, 
protect natural habitats, and build more fire-adapted communities. 
 

Wildfire History 
Multiple wildfire events occur annually in Ouray County. Most wildfire events are small (one acre 
or less), but a few larger wildfires have occurred. Figure 22 shows the location of historical wildfire 
events from 1992 to 2020. This map likely underrepresents the total number of wildfire events 
because there are few reporting databases, and not all local agencies report. Most fires in the 
county are from natural causes (i.e., lightning). Write-ups on the more significant wildfire events 
and a graph of the events by year can be found below. 
 
While a devastating wildfire has not occurred in the county, the growing number of significant and 
damaging events across Colorado and the United States show that it can happen anywhere in 
Ouray County. The increasing frequency and intensity of wildfires, exacerbated by climate change 
and communities expanding into wildfire-prone areas, pose substantial risks to the lives, property, 
infrastructure, natural environment, water quality, and air quality in the county. 
 

Figure 21: Wildfire Occurrence by Year in Ouray County 

 
Source: U.S. Forest Service, 1992 -202020 

 
20 U.S. Forest Service. 2022. “Spatial Wildfire Occurrence Data for the United States, 1992-2020”. 
https://www.fs.usda.gov/rds/archive/catalog/RDS-2013-0009.6. 

6

10

15

7

5 5
6

4

7

5
4

17

11
10

4
3

4
3

1

4
5

18

0

2

12

3

16

5

10

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

https://www.fs.usda.gov/rds/archive/catalog/RDS-2013-0009.6


3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

38 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 22: Wildfire History, 1992-2020 

 
 

  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 39 

Tappan Fire (July 3, 2004) 
The Tappan Fire began from a lightning strike on July 3, 2004, and burned 80 acres along the 
Ouray and Montrose county lines. It was fought by resources from BLM, Log Hill Fire, and 
Montrose Fire and burned for 5 days. 
 
Red Creek Fire (June 27, 2006) 
The Red Creek Fire was a lightning-caused fire burning 401 acres. The fire occurred on June 27, 
2006, about eight miles northeast of Ridgway. The fire consumed 350 acres of timber and resulted 
in the closure of trails in a wilderness area. Smoke from the fire impacted communities to the 
north, including the City of Montrose. 
 
Cow Creek Fire (October 16, 2019) 
The Cow Creek Fire burned 850 acres in the Uncompahgre National Forest. The fire was caused 
by a wood-burning stove inside a wall tent in the Green Mountain Camp. This fire incurred 
significant suppression costs fighting the fire. 
 

Figure 23: Cow Creek Fire 

 
Source: 2019 Ouray County Hazard Mit igat ion Plan  

 
Simms Incident (May 19, 2022) 
The Simms Incident was a prescribed fire of 188 acres that escaped containment on May 19th 
due to high winds. The fire ultimately burned 314 acres and destroyed several structures before 
being fully contained. Suppression costs were estimated at $3,000,000. 
 



3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

40 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 24: Simms Incident 

 
Source: West Slope Fire Information  

 
Spring Creek Fire (2023) 
The Spring Creek Fire began on September 10, 2023. It took several days to contain and burned 
16 acres. Several trails and roads were closed due to the fire. Suppression costs were estimated 
at $1,000,000. 
 

Wildfire Risk 
Wildfire risk is the likelihood of a wildfire occurring in a specific area and its potential 
consequences on people, property, and the environment. It can be broken down into three main 
factors: wildfire likelihood, wildfire intensity, and susceptibility of people, resources, and values. 
 
When discussing wildfire risk in Ouray County, the CWPP Stakeholder Group felt that none of the 
previously modeled wildfire risk maps accurately depicted risk for the county. The group thought 
a more accurate depiction of risk included several different inputs. Ultimately, the stakeholder 
group decided fire intensity, burn probability, potential control location suitability, and overall 
watershed risk were the most accurate inputs when identifying wildfire risk in Ouray County. 
Descriptions and maps of those four individual inputs can be found in the pages below. 
 
Four different inputs made it challenging to identify specific high-risk areas in the county where 
fuel treatment projects could occur. A combined wildfire risk map was created using sub-basin 
watershed areas and averages for fire intensity, burn probability, potential control location 
suitability, and overall watershed risk to represent wildfire risk visually. Figure 25 shows the 
combined wildfire risk map, and the paragraphs below provide additional information on the 
creation of the map. 
 
Before the four risk inputs could be combined, they each needed a standard scoring value. To 
start, an average score for each input was calculated using ArcGIS for each of the small sub-
basin watershed areas in the county. Once the average scores for each input were calculated, a 
standard scoring value needed to be created. To do that, each input’s average scores were split 



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 41 

into five groups from least to highest risk. Those five groups were then given a value from 1 (least 
risk) to 5 (most risk). These values standardized scoring and ensured that no one risk input would 
hold more weight than another. 
 
The risk input values were added within each small watershed to give a final combined wildfire 
risk score. An example of this is provided in the table below. With five groups across four risk 
inputs, possible combined scores ranged from 4 to 20. Areas with a score of 17 to 20 received 
the highest combined wildfire risk rating. 
 
Table 5: Example Combined Risk Scores 

Input Values Sub-Watershed 1 Sub-Watershed 2 Sub-Watershed 3 
Fire Intensity Group Value 5 1 5 

Burn Probability Group Value 3 2 5 

Potential Control Location 
Suitability Group Value 

4 1 4 

Watershed Risk Value 4 4 5 

Combined Wildfire Risk Score 16 8 19 

 
Ouray County locations with the highest combined risk (red on the map) include the heavily 
forested areas owned by the USFS along the eastern border, the central portion of the county 
between Ridgway and Ouray, and locations surrounding the City of Ouray. Adding to the concerns, 
these highest-risk areas cross critical evacuation routes, including Highway 550 and County Road 
8. Most of the population in the county lives in areas with elevated wildfire risk (yellow or orange 
on the map). Many CWPP communities are in or near the highest-risk areas (Table 6). All 
individuals in the county need to have an evacuation plan in place. They should also take steps 
to harden their home and have defensible space. Areas with lower risk scores (green and blue on 
the map) include northern Ouray County and the highest elevation areas above the tree line, with 
little to no combustible vegetation. 
 
Table 6: CWPP Communities & Risk Rating 

Community Name Fire Protection District Risk Rating 
City of Ouray Ouray Highest 

Town of Ridgway Ridgway High 

Colona Montrose Moderate 

Cornerstone Horsefly Highest 

Dallas Meadows Ridgway High 

Dave Wood South Montrose High 

Elk Meadows Ridgway Highest 

Horsefly Tracts Horsefly High 

Idlewild Ridgway Highest 

Juniper Hills Ridgway High 

Lake Lenore/Panoramic Heights Ouray Highest 

Log Hill Village / Fairway Pines Log Hill Mesa High 

Mineral Farms Ouray High 

North Log Hill Mesa Log Hill Mesa High 

Park Estates Ridgway Highest 

Piedmont Hills / Vista Heights Ridgway High 

Pleasant Valley Ridgway High 

Ponderosa Village / Indian Springs Ridgway Highest 

Silverado Estates Ridgway High 

Vista Terrace Ridgway High 

Whispering Pines Ouray Highest 



3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

42 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 25: Combined Wildfire Risk 

 
 

  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 43 

Fire Intensity 
Fire intensity shows where significant fuel hazards and potential for dangerous fire behavior exist. 
It consists of five classes, where Class 1 represents very low wildfire intensities and Class 5 
represents very high wildfire intensities. Below are the fire intensity definitions for each class as 
provided by Colorado Forest Atlas21 
 

Class 1 (Lowest Intensity): Very small, discontinuous flames, usually less than 1 foot in 
length; very low rate of spread; no spotting. Fires are typically easy to suppress by 
firefighters with basic training and non-specialized equipment. 
 
Class 2 (Low): Small flames, usually less than two feet long; a small amount of very short-
range spotting possible. Fires are easy to suppress by trained firefighters with protective 
equipment and specialized tools. 
 
Class 3 (Moderate): Flames up to 8 feet in length; short-range spotting is possible. 
Trained firefighters will find these fires challenging to suppress without support from 
aircraft or engines, but dozers and plows are generally effective. Increasing potential for 
harm or damage to life and property. 
 
Class 4 (High): Large Flames, up to 30 feet in length; short-range spotting common; 
medium-range spotting possible. Direct attack by trained firefighters, engines, and dozers 
is generally ineffective; indirect attack may be effective. Significant potential for harm or 
damage to life and property. 
 
Class 5 (Highest Intensity): Huge flames up to 150 feet long; profuse short-range 
spotting; frequent long-range spotting; strong fire-induced winds. An indirect attack is 
marginally effective at the head of the fire. There is great potential for harm or damage to 
life and property. 

 
Figure 27 on the next page shows the fire intensity map for Ouray County. There are no Class 5 
areas located in the county. High-intensity regions in the county can be found in the south-central, 
eastern, and western edges. Areas of lowest fire intensity are in the county's north-central and 
high mountain peaks. 
 

Figure 26: Fire Intensity Example 

 
Source: Andrew Sullivan/CSIRO, 2021 

 
21 Colorado State Forest Service. 2022. “Colorado Forest Atlas.” https://coloradoforestatlas.org/. 

https://coloradoforestatlas.org/


3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

44 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 27: Fire Intensity 

 
 

  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 45 

Burn Probability 
Burn probability is the annual probability of any location burning due to wildfire. The Ouray County 
CWPP utilized the burn probability map the Colorado Forest Atlas created. The information below 
provides an overview of how burn probability was calculated. 
 

The annual burn probability was calculated as the number of times a cell was burned and 
the number of iterations used to run the models. The annual burn probability was 
estimated for Colorado by using a wildfire simulation approach where a total number of 
2,342,334 fires were simulated. The ignition points were spatially distributed evenly every 
500 meters across the state. Only high and extreme weather conditions were used to run 
the single fires. All fire simulations had a duration of eight hours. After simulating all the 
fires, some cells were not burned by any simulated fire, resulting in a burned probability 
value of zero. Some cells were non-burnable due to the associated fuel type (i.e., water, 
roads, urban, agricultural, barren areas). The wildfire simulator considered the number of 
times the simulated fires burned each cell. After that, results were weighted by considering 
the historical fire occurrence. The weighting was done by assessing the relation between 
the annual historical fire ignition density in Colorado, the total number of simulated fires 
with varying input data in high and moderate weather scenarios, and the historical spatial 
distribution of the ignition points.”22 

 
The map and table below show the output from the burn probability analysis for Ouray County. 
Areas where burn probability is elevated include the eastern border and the county's northwest 
corner. Areas where burn probability is lowest include the north-central and southern portions of 
the county. 
 
Figure 28: Burn Probability Table - Ouray County 

 
Source: Colorado Forest At las  

 
22 Colorado State Forest Service. 2022. “Colorado Forest Atlas.” https://coloradoforestatlas.org/. 

https://coloradoforestatlas.org/


3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

46 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 29: Burn Probability 

 
 

  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 47 

Potential Control Location Suitability 
Potential control location suitability (PCL) shows where wildfire containment is most likely 
successful based on where fires stopped in the past. PCL is scaled from zero to one hundred, 
corresponding to conditions with a low to high probability of containing a fire. Areas where large 
fire containment is unlikely (PCL<10) suggest the need for an indirect suppression strategy, and 
areas with a PCL greater than 75 are where fires tend to stall or stop due to a combination of site 
conditions and suppression success. PCL considers fire containment successes and failures from 
2002-2021, topography, fuels, accessibility, suppression difficulty, and potential fire behavior.23 
 
Figure 31 on the next page shows the Potential Control Location Suitability for Ouray County. 
Areas where containment is unlikely include the south-central portion of the county and the 
eastern border. Areas where potential containment is highest include the high mountain peaks in 
the county's southern portion and low-lying areas along the Uncompahgre River and Dallas 
Creek. 
 

Figure 30: Wildfire Control Point 

 
Source: West Slope Fire Information 

 

 
23 U.S. Forest Service. 2024. “Potential Control Location Suitability.” 
https://www.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=c83484a8f54d4212a453cbec8f461491.  

https://www.arcgis.com/home/item.html?id=c83484a8f54d4212a453cbec8f461491


3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

48 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 31: Potential Control Location Suitability 

 
 

  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 49 

Watershed Risk 
Wildfires and the subsequent suppression activities can significantly affect watersheds and 
municipal water supplies. When wildfires burn across an area, they leave unstable soils 
vulnerable to erosion, landslides, and debris flows. This results in increased sediment and debris 
clogging streams and reservoirs. Ash, heavy metals, and pollutants from burned materials can 
wash into streams, degrading water quality and making water treatment more challenging. The 
intense heat from wildfires can also create hydrophobic soils that repel water, exacerbate runoff, 
and contribute to flash flooding. Chemicals used in firefighting, such as fire retardants and foams, 
can add to water quality issues when they get washed into water sources. These place increased 
strains on water treatment facilities, which may not typically be needed to treat these pollutants. 
 
Planning for the impacts of wildfires on watersheds and drinking water is crucial because water 
is a vital resource for public health and the environment. Wildfires can significantly compromise 
water quality, leading to higher treatment costs, unsafe drinking water, and degradation of aquatic 
plants and animals. By planning, communities can implement mitigation strategies to help reduce 
these impacts and minimize long-term economic and environmental costs. 
 
The Colorado Water Conservation Board’s Wildfire Ready Watersheds Susceptibility Explorer 
was utilized to analyze watershed risk in Ouray County. This tool assesses the susceptibility of 
Colorado’s watersheds to post-fire hazard risk to support the development of pre-fire planning. 
The Wildfire Ready Watersheds explorer contains four key summaries related to hazards and 
values at risk. These summary maps are Debris Flow Probability, Sedimentation Risk, Hydrologic 
Change Risk, and All Values-at-Risk and Hazards. These summaries are provided at a watershed 
(HUC-12) scale. Summary descriptions and maps can be found below. To learn more about how 
these summaries and maps were created, visit https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/.  
 
Debris Flow Probability 
Debris flow probability, as shown in Figure 32, estimates the likelihood of a debris flow event after 
a wildfire. These estimates were created using the U.S Geological Survey’s debris flow probability 
logistic regression model and burn severity inputs.24 
 
Sedimentation Risk 
Sedimentation risk measures the expected change in sediment yield between pre-fire and post-
fire conditions. Figure 33 shows the sedimentation risk for Ouray County. The larger the number, 
the more sediment is expected in waterways after a fire event.25 
 
Hydrologic Change Risk 
Figure 34 shows the hydrologic change risk for watersheds in Ouray County. Hydrologic change 
looks at the expected magnitude of change in runoff from a watershed, assuming an estimated 
burn severity. A higher number means there is an increased amount of runoff and less infiltration 
that would occur.26 More runoff can lead to increased risk of flooding downstream, sediment loads, 
and risk of debris flows. 
 

 
24 Colorado Department of Natural Resources. 2024. “Wildfire Ready Watersheds.” 
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/. 
25 Colorado Department of Natural Resources. 2024. “Wildfire Ready Watersheds.” 
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/. 
26 Colorado Department of Natural Resources. 2024. “Wildfire Ready Watersheds.” 
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/.  

https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/


3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

50 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 32: Watershed Debris Flow Probability 

 



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 51 

Figure 33: Watershed Sedimentation Risk 

 
 
  



3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

52 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 34: Watershed Hydrologic Change Risk 

 
 
  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 53 

Combined Watershed Risk 
This summary combines all three risk types discussed above and susceptibility to life, property, 
and water infrastructure. The output is Figure 36, which provides an average overall susceptibility 
score between 0 and 100. Higher values mean higher overall susceptibility, whereas lower scores 
indicate lower overall susceptibility.27 The combined wildfire risk map used this summary as the 
watershed risk input (Figure 25). 
 
Forests to Faucets 
The USFS Forests to Faucets project ranks areas within a watershed from 0 to 100 regarding 
relative importance to overall drinking water quality (100 being most important, 0 being least 
important). These rankings help identify critical watersheds for drinking water based on the 
population served, forest cover, riparian condition, and hydrology.28 Forests to Faucets data can 
be helpful when identifying potential mitigation project locations to prioritize. Figure 37 shows that 
most of the county’s watersheds rank between 30 and 60. Watersheds with the most relative 
importance are located in the county's southern portion and provide the City of Ouray and the 
Town of Ridgway with drinking water. 
 

Figure 35: Wildfire River Pollution 

 
Source: CNN. A confluence of two rivers. The bottom carried ash and burned soil; the other was unaffected by wildfire. 

 

 
27 Colorado Department of Natural Resources. 2024. “Wildfire Ready Watersheds.” 
https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/. 
28 USFS. “Forests to Faucets 2.0.” Accessed March 2025. 
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/collections/4e450a6c7ed24f0cbae4abc1c07843b7?item=1.  

https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/collections/4e450a6c7ed24f0cbae4abc1c07843b7?item=1


3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

54 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 36: Combined Watershed Risk 

 
 
  



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 55 

Figure 37: Forest to Faucets - Drinking Water Importance 

 
 

  



3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

56 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Values to Protect 
Identifying important values and resources when planning wildfires is crucial because it helps 
ensure that the strategies and mitigation efforts protect what matters most. By understanding 
these priorities, actions can be tailored to protect key assets like drinking water infrastructure, 
residential areas, communication infrastructure, and key governmental services that support 
communities' long-term health and growth. 
 
Furthermore, recognizing these values allows for a more efficient allocation of limited resources. 
It helps decision-makers prioritize actions, develop focused risk-reduction strategies, and 
coordinate with various stakeholders. This targeted approach minimizes potential damage during 
a wildfire event and facilitates a faster and more effective recovery, ultimately enhancing the 
county's resilience. 
 
During the first meeting, the CWPP Stakeholder Group was asked to identify values and 
resources they wished to protect from wildfire. The values were organized and grouped into 12 
categories from that initial discussion. Definitions and locations were then gathered for each value 
category. While not every category had a specific location that could be represented on a map 
(i.e., air quality and human life), the stakeholder group felt it was still important to include them in 
the analysis. During the second meeting, the CWPP Stakeholder Group was shown a list and 
map of the different value categories. They were then asked to rate the 12 different value 
categories from most important to least important. Figure 38 shows the 12 value categories and 
their relative importance based on the average ratings. 
 

Figure 38: Values to Protect Ranking 

 
 
General definitions for each value to protect categories can be found on the next page. Most of 
the definitions and locations of the categories came from Ouray County Emergency Management. 
Figure 40 shows a map of the top five values to protect in Ouray County. When layered on top of 
the combined wildfire risk map, it revealed that many of the most important values to protect were 
located in the high to highest-risk areas. Having many values in high-risk areas shows the 



 3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 57 

importance of large-scale fuel management needs, site-specific defensible space, and location 
hardening. 
 

Human Life – All residents and visitors in the county. 
 

Emergency Response & Governmental Services – Governmental buildings, schools, 
and fire stations. 

 
Infrastructure – Communication towers, power substations and lines, roads, and water 
infrastructure. 

 
Water Quality – Reservoirs, rivers, and streams. 

 
Buildings – All addresses of buildings in the county. 

 
Forest Health – Vegetation throughout the county. 

 
Wildlife – Endangered species ranges in the county. 

 
Historical Sites – Locations on the National Register of Historic Places. 

 
Air Quality – How clean or polluted the air is in the county. It can be measured by the 
concentration of pollutants in the air. 

 
Cultural Areas – Places that hold cultural significance. They reflect the traditions, values, 
beliefs, and expressions of particular groups or civilizations. 

 
Livestock – Large farms and ranches in the county. 

 
Recreation – Campgrounds, trails, golf courses, parks, pools, athletic fields, and other 
recreational-related locations. 

 
Figure 39: Ouray County Courthouse 

 
Source: Ouray County 



3| Wildfire Risk Assessment 

58 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 40: Highly Ranked Values to Protect 

 
 
 



 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 59 

4| Action Plan 
 

 
Wildfire action planning involves identifying and implementing strategies to reduce the risk and 
impact of wildfires on people, property, infrastructure, and ecosystems. It consists of analyzing 
wildfire risks, determining vulnerabilities, and outlining specific actions to prevent or minimize 
damage to identified values. These wildfire risk reduction projects and actions support the 
overarching goals of the Ouray CWPP. 
 
Goal 1: Fire-Resilient Landscapes 
Develop and maintain landscapes across the county that are resilient to wildfire, mitigate 
undesirable fire outcomes, and protect highly valued resources and assets. 
 
Goal 2: Fire-Adapted Communities 
Empower the county and its residents to “live with wildfire,” including being prepared to withstand, 
respond to, and recover from wildfires. 
 
Goal 3: Safe and Effective Wildfire Response 
Enable safe and efficient wildfire response through improved planning, coordination, and capacity 
building. 
 
Ouray County, the local fire districts, BLM, USFS, and other regional stakeholders must work 
together to implement these wildfire risk reduction projects. Unfortunately, implementing these 
projects can be difficult due to limited budgets and staffing constraints from the local to the federal 
level. With limited resources, supported projects must be well-defined and address multiple goals 
and issues. Collaborative planning will be essential to maximize the benefits of the identified 
projects. 
 
The actions listed below are not all-inclusive. Conditions, funding, and opportunities change over 
time, and it is critical to update this CWPP. Ouray County and the CWPP Stakeholder Group will 
add appropriate new actions to meet changing needs and opportunities. 
 

Fire-Resilient Landscapes Actions 
Fire-resilient landscapes aim to develop and maintain landscapes across the county that are 
resilient to wildfire, mitigate undesirable fire outcomes, and protect highly valued resources and 
assets. To do that, fuel treatment projects were identified during the fourth CWPP meeting and 
further refined through discussions with the county and other key local, state, and federal 
stakeholders. These fuel treatment projects fall into two main types: short-term projects where 
planning has already begun and longer-term prioritized projects where additional planning work 
is needed to refine the project. Additionally, watershed projects were identified to help protect the 
county's drinking water and other water resources. 
 

Shorter-Term Projects 
These projects are likely to be implemented and completed first. Some are already underway, 
while others have started the planning process but may still need funding or additional planning 
to get started. Below is the list of shorter-term projects in the county and a summary of each 
project. Figure 41 shows where these projects are planned to be located. 
 
  



4| Action Plan 

60 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 41: Shorter-Term Fuel Treatment Projects 

 
 
  



 4| Action Plan 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 61 

Baldy Mountain 
The USFS is leading and working with partners from USDA, BLM, WRWC, and many others on 
the Baldy Mountain project. This project will cover approximately 2,400 acres with treatments on 
public and private land. The project intends to treat existing vegetation to benefit wildlife habitat, 
reduce fuels, reduce post-wildfire flooding and soil erosion effects, and improve landscape 
resiliency. Activities began in 2023 with hand and mechanical treatments. Additional prescribed 
fire and mastication will continue until 2027. Total costs are expected to be over $3.5 million. More 
information about the Baldy Mountain Project can be found on this ArcGIS StoryMap: 
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/9eea6bb08bf6488482f9e0cd1955b2b6 and the USFS 
project website: https://www.fs.usda.gov/project/?project=58554. 
 
As part of the project, the WRWC is working with qualified private landowners to provide free 
vegetation management on approximately 123 acres. Work will include tree thinning using hand 
crews, mastication, and brush control. The cut vegetation will be chipped, removed from the site, 
chopped into chucks, and dispersed on the ground. 
 
Dave Wood 
This project is being led by the USFS and is planned to cover approximately 850 acres. This 
project will primarily be a prescribed burn. Heritage clearance and funding are still needed before 
any work is done. The goal of this project is to reduce vegetation in a densely forested area that 
is adjacent to private land. This project will help to reduce the risk of a large wildfire moving across 
the region. The USFS is hoping to complete this project by 2028. 
 
The USFS has recently implemented more stringent requirements for conducting prescribed 
burns on USFS land to enhance safety, accountability, and effectiveness. Changes include 
enhanced burn planning, safety protocols, increased personnel, and the inclusion of strategies to 
prevent escapes.  
 
Ouray Community Forest Resilience 
This proposed project has been in the making through the Ouray Forest Collaborative for a few 
years and will cover approximately 93 acres. The City of Ouray and Ouray County hired Spring 
Branch Forestry to lay out the project to mitigate the forest directly outside the City of Ouray. 
Several different fuel reduction methods will be used, including helicopter removal of trees, hand 
treatment, mastication, and aerial chipping. The estimated cost is approximately $1.1 million. The 
project will likely start in the fall of 2026 or 2027 but largely depends on funding. WRWC has 
secured some funds through multiple grants, but additional funds are still needed to start the 
project. 
 
Plateau Communities Wildfire Resiliency 
This project led by BLM will cover 11,363 acres of primarily roadside and boundary thinning. 
Treatment methods will include cut, pile, and burn; mastication; and lop and scatter. Additionally, 
many treatments will be preceded and followed by herbicide application and seeding. Previously 
treated areas will be re-treated as well. The NEPA process for this project is currently underway. 
 
Ridgway State Park 
The CSFS is leading this proposed project. The project will treat approximately 90 acres around 
Ridgway State Park. Treatment for the project includes variable density thinning of pinyon-juniper 
with objectives of improving mule-deer habitat and mitigation risk of wildfire. Planning for the 
project is finished and awaiting funding. 
 

  

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/9eea6bb08bf6488482f9e0cd1955b2b6
https://www.fs.usda.gov/project/?project=58554


4| Action Plan 

62 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Longer-Term Prioritized Projects 
The CWPP Stakeholder Group prioritized these longer-term projects during the fourth CWPP 
meeting. Meeting attendees participated in a project identification activity where each was given 
three stickers to place on the combined wildfire risk map. These stickers acted as votes for the 
locations where vegetation management should occur. The seven locations that received the 
most stickers were identified as the longer-term prioritized projects (Figure 42). Only seven 
locations were prioritized due to limited budgets, staffing, and time. In future updates and reviews, 
additional project locations can be added. 
 

Figure 42: Longer-Term Fuel Treatment Project Locations 

 



 4| Action Plan 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 63 

Below is the list of longer-term projects in the county and a summary of each project. The locations 
provided in the map above are approximate, and the actual project may be outside the boundaries 
or in smaller, specific areas within the locations. These projects are likely to take a longer time to 
be implemented. For most, the planning process has not yet started. Because of this, the 
summaries will not be as detailed, with specific types and methods of treatments yet to be 
identified. 
 
Other non-prioritized areas discussed include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Blackbear Trail Area 

• Blue Lakes Trailhead 

• Buckhorn Lakes 

• Cornerstone Area 

• County Road 1 

• County Road 24 

• County Road 361 

• East Horsefly Creek Area 

• Elk Mountain Resort Area 

• Highway 62 

• Highway 550 south of Ouray 

• Wildcat/Simms Area 

• Wilson Creek Area 
 
Elk Meadows 
The Elk Meadows neighborhood is west of Highway 550 and approximately four miles south of 
the Town of Ridgway. These homes are located in the county's highest or second-highest wildfire-
risk areas. Many of the homes are located in or near heavily vegetated areas. Evacuation of this 
neighborhood is a concern, with only one dirt road in or out (County Road 5). 
 
All of the land within the neighborhood is privately owned, which means the county will need to 
work with private landowners, CSFS, and the WRWC to perform any significant fuel reduction 
projects. Possible treatment types include creating defensible space, thinning and pre-
commercial thinning, logging, ingress/egress routes, fuel breaks, and possibly prescribed burns. 
In addition to the fuel treatment, this project includes possibly adding a second egress route. 
 
City of Ouray Protection 
The City of Ouray is surrounded by dense forests and is located in some of the higher wildfire-
risk areas in the county. This project will identify possible fuel treatment locations surrounding the 
community and tie into the Ouray Community Forest Resilience Project where possible. The areas 
around the city are a mixture of private and USFS land. The Ouray Forest Collaborative will likely 
lead this project but will work closely with the USFS, WRWC, and private landowners. Thinning 
through hand treatment, mastication, and chipping are the most likely treatment types. 
 
Dave Wood #2 
The Dave Wood area is one of the county's more densely forested areas within USFS lands. It is 
also adjacent to private land that is densely forested. Seasonal winds favor a southwest flow, and 
any established fire in these areas is at risk of moderate to rapid growth in a northerly direction 
through the largely untreated areas adjacent to the forest. 
 



4| Action Plan 

64 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

This 1110-acre project would tie into the previously treated and planned treatment locations in the 
Dave Wood area. The primary suggested treatment type would be mastication of the Gamble Oak 
along topographic transitions, roadways, and structures. Areas with more Pinyon/Juniper could 
also be thinned, and ladder fuels could be removed through chipping or pile burning. There could 
also be opportunities to work with adjacent landowners to expand the treatment area. Heritage 
clearances need to be re-validated in the area, and the first Dave Wood Project will need to be 
completed before starting this project. 
 
County Road 8 
This future project would cover areas surrounding County Road 8 in the county's eastern portion. 
This stretch of road is located in the highest wildfire-risk regions in the county and could be used 
as an evacuation route. This portion of County Road 8 is an identified POD boundary line, so any 
fuel treatment work would help reduce the spread of wildfire. Possible fuel treatment types include 
thinning, prescribed burns, and expanding the fuel break created by County Road 8. Most of the 
surrounding area is USFS land, so they would likely be the ones to implement this project. 
 
Log Hill Mesa Protection 
This potential future project covers a large land area south and west of Log Hill Mesa. Log Hill 
has the highest density of homes in the unincorporated areas of Ouray County. Most of these 
homes are at elevated fire risk because they are located in heavily wooded areas. Log Hill has 
several highly ranked values, including communication towers, the Dallas Creek Water Company, 
and the Fairway Pines Sanitation Facility. 
 
All the land is privately owned, so the county will need to work with private landowners, CSFS, 
and the WRWC to perform any significant fuel reduction projects. Treatment types could include 
defensible space work, thinning, improving ingress/egress, and POD boundary line hardening 
using fuel breaks. 
 
Highway 550 Between Ouray and Ridgway 
This future project would cover areas surrounding Highway 550 between the City of Ouray and 
the Town of Ridgway. This entire stretch of road is located in elevated wildfire risk areas. It is the 
primary evacuation route for the county's southern half, including the City of Ouray. While most of 
the land is privately owned, there are areas that the USFS or BLM federally owns. Ouray County 
would likely need to work with private landowners, CSFS, WRWC, USFS, and BLM. 
 
Ideally, this project would tie into the Baldy Mountain project to create a larger treated area. 
Possible fuel treatment types could include thinning, prescribed burns, and POD boundary line 
hardening by expanding the fuel break created by Highway 550. 
 
Highway 550 North of Ridgway 
This project would cover areas surrounding Highway 550 north of the Town of Ridgway. While 
much of the project would be located in relatively lower wildfire risk areas, the entire stretch of 
road is the primary evacuation route leading out of the county. A mix of BLM, State, and private 
landowners owns the project area. The CSFS or BLM would be the most likely agencies to lead 
this project. Possible fuel treatment types could include thinning, prescribed burns, and POD 
Boundary line hardening by expanding the fuel break created by Highway 550. 
 

  



 4| Action Plan 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 65 

Fuel Treatment Projects Summary 
The table below summarizes the short-term and long-term fuel treatment projects described 
above. The table includes the priority level for each project and the recommended implementation 
leader. Priority levels may shift over time for many of these projects due to public and political 
support, available funding, and staffing. Implementation leaders may also change depending on 
the exact location and needs of the project. 
 
Table 7: Fuel Treatment Projects Summary 

Project Name 
Short-Term or 

Long-Term 
Priority 

Implementation 
Leader 

Baldy Mountain Short-Term High USFS 

City of Ouray Protection Long-Term Medium 
Ouray Forest 
Collaborative 

County Road 8 Long-Term Low USFS 

Dave Wood Short-Term High USFS 

Dave Wood #2 Long-Term Medium USFS 

Elk Meadows Long-Term Low Ouray County 

Highway 550 Between Ouray and Ridgway Long-Term High Ouray County 

Highway 550 North of Ridgway Long-Term Low BLM & CSFS 

Log Hill Mesa Protection Long-Term High Ouray County 

Ouray Community Forest Resilience Short-Term High 
Ouray Forest 
Collaborative 

Plateau Communities Wildfire Resiliency Short-Term High BLM 

Ridgway State Park Short-Term High CSFS 

 

Watershed Projects 
 
Implement Projects Identified in the Dallas Creek Water Company Source Water Protection Plan 
The Dallas Creek Water Company completed its Source Water Protection Plan (SWPP) in August 
2016. Dallas Creek Water Company provides drinking water to Log Hill Mesa. The SWPP aims 
to better understand potential risks to the watershed and identify actions to protect and enhance 
the drinking water supply. The plan recognizes wildfires as a high-priority issue and identifies best 
management practices. The identified practices to implement are listed below. The Dallas Creek 
Water Company will implement these actions. 
 

• Explore opportunities for watershed health improvement grant funding. 

• Share a copy of the plan and shapefiles with Ouray County, USFS, CFSF, and the West 
Regional Wildfire Council. 

o Work with USFS, CSFS, West Region Wildfire Council, and Ouray County to 
educate homeowners about creating and maintaining defensible space on private 
lands. 

• Share a copy of the SWPP with the Ouray County Sheriff’s Department regarding fire bans 
and restrictions. Encourage collaboration with the Sheriff’s Department in reviewing fire 
prevention measures. 

• Evaluate fuel conditions to develop fuel mitigation or treatment projects and fire response 
plans for the Source Water Protection Area with USFS, CSFS, Division of Fire Prevention 
and Control, Log Hill Fire Protection District, and Ridgway Fire Protection District. 

  



4| Action Plan 

66 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Implement Actions Identified in the Town of Ridgway Source Water Protection Plan 
The Town of Ridgway completed its Source Water Protection Plan in September 2012. The SWPP 
states that wildfire can impact the town’s drinking water in several ways. Increased sediment can 
make it challenging to treat the water, and runoff changes could affect water availability in summer. 
Within the plan, several actions related to wildfires can be implemented. The Town of Ridgway 
will implement these actions. 
 
Develop a Source Water Protection Plan for the City of Ouray 
The City of Ouray does not have a Source Water Protection Plan. An SWPP can help the city 
better understand potential watershed and drinking water risks related to wildfires. It will also help 
the city identify possible actions to help protect the city’s drinking water from wildfire impacts. The 
City of Ouray will lead the development of the SWPP. 
 
Develop Wildfire Ready Action Plans 
To better understand the watershed risks and vulnerabilities at the community level, the City of 
Ouray and the Town of Ridgway should look into developing a Wildfire Ready Action Plan (WRAP) 
for their drinking water sources. A WRAP will include hazard analysis and evaluations and identify 
pre- and post-fire management actions that can be taken. The Colorado Watershed Restoration 
Program has grant funds available to governmental entities to create a WRAP and implement 
projects identified in the plan. 
 
Wet Meadow Improvement / Creation 
Work with the Uncompahgre Watershed Partnership to coordinate low-tech process-based 
restoration projects to re-wet and green up meadows in the county. Implementing these wet 
meadow projects makes them less likely to burn and can act as fire breaks, reducing wildfire 
spread. Local fire protection districts, Ouray County, and the Uncompahgre Watershed 
Partnership can work together to identify locations where there would be both habitat and wildfire 
risk reduction benefits. 
 
Snowpack Projects 
This action contains two snowpack projects. These projects entail snowpack monitoring and high-
country vegetation manipulations to increase the snowpack. Snowpack monitoring consists of 
measuring and observing snow accumulations and changes over time. It can help predict drought 
and the severity and timing of the fire season. Vegetation manipulation by intentionally changing 
vegetation type, density, or structure can help retain more snow and slow its melt in high-country 
areas. It can help reduce fuel loads and create a more reliable spring/summer runoff. 
 

Fire-Adapted Communities Actions 
The goal of fire-adapted communities is to empower the county and its residents to “live with 
wildfire,” including being prepared to withstand, respond to, and recover from wildfires. Several 
actions were identified during the CWPP meetings to help achieve this goal. A summary of these 
actions is outlined below. 
 

Joint Task Force on Wildfire Education 
This action creates a Joint Task Force to lead a programmatic wildfire education and outreach 
campaign. Currently, wildfire education in the county is done separately by the communities, 
county, local fire districts, federal agencies, HOAs, and other non-profit organizations. No entity 
can handle all education needs due to limited staffing, time, and budgets. By creating a Joint Task 
Force comprising all these entities, resources can be pooled, and a unified education campaign 
can be created. The task force will help to ensure a consistent message that maximizes impact 



 4| Action Plan 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 67 

and enhances efficiency in delivering wildfire education to residents and visitors. West Region 
Wildfire Council created an email list for the Joint Task Force; one meeting has already occurred. 
 

Wildfire Code Updates and Enforcement 
The Colorado Wildfire Resiliency Code Board is creating a statewide wildfire resiliency code. 
Once approved and adopted, governing bodies in the WUI must adopt this code. However, local 
wildfire regulations can exceed the state code requirements. 
 
This action ensures local codes meet or exceed the new state wildfire resiliency code. The 
county’s code will likely exceed the state code. However, the county code should be reviewed 
against the state code and updated if needed. The City of Ouray and the Town of Ridgway may 
need to update their local codes to meet or exceed the state code. Another issue in the county 
and local communities is enforcing their codes. Capacity building within the county and local 
communities is needed to help enforce codes for both new construction and existing properties. 
 

Neighborhood-Level Evacuation Planning 
Ouray County completed a county-wide evacuation plan that identifies such items as the primary 
evacuation routes, challenges regarding evacuation, and roles and responsibilities during an 
evacuation event. Given the scale of the plan, it is not feasible to plan the best evacuation routes 
for each house or neighborhood. Individuals at the neighborhood level should plan the best routes 
that lead to the main evacuation routes identified in the county plan. These evacuation plans will 
make residents more prepared during an evacuation event. 
 

Protect County Structures and Infrastructure 
Many county-owned structures and infrastructure are located in high wildfire-risk areas with many 
sites, like the county radio/cell towers, that are surrounded by wildland vegetation. Ouray County 
Emergency Management, with assistance from local fire districts, will identify structures and 
pieces of infrastructure that either need to be hardened against wildfire or need defensible space. 
Once these sites have been identified, specific mitigation work will be performed. 
 

Insurance Company Collaboration 
As more and more large wildfire events occur across the country, insurance companies are 
starting to pull out of high-risk areas or increase premiums for wildfire coverage. In the CWPP 
public survey, reduced homeowner insurance rates would be the most encouraging factor for 
homeowners to reduce wildfire risks on their property. Most insurance companies use their own 
wildfire risk metrics and do not consider local risk indicators or mitigation work on individual 
properties. 
 
This action aims for Ouray County and the West Region Wildfire Council to work collaboratively 
with insurance companies to discuss the possibility of offering lower insurance rates for homes 
with mitigation work. One possible solution is to tie in the Wildfire Ready Home Program discussed 
in the previous action. The West Region Wildfire Council and the county could work with insurance 
companies to see if they can offer lower rates for homes that have received a Wildfire Ready 
Home Certification of Completion. 
 

  



4| Action Plan 

68 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Subdivision Wildfire Requirements 
Ouray County will explore adding additional wildfire requirements for subdivision-planned unit 
development approvals. Possible additions include additional defensible space requirements, 
having a road rather than homes on the outside edge of a subdivision, and requiring the 
development of a CWPP. These wildfire requirements will help reduce further risk for the new 
subdivisions, which will likely be built in heavily vegetated areas. 
 

Conduct Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments 
The West Region Wildfire Council can conduct curbside Wildfire Risk Assessments of properties 
in the WUI. These property-level wildfire risk assessments are based on attributes related to 
building materials, vegetation near the home, background fuels, topography, and access. The 
assessment rating gives a risk value relative to neighboring properties. This outreach tool can 
help inform residents of their risk and encourage them to seek education and resources. As seen 
on the map below, many homes in Ouray County have already been assessed. 
 
This action aims to increase the number of properties with a risk assessment, especially in and 
around the City of Ouray. The West Region Wildfire Council will lead the outreach about the 
assessment and will lead the assessments as funding and capacity allow. 
 

Figure 43: WRWC Rapid Wildfire Risk Assessments - Ouray County 

 
Source: West Region Wildf ire Counci l  

 
  

https://www.cowildfire.org/rapid-risk-assessment


 4| Action Plan 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 69 

Promote the West Region Wildfire Council’s Wildfire Ready Home Program 
The West Region Wildfire Council has a Wildfire Ready Home Program that homeowners can 
sign up for and learn practical steps to reduce risks around their homes. During the program, 
homeowners will work with a Wildfire Ready Home Assessor who will provide them with a detailed 
Wildfire Ready Home Report that contains specific and targeted recommendations. After 
completing the program, homeowners will receive a Wildfire Ready Home Certification for 
Completion. 
 
This action aims to increase the number of residents who have taken the appropriate steps to 
understand their wildfire risk and the available resources in the area and to increase the number 
of homes mitigated by creating defensible spaces and hardening structures. West Region Wildfire 
Council will lead outreach and will operate the program. 
 

City of Ouray Forest Management Program 
The City of Ouray wants to create an active forest management and improvement program for all 
city-owned properties. This program will help ensure good land stewardship, wildlife habitat 
rehabilitation, and wildfire mitigation, promoting overall forest health. Specific wildfire mitigation 
projects have not been identified but will be during the program's creation. The city hopes to create 
this program over the next five to ten years. 
 

Safe and Effective Wildfire Response Actions 
The goal of safe and effective wildfire response is to enable safe and efficient wildfire response 
through improved planning, coordination, and capacity building. Actions were identified during the 
CWPP meetings to support this goal. A summary of these actions is provided below. 
 

Water Source Improvements 
Most fire districts have limited access to water and may have to travel long distances to refill 
tankers. Having few water sources can limit their ability to control and contain wildfire events 
quickly. Streams are an option to pull water, but it might not be possible during a drought year 
when wildfire risk has already increased. 
 
This action aims to increase water source availability throughout the county. The first step is to 
pre-identify water sources that will likely be available during drought conditions. Listing water 
sources can help identify areas where water for firefighting is scarce. In these areas, fire districts 
and the county can work together to install above-ground cisterns and tanks, partner with local 
landowners to use irrigation equipment or ponds, and work with water providers to extend water 
mains and hydrants. In areas where there are natural water sources, fire districts can work to 
install dry hydrants and maintain access points. Local fire districts can also look into expanding 
the number and size of water tenders. The local fire protection districts and Ouray County 
Emergency Management will lead this project, and local communities will assist as needed. 
 

Emergency Response Radio and Emergency Alert Training 
Ouray County Emergency Management identified a need for training on the emergency response 
radios for all volunteers and emergency response personnel. Training will help ensure all 
organizations can communicate and promptly get the necessary resources and information. 
Training on emergency response radios should be held on at least an annual basis. The training 
will be organized and held by Ouray County Emergency Management. BLM and the Colorado 
Division of Fire Prevention and Control can also assist with radio training for local fire districts. 
 

https://www.cowildfire.org/wildfire-ready-home


4| Action Plan 

70 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Currently, only three individuals in the county can send out emergency alerts. Most of these 
individuals would likely be out in the field during an emergency and unavailable to send the alerts. 
Ouray County would like to increase the number of staff trained on emergency alerts so they can 
serve as backups if needed. 
 

Affordable Housing for Fire District and Governmental Personnel 
Like many other mountain communities and regions, local fire protection districts and local 
governments in the county have a hard time with staffing. One of the big reasons for this is the 
lack of affordable housing in the county. Finding affordable housing for first responders and other 
key governmental staff will help to find and retain needed staff. Ouray County, the Town of 
Ridgway, and the City of Ouray should look into creating affordable housing plans if one has not 
already been made. In coordination with the Home Trust of Ouray County, these entities should 
also consider implementing workforce housing solutions such as down payment assistance, 
subsidized housing, and zoning adjustments for affordable housing development. 
 

Project Funding 
Grant funding is often necessary for vegetation management projects and can facilitate fuel 
reduction on private and public lands. Due to an ever-changing political and funding landscape, 
specific grant programs will not be discussed in this plan. On a federal level, wildfire grants have 
historically come from three primary sources: the USFS, BLM, and FEMA. On the state level, 
grants will likely come from the CSFS, Colorado Division of Fire Prevention & Control, Colorado 
Department of Natural Resources, and Colorado Water Conservation Board. It is recommended 
that the CWPP Stakeholder Group regularly check with these federal and state agencies on 
available grant funds. The Colorado Department of Local Affairs has also compiled a Local 
Community Funding Guide to help navigate various state and federal funding types. The Wildfire 
Risk to Communities also has combined funding information (https://wildfirerisk.org/reduce-
risk/funding/). The Colorado Watershed Assembly has a watershed-specific funding overview 
page (https://www.coloradowater.org/funding-opportunities). 
 
While grants can help fund wildfire projects, they are not the only option. Other resources include 
local funding options (local budgets, capital improvement programs, fees, etc.), public-private 
partnerships, donations, private foundations, and non-profit organizations. Funding projects and 
actions will likely take innovative solutions from various sources. 
 

Implementation & Updates 
The risk reduction projects and actions outlined in this plan will significantly reduce wildfire risk, 
but only if implemented. Converting strategy into action is the key to achieving the goals of the 
CWPP. Where possible, the identified fuel treatment projects and wildfire mitigation actions have 
identified who will oversee the execution of the project. However, many projects and actions will 
require collaboration among federal agencies, Ouray County, fire protection districts, 
communities, local organizations, and private landowners. 
 
An essential component of the implementation process includes identifying a team that will move 
the plan forward, help implement the mitigation recommendations, and continue planning 
additional wildfire mitigation actions. This plan recommends that the CWPP Stakeholder Group 
become that implementation team as it already comprises all the key stakeholders. Regular 
meetings of the CWPP Stakeholder Group should occur and can be coordinated through Ouray 
County Emergency Management. The CWPP encourages individuals and homeowner 
associations to take an active role in this process by attending these meetings and continuing to 
provide input. 

https://lookerstudio.google.com/u/0/reporting/6bf90675-163a-4c84-9eb8-eef9779be136/page/T7j0C)
https://lookerstudio.google.com/u/0/reporting/6bf90675-163a-4c84-9eb8-eef9779be136/page/T7j0C)
https://wildfirerisk.org/reduce-risk/funding/
https://wildfirerisk.org/reduce-risk/funding/
https://www.coloradowater.org/funding-opportunities


 4| Action Plan 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 71 

The Ouray County CWPP is a valuable resource that provides the foundation for understanding 
wildfire risks and hazards and presents attainable actions designed to reduce potential losses 
from wildfire. This CWPP must be continually monitored and updated as conditions and 
community values change. It is recommended that Ouray County Emergency Management lead 
any updates with assistance from the CWPP Stakeholder Group. The CWPP should undergo a 
complete update every five to ten years. The update ensures that a wildfire risk analysis is as up-
to-date as possible. It also allows for updating community values and wildfire risk reduction 
projects based on changing priorities and landscapes. More minor updates to the plan may be 
incorporated more frequently, especially in the event of a large wildfire in the county. 



Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 1 

 

 Appendix A 

Public Survey Summary 
 

 
The following qualitatively summarizes responses to the Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection 
Plan (CWPP) public survey. The survey was available from November 14th, 2024, to November 30th, 
2024. The public survey received 266 responses during this time and was made available online and 
in physical form at the county courthouse and Land Use Office. A postcard was mailed to all residents 
and businesses in Ouray County. The following is an analysis of responses collected through the online 
survey and handwritten responses collected during the comment period. Not all questions were 
required, and the response rate varied from 239 responses to 266 responses for each question. 
 

Rank the level of concern that wildfire will impact you or the values that 
you care about. 
 
Most respondents ranked the impact of wildfires on their values as high or the highest concern. 77% of 
respondents indicated that they have moderate or the highest concern that a wildfire would impact their 
values. 
 

 
 

  

Highest Concern
48%

Moderate 
Concern

29%

Some Concern
17%

Lowest Concern
3%

Little Concern
3%



Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

2 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

In your opinion, how likely is it that a major wildfire will occur in Ouray 
County in the next 5 years? 
 
Seventy percent of respondents indicated that they thought a major wildfire would likely or very likely 
occur in Ouray County within the next five years. 
 

 
 
  

Very Unlikely
2%

Unlikely
6%

Neither likely nor 
unlikely

22%

Likely
43%

Very Likely
27%



 Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 3 

What would you like to see the county, communities, and fire 
authorities do in the future to protect people, resources, and 
infrastructure from future hazard events? (Circle each option 1-5, 1 = 
Not Important, 5 = Very Important) 
 
Residents identified that they would like to see most of the actions taken. “Increase local fire funds 
to increase fire response capabilities” received the highest average score of 3.48 out of 5. “Provide 
financial assistance for private vegetation and fuels mitigation/removal” received the lowest 
average score of 2.98 out of 5. 

 

Action 
Weighted Average 

Importance 

Expand early warning systems/emergency notification 3.12 

Landslide and rockfall mitigation 3.05 

Stormwater management – bank stabilization, drainage improvements, 
culverts 

3.21 

Backup generators at key facilities 3.17 

Assist with home wildfire risk assessments 3.24 

Increase public education on hazards, risks, and household mitigation  3.14 

Remove hazardous fuels from public lands and roadways 3.33 

Provide financial assistance for private vegetation and fuels 
mitigation/removal 

2.98 

Increase local fire funds to increase fire response capabilities 3.48 

26

42

29

30

30

32

29

32

23

40

56

44

59

50

48

47

63

72

60

81

71

75

71

83

80

76

71

59

40

55

48

57

50

59

51

50

81

47

67

54

58

53

51

44

50

0 50 100 150 200 250

Increase local fire funds to increase fire
response capabilities

Provide financial assistance for private
vegetation and fuels mitigation/removal

Remove hazardous fuels from public lands
and roadways

Increase public education on hazards, risks,
and household mitigation

Assist with home wildfire risk assessments

Backup generators at key facilities

Stormwater management – bank 
stabilization, drainage improvements, …

Landslide and rockfall mitigation

Expand early warning systems / emergency
notification

1 (Not Important) 2 3 4 5 (Very Important)



Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

4 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Please indicate how important it is to protect the following from hazard 
events (Circle 1-5, 1 = Not Important, 5 = Very Important) 
 
The highest-ranked value was Human Life, followed closely by Water Quality. The following table shows 
the values ranked by weighted average importance.  
 

Values 
Weighted Average 

Importance 

1) Human Life 4.56 

2) Water Quality 4.42 

3) Infrastructure (communication, power, roadways, water) 4.23 

4) Forest Health 3.99 

5) Emergency Response & Government Services 3.83 

6) Wildlife 3.70 

7) Air Quality 3.52 

8) Buildings 3.32 

9) Historical Sites 3.32 

10) Cultural Areas          3.06 

11) Livestock 3.00 

12) Recreation 2.85 

 

What measures have you taken to protect your home or property from 
wildfire? (Select all that apply) 
 
Only 13% of the respondents reported not taking any measures to protect their homes. Respondents 
who selected “other” reported engaging in various activities to protect their property, including 
purchasing equipment and discussing wildfire risk with neighbors. 
 

 
 

  

17

34

38

68

72

120

206

0 50 100 150 200

Other

None of the above

Installed sprinkler system

Contacted West Regional Wildfire Council
about opportunities for fire mitigation…

Installed fire resistant landscaping

Built or retrofitted structure(s) with fire
resistant materials

Cleared litter/debris/vegetation/combustible
materials from around your property



 Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 5 

What are the barriers you face when protecting your home or property 
from wildfire? (Select all that apply) 
 
Cost was the most selected barrier, with 57% of respondents identifying it, followed by Time with 43%. 
21% of respondents identified that none of the barriers were a factor. Common themes among those 
who marked “other” included being a renter and the forest near their home being too large to manage. 
 

 

What factors/information would encourage you to reduce wildfire risks 
on your property? (Circle 1-5, 1=very encouraging, 5= not encouraging 
at all) 
 
Survey participants indicated that reduced homeowner insurance rates and assistance removing 
vegetation would most effectively encourage them to reduce wildfire risks on their property. 
 

 

13

22

31

56

88

114

151

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

Local ordinances

HOA restrictions

Other

None of the above

Knowledge of what to do

Time

Cost

2.74

2.92

3.32

3.41

3.44

3.56

3.68

4.15

0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00

List of recommended contractors that could
be hired to do the work

Community events (ex. community cleanup
day)

Help doing the physical work (thinning
trees/removing debris)

Information about recommended actions

Financial assistance

Understanding the wildfire risk on my
property

Assistance in removing cut vegetation or
debris (ex. provided dumpsters or chippers)

Reduced homeowner insurance rates or 
access to homeowners’ insurance



Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

6 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Do you support the following vegetation management techniques? 
(Yes or No) 
 
Most respondents supported all vegetation management. Planned prescribed burns were the least 
supported, with 89% agreeing with the management technique. Mulching of vegetation was the most 
widely supported technique, with 97% of respondents indicating their support for it. 
 

 
 

If you selected “No” to any of the vegetation management techniques 
in the question above, please explain why. 
 
The following is a summary of comments, lightly edited for clarity. The survey received 63 comments.  
 
Mowing of grass and shrubs 
 

Respondents who marked “No” to mowing grass and shrubs indicated that mowing can destroy habitat, 
be unnatural, and feel that grass does not pose as significant a threat to wildfire. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mulching of vegetation 
 
Respondents who marked “No” to mulching vegetation felt that the vegetation was important for wildlife 
habitat and that mulch could become fuel for wildfires.  

 
 
 
 

89%

93%

92%

97%

92%

11%

7%

8%

3%

8%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Planned prescribed burns

Burning of piled vegetation in winter

Forest thinning

Mulching of vegetation

Mowing of grass and shrubs

Yes No

Related Comments 

• Mowing damages habitat and is useless for fire mitigation with the forest types we have. 

• I want my “yard” to look natural, not a manicured Kentucky Bluegrass city lawn that 
requires constant maintenance and watering and harmful chemicals. 



 Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Forest thinning 
 
Respondents who marked “No” on forest thinning discussed the lack of effectiveness, expense, and the 
impact on forest health. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Burning of piled vegetation in winter 
 
Respondents who marked “No” on the Burning of piled vegetation in winter are worried about air quality, 
issues with containing the fire, and the establishment of noxious weeds after the pile is burned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Planned prescribed burns 
 
Respondents who marked “No” on planned prescribed burns are concerned about air quality and the 
ability to control the fire. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Related Comments 

• Vegetation, grass, and shrubs are important wildfire habitat 

• The mulch becomes fuel in this climate. It is too dry for traditional mulching to be 
effective for fire mitigation here. 

Related Comments 

• Forest thinning is too massive and disruptive. 

• This will affect the long-term health of the forest and wildlife habitat. 

• I'm not sure the benefit would be worth the costs.  

Related Comments 

• Scars left by burning piles provide for noxious weed establishment. 

• Adverse effects on air quality when they could be mulched instead. 

Related Comments 

• Prescribed burns resulted in a fire beyond the scope of the plan 

• Let nature take its course. There is no need to spend money on speculative mitigation. 

• (Prescribed Burns) Harm wildlife and air quality.  



Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

8 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Demographic Information 
 

Where is your primary residence? 
 

The largest percentage of respondents came from Log Hill, at 27%, followed by Unincorporated Areas 
at 23%, the Town of Ridgway at 22%, and the City of Ouray at 20%. 
 

 
 

What is your household income? 
 
54% of households earn over $100,000 per year. 17% of households made between $75,000 and 
$100,000, and 15% of households made between $50,000 and $ 74,999—finally, 13% of households 
made between $25,000 and $49,999. 
 

 
 

  

3

3

3

10

48

53

55

64

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Colona

Park Estates

Ponderosa Village

Idlewild Estates

City of Ouray

Town of Ridgway

Other Unincorporated Areas of Ouray…

Log Hill

0

27

31

35

110

59

0 20 40 60 80 100

<$25,000

$25,000 - $49,999

$50,000 - $74,999

$75,000 - $99,999

$100,000 or more

Prefer not to say



 Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 9 

Are you of Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin? 
 
Most respondents were not of Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin. 
 

 
 

Please select your race (Select all that apply) 
 

Two individuals identified as American Indian or Alaska Native, two identified as belonging to more than 
one race; the rest identified as White/Caucasian. 
 

 
 

  

Yes
4%

No
96%

American Indian 
or Alaska Native

1%

White / Caucasian
98%

More than one
1%



Appendix A | Public Survey Summary 

10 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

What is the highest level of school completed? 
 
84% of respondents hold a bachelor’s degree or higher, and no respondents did not complete high 
school. 
 

 
 

What is your age? 
 

Most respondents fell within the age range of 65 to 84, followed by those aged 45 to 64. There were no 
respondents between 18 and 24 in the survey.  
 

 

High school 
graduate

4%
Some college or 
technical school

12%

Bachelor’s degree
40%

Graduate degree
44%

25-34 years
5%

35-44 years
13%

45-64 years
37%

65-84 years
44%

85 or older
1%



Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 1 

 

Appendix B 

Fuel Treatment History 
 

 

 
 

The following is a summary of the historical fuel treatment data in Ouray County. Between 2000 and 
2023, 48,860 acres were treated.1 This data includes projects that had portions occur outside the county. 
Below, you will find graphs, tables, and a map to help describe the fuel treatment history in Ouray 
County.  
 

Breakdown of Acres Treated by Agency 
From 2000 to 2023, the Bureau of Land Management treated the largest amount of land at 32,693 
acres, followed by the U.S. Forest Service with 11,680 acres, the Colorado State Forest Service with 
3,050 acres, the West Region Wildfire Council (WRWC) 1,174 acres, and finally, Colorado Parks and 
Wildlife contributed 263 acres. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agency Acres 

BLM 32,693 

CPW 263 

CSFS 3,050 

USFS 11,680 

WRWC 1,174 

 

 
 
 
  

 
1 CSFS. 2000-2023. “Colorado Forest Tracker.” 
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/7eac80a824a64d77864e3e0948ff4f1e/page/Landing-Page/. 

BLM
67%

CPW
1%

CSFS
6%

USFS
24%

WRWC
2%

https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/7eac80a824a64d77864e3e0948ff4f1e/page/Landing-Page/


Appendix B | Fuel Treatment History 

2 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Breakdown of Types of Treatment Performed 
From 2000 to 2023, canopy treatments were used on 36,321 acres, followed by prescribed fire (Rx Fire) 
at 8,934 acres, surface treatments were used on 3,096 acres, and finally, 509 acres were reforested. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agency Acres 

Canopy 36,321 

Reforest 509 

Rx Fire 8,934 

Surface 3,096 

 
 
 
 
Canopy Treatment – Managing the upper 
layer of trees to improve forest health through 
thinning trees, reducing canopy bulk density, 
and increasing canopy base height. 
 

Reforesting – Planting trees after a clear-cut or 
high-intensity wildfire to reintroduce native 
species to the landscape. 

  
Source: USFS Source: USFS 

 

  

Canopy
74%

Reforest
1%

Rx Fire
18%

Surface
7%



 Appendix B | Fuel Treatment History 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 3 

Rx Fire – Prescribed fire is a planned and 
controlled application of fire to land to manage 
forest health. 

Surface Treatments – This strategy targets dry 
grasses, pine needles, fallen branches, and small 
shrubs to reduce wildfire risks. 
 

  
 Source: USFS Source: USDA 

 

Acres Treated Each Year Since 2000 
The amount of land treated per year has increased since 2000, with a notable increase in 2016 
when 20,728 acres were treated. The fewest acres were treated in 2000 when no projects were 
completed in the county. 
 

 
 

0 3
3
6

8
3
5

1
,2

4
1

1
,7

2
5

8
8
1

4
0
9

4
5
0

8
4
8

7
2
6

1
,5

3
0

1
,0

6
3

2
,1

3
1

2
8
7

1
,0

2
5

2
,5

6
2

2
0
,7

2
8

2
,2

8
5

1
,7

7
0

2
,7

8
8

1
,2

7
3

5
9
0

1
,4

2
1

1
,9

5
4

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000



Appendix B | Fuel Treatment History 

4 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

Figure 1: Fuel Treatment History in Ouray County 

 
 

 



 Appendix B | Fuel Treatment History 

Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 5 

Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District Actions Completed 
Since the 2012 CWPP, Log Hill Mesa Fire Protection District (LHMFPD) has completed many fuel 
treatment and wildfire mitigation actions. The following is a summary of projects completed by year. 
 
 2011 

• Began work on LHMFPD CWPP and finished the first draft, which would be completed in 2012.   

• Completed over 600 structure surveys. 

• Completed renovation project on Station 2 (Old Building) to provide fire-resistant roof and siding. 

• Refurbished Brush 31 and ATV 31 to provide better pump capacity and water storage. 

• Completed Dwarf Mistletoe removal project at Station 2. 
 
2012 

• Completed LHVFD CWPP and Initial Attack Plans. CWPP received the Firewise Community 
Protection Award from the National Fire Protection Agency. The CWPP has fostered an interest 
in mitigating around homes in the district. 

• Worked with the community to form a Firewise Committee to encourage preparation for 
significant incidents.   

• Received Firewise Community Designation for LHMFPD to become the 3rd Firewise 
Community on Colorado’s western slope.  

• Held an Emergency Preparedness Open House with Second Chance Humane Society 
representatives, Ouray County EMS, Ouray County Emergency Management, West Region 
Wildfire Council, and Log Hill Mesa First Responders. 

• Completed initial attack plans with maps showing fire spread, fire intensity, individual home 
parcels, and fire hydrants. 

 
2013 

• Worked with the community Firewise committee to encourage preparation for a significant 
incident. This renewed the Firewise Community Designation for Log Hill Mesa. They also 
received the Firewise Project Achievement Award for an Evacuation Exercise. 

• Completed a wildfire mitigation project adjacent to Station 2 in coordination with Parks and Rec 
District, WRWC, and CSFS. Mitigated 17 acres, providing a shaded fuel break protecting Station 
2, Dallas Creek Water, and roadside thinning protecting the Ponderosa Drive evacuation route. 

• Purchased and fielded a new brush truck skid unit for Brush 31. 
 
2014 

• Purchased Brush 32 Foam Unit Upgrade.   

• Increased emphasis on higher wildland fire certification. Two personnel are working on the 
Engine Boss Task Book, and three are working on the Crew Boss Task Book.  

• Mitigated all green space in Fisher Canyon North. This led to their status as a Firewise 
Community. 

 
2015 

• Worked with the community Firewise committee to encourage preparation for a significant 
incident. Renewed Firewise Community designation for Log Hill Mesa. Fisher Canyon South is 
also designated Firewise Community. 

• Log Hill Fire hosted a Wildfire Mitigation Workshop presented by WRWC, BLM, CSFS, and 
Sheriff’s office and attended by approximately 75 residents. 

 
  



Appendix B | Fuel Treatment History 

6 Ouray County Community Wildfire Protection Plan | 2025 

2016 

• Hosted the Colorado Association of Realtors Firewise Kick-off open house attended by 
approximately 75 residents, which provided information on wildfire mitigation to residents. 

• Assistant Chief Austin received national recognition, winning the Fire Adapted Communities Fire 
Service Leadership Award. 

• Completed a Waterview Subdivision project that treated 17 acres and protected fire approaching 
the state park. 

 
2017 

• Completed re-evaluation of all structures over 700) in the district and provided mitigation 
recommendations. WRWC is developing webpages for all structures. 

 
2018 

• Hosted a Wildfire Preparedness Day meeting to educate residents about wildfire risks and 
mitigation opportunities. Over 70 residents attended. 

• Completed the first wildland fire assignment since 2004 by sending Tender 32 to the Bull Draw 
Fire on short notice. This 2.5-day assignment netted the department over $3,900 in income. 

• Instituted the district’s delegation of authority process, providing incident commanders with 
proper funding for extended attack incidents. 

 
2019 

• Hosted a video showing of The Era of Megafires with the Ouray County Planning Commission 
to educate residents about wildfire risks and mitigation opportunities. This event had the largest 
attendance in Ouray County. 

• Completed first prescribed burn assignment by sending Tender 31 to the WIMP 5 RX. 1-day 
assignment, which netted the department over $1,700 in income. 

• Completed wildfire mitigation at Station 1 through a training program with DFPC for Faller 
candidates. They used the WRWC Chipping Program to dispose of slash. Contracted for 
removal of 11 diseased or dead ponderosa pines at Station 2. 

 
2022 

• Completed a Yucca Drive project, which treated 93 acres to protect the County Road 1 
evacuation route. 
 

2023 

• Divide Ranch completed the construction of an auxiliary water line from Dallas Creek to pump 
winter water rights up to Mesa and store it in one old reservoir and one new reservoir. Water is 
available for drafting or dipping for fire attacks. 

• Dallas Creek Water Company and Tri-County Water completed an emergency system 
interconnection that can supply water in an emergency. 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 



From: Hansa Devi (IFOPE) 
Sent: Thursday, May 1, 2025 3:24 PM 
To: Pam Kraft 
Cc: Preston Neill 
Subject: The International Flag of Planet Earth - information for May 14 meeting 

Dear Pam, 

Please pass on this info to the Town Council for the May 14 meeting. 

The International Flag of Planet Earth is a global initiative with its headquarters in Ridgway, 
CO. The Executive Director of the nonprofit organization, Hansa Devi, has been a resident 
since 2009. She would like to request the Earth Flag being flown in Ridgway Town Park, 
alongside the American flag and the Colorado State flag. If the council would approve of it, 
it would be wonderful to be able to put up a plaque (same as the Ridgway history metal 
plaques that are found around town) to educate visitors about the flag initiative. The reason 
this is of significance is because it would contribute to putting Ridgway on the map in a 
great way, just like the Grammys is a world known phenomenon based in Ridgway.  

The flag itself is celebrating its 10-year anniversary this year. Thus far, it has been utilized by 
millions around the world and been covered by global press since its inception in 
2015. This Earth Flag has been planted at Antarctica, mentioned at the European 
Parliament, seen on refugee boats, marched behind by Jane Goodall, presented by 
professional athletes, used by MIT and other schools, towns and festivals, featured in 
award winning video games, inked as tattoos, etched into in nano-technology at Georgia 
Tech, made into contemporary art, etc. The list goes on. The organization has a lot in the 
works, including speaking at TEDx in Austria in June 2025, as per invitation.  

As a town, Ridgway's slogan is "Think Outside". This goes to show that we care about nature 
and our beautiful planet - which is what this flag represents. It is a flag created with the 
intention to give the planet representation, and to remind citizens of Earth that we need to 
take care of our planet and each other. This ethos feels very aligned with what Ridgway 
stands for.  

As a proud Ridgway local, Hansa would like to get permission to fly this flag in our beautiful 
mountain town! 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

HERE is our website for more information. 

 

https://www.flagofplanetearth.com/


Attached is a draft article that will be published by the Flag Institute in the United Kingdom 
this summer. It's a great short write up that gives you an overview of who we are and what 
we do - and why this work is important at this very moment in time. 

HERE is a 15 min YouTube feature about the flag and our work - featuring Oskar Pernefeldt 
(designer of the flag, president of the nonprofit, and Hansa's brother). The short version of 
this video has over 800K views + 53K likes + thousands of comments on TikTok - proving 
that the time is ripe to fly this flag and share its message! 

Disclaimer: The International Flag of Planet Earth and its organization are operating without 
political affiliation or religious belief. We stand completely non-partisan to any such 
affiliations. 

If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to reach out! 

Sincerely, 

Hansa 

- 

Hansa Devi 

Executive Director 

The International Flag of Planet Earth Org. 

www.flagofplanetearth.com 
My LinkedIn 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1K7w02eavqk&t=7s
https://www.flagofplanetearth.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/hansa-devi/


The International Flag of Planet Earth:  
A Symbol of our Common Ground 
What started as a graduation project has become a global initiative providing optimism 
and hope around the world. The International Flag of Planet Earth is a visionary emblem 
designed to represent all of humanity and our shared responsibility for Earth. It stands 
for solidarity and the common pursuit of a sustainable future—taking care of our planet 
and each other.  

The Evolution of the Flag 

In 2015, as a young graduating student from Beckmans College of Design in Stockholm, 
Sweden, Oskar Pernefeldt was about to step out into the world as a sought after Art 
Director—but not without having first given Planet Earth its own flag. 

Within 48 hours of his project launch—The International Flag of Planet Earth (IFOPE) had 
hundreds of thousands website visits from all over the world (before the boom of social media). 
This number has turned into millions by now. Little did he know that this flag would draw 
attention from all major news channels and quickly become a global news sensation. He did not 
imagine back then that 10 years later he would be running a nonprofit organization stewarding 
this flag, alongside several very dedicated individuals. Together they serve as the awareness 
agency of the flag.  

Oskar has always emphasized the importance of visual communication as a tool for social 
impact. He also holds a deep fascination for flags as powerful symbols—uniting people under a 
common identity and purpose; a sense of belonging. As a graduating student, Oskar wanted to 
provide a unifying symbol that transcends borders and ideologies, one that reminds us of our 
home—Planet Earth. This powerful sentiment is now shared with millions of people that have 
organically started using the flag around the globe. 

The Design and Usage 

The blue background of the flag represents the element of water and the seven interlocking 
circles represent the interconnectedness of life on Earth.  

The flag is not created as a critique against nations or countries, but rather as an evolution of 
the way we perceive national borders and nationality—inspiring us to think collaboratively 
beyond such limitations.  

To date, we have seen The International Flag of Planet Earth planted on Antarctica, mentioned 
at the European Parliament, put on refugee boats, marched behind by Jane Goodall, planted on 
mountain tops, presented by professional athletes, used by MIT and other schools, towns and 
festivals, featured in award winning video games, inked as tattoos (this is mind boggling but 
true), etched into nano-technology at Georgia Tech, flown during protests, made into 
contemporary art—the list goes on. 



In an era where humanity faces unprecedented global challenges—climate change, geopolitical 
tensions, and the dawn of interplanetary exploration—what if we all stood behind a flag that 
symbolized not just a nation, but the entire planet?  

“The International Flag of Planet Earth serves as a crucial reminder of our interconnectedness”, 
says Oskar.  

For space exploration, the flag holds profound significance. As humans prepare for lunar 
missions and settlements on Mars, the IFOPE offers a non-partisan representation of all of 
humanity. Rather than planting a single nation’s flag on extraterrestrial soil, astronauts could 
choose to also raise a flag that signifies Earth itself—a home we all share regardless of 
nationality. On our own planet, the flag also serves as a rallying point advocating environmental 
stewardship and humanitarian cooperation.  

The Role of the Nonprofit  

Recognizing the importance of turning a powerful idea into real-world impact, The International 
Flag of Planet Earth Organization (IFOPE-O) has been working behind the scenes since 2020. 
The team works tirelessly to increase awareness, encourage adoption, and inspire action 
through education, campaigns, and partnerships.  

The Executive Director, Hansa Devi, holds the vision and makes sure that all projects and 
partnerships are aligned with the mission and the core values of both the flag and the nonprofit. 
The mission goes beyond promoting the flag—it seeks to foster a mindset of planetary 
collaboration, with its shared responsibilities and possibilities. By distributing the flag, supporting 
sustainability projects, and collaborating with international institutions, the organization ensures 
that the flag is not just a passive emblem but an active catalyst for change. 

The main focus areas of the organization are cultural integration, community adoption and 
awareness creation—with a strong emphasis on collaborations and partnerships. The team 
often refer to the journey of the Pride flag—stewarded by the Gilbert Baker Foundation—as it 
has gone from being an unofficial symbol, to over time being more and more accepted as the 
official symbol for the LGBTQ+ community. 

It is important to mention that The International Flag of Planet Earth and its organization are 
operating without political affiliation or religious belief. They are completely non-partisan to any 
such affiliations. 

A Catalyst for Change 

The success of The International Flag of Planet Earth depends on its adoption by individuals, 
communities, institutions, brands, businesses, nations, bilateral forums, etc. Symbols gain 
strength when people incorporate them into their daily lives. By flying the flag from their homes, 
wearing it on clothing, or sharing it digitally, people create a ripple effect that fosters the sense of 
solidarity and care.  

“May we be reminded—every time we see this flag—of all that it stands for”, says Hansa. 



This initiative can lead to profound change. A world where more people embrace this flag is a 
world where cooperation is prioritized over division, where sustainability is valued over 
short-term gains, and where humanity sees itself as a collective force for good. 

The International Flag of Planet Earth is more than a concept—it offers a powerful message of 
unity, responsibility, and hope.  

“Whether on Earth or beyond, it has the potential to redefine how we see ourselves: not as 
separate nations, but as one planet, one people. It is time to raise this flag—not just as a 
symbol, but as a statement of commitment to a better future for all”, says Oskar. 

 

To learn more, visit www.flagofplanetearth.com 
The flag is open source and free to use.  
Please tag #EarthFlag @flagofplanetearth 
 

http://www.flagofplanetearth.com


 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 



 

 

 

 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 

OFFICAL PROCLAMATION 
 

A Proclamation Recognizing and Raising the Flag of Planet Earth 
 

WHEREAS, the Flag of Planet Earth, now celebrating its 10th anniversary, has become a globally 

recognized symbol of our shared humanity and collective home, transcending national and political 

divides; and 
 

WHEREAS, in a time of increasing division and polarization, the need for symbols that unite 

rather than divide us has never been greater; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Flag of Planet Earth represents a fundamental truth—that we are all inhabitants 

of one planet, interconnected in our shared responsibility to care for our home and one another; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, as a town known for its spirit of inclusivity, innovation, and leadership, Ridgway 

has the unique opportunity to set a precedent for cities and towns around the world by formally 

recognizing the Flag of Planet Earth; and 
 

WHEREAS, by recognizing and raising this flag, Ridgway affirms its commitment to unity, 

sustainability, and global citizenship, encouraging other towns and cities to join in recognizing our 

collective responsibility to protect and cherish the Earth; and 
 

WHEREAS, in alignment with the town’s continued commitment to environmental stewardship 

and cooperation, this declaration serves as an invitation to communities across the world to come 

together under a shared symbol of hope and responsibility. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Ridgway Town Council, do hereby declare Ridgway as one of the 

first municipalities in the world to officially recognize and raise the Flag of Planet Earth, marking 

a new era of global unity, environmental responsibility, and shared purpose. 
 

PROCLAIMED THIS 14th day of May 2025. 
 

 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY      

 

BY:        ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________    ______________________ 

John Clark, Mayor     Pam Kraft, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #11 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 

OFFICAL PROCLAMATION 
 

 

A Proclamation Declaring May 2025 as 

Mental Health Awareness Month 
 

 

WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being; and 
 

WHEREAS, Colorado ranks 50th in prevalence of mental illness, indicating Coloradans 

experience more mental health challenges and substance use challenges than every state except 

one (Mental Health America); and 
 

WHEREAS, according to a Colorado Health Foundation poll in 2024, 3 in 5 Coloradans (59%) 

reported experiencing a mental health challenge in the past year; and 
 

WHEREAS, stigma persists in being a barrier to accessing care, with nearly 50% of Coloradans 

who needed mental health support reporting they did not seek out care due to stigma (Mental 

Health America); and  
 

WHEREAS, the most recent data on suicide death in our combined region of Delta, Montrose, 

Ouray, San Miguel, Gunnison, and Hinsdale Counties indicates 33 community members died by 

suicide in 2023 (CO Vital Statistics); and  
 

WHEREAS, organizations like Tri-County Health Network are dedicated to shining a light on 

mental health and bringing hope to those experiencing a mental health challenge through research, 

education, advocacy, and resources and urge that we: 

 

1. Recognize mental health challenges affect all members of our community. 

 

2. Normalize conversations about mental health, suicide, and substance use in open and 

understanding ways to erase stigma and remind community members they are not alone in 

anything they may be experiencing. 

 

3. Acknowledge that there is no one size fits all program or effort that will be appropriate for 

all populations or communities, and address the disparity in access to mental healthcare for 

underserved and underrepresented groups while advocating to end these disparities. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Support the efforts of social movements like We Are The Ones that build upon the innate 

ability of every individual to take meaningful action to strengthen our communities. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Ridgway Town Council, do hereby proclaim May 2025 as Mental 

Health Awareness Month in the Town of Ridgway, Colorado, and we call upon the citizens, 

government agencies, public and private institutions, businesses and schools in the Town of 

Ridgway to recommit our community to increasing awareness and understanding of mental health, 

the steps our citizens can take to protect their mental health, and the need for appropriate and 

accessible services for all people with mental health conditions. 
 

PROCLAIMED THIS 14th day of May 2025. 
 

 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY      

 

BY:        ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________    ______________________ 

John Clark, Mayor     Pam Kraft, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #12 
 



 

 

 
 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY, COLORADO 

OFFICAL PROCLAMATION 
 

A Proclamation Recognizing Public Lands Day 
 

WHEREAS, in May 2016, Colorado became the first state in the nation to establish a state holiday 

recognizing our public lands; and 
 

WHEREAS, the third Saturday in May is now recognized as Colorado Public Lands Day, a day 

to celebrate how our public lands are essential to our identity, heritage, economy and quality of 

life in the Town of Ridgway and all of Colorado; and 
 

WHEREAS, public lands make up over 50% of the land area in Ouray County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Ridgway regard the surrounding forests, lakes, rivers, 

and mountains essential to their social, economic, and physical well-being; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the heart Ouray County’s public lands lies a watershed that serves almost the entire 

southwest of the United States; and 

 

WHEREAS, recent reductions in the staff who manage public lands across Colorado will likely 

reduce their ability to properly manage the public lands and enforce the regulations that protect 

public lands from overuse, misuse, degradation and wildfire; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Ridgway Town Council is committed to protecting this quiet land of awesome 

beauty of which public lands are significant part. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Ridgway Town Council, do hereby proclaim May 17, 2025 as 

Colorado Public Lands Day and encourage the citizens of the Town of Ridgway to use, enjoy and 

actively protect the public lands of Colorado.  
 

PROCLAIMED THIS 14th day of May 2025. 
 

 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY      

 

BY:        ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________    ______________________ 

John Clark, Mayor     Pam Kraft, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 







 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #14 
 



 

 

 

REVOCABLE PERMIT 
Right-of-Way 

 
 

The Town of Ridgway, Colorado hereby grants to Tacos and Beer Montrose, LLC 
dba Tacos and Beer Ridgway ("Permittee") a revocable permit to utilize the following 
public property:  

 
Sidewalk directly abutting 618 Clinton Street, Ridgway, Colorado, in front of building (on 
its north side), facing Clinton Street from the building face to the street, which shall include 
six feet of open pedestrian passage, for the purpose of placing tables and chairs to serve 
food and beverages, including alcoholic beverages pursuant to the Beer and Wine Liquor 
License issued by the State of Colorado Department of Revenue Liquor Enforcement 
Division, subject to the conditions set forth herein as follows: 
 
1.  Permittee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Ridgway, its officers, 

employees, insurers, and self-insurance pool, from and against all liability, claims, and 
demands, on account of injury, loss, or damage, including without limitation claims 
arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or 
damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, which arise out of or are in any 
manner connected with this Permit, including the sale and consumption of alcoholic 
beverages, if such injury, loss, or damage is caused in whole or in part by, or is claimed 
to be caused in whole or in part by, the act, omission, error, professional error, mistake, 
negligence, or other fault of the Permittee, or any employee of the Permittee, or which 
arise out of any worker's compensation claim of any employee of the Permittee. The 
Permittee agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for and 
defend against, any such liability, claims or demands at the sole expense of the 
Permittee, or at the option of the Town, agrees to pay the Town or reimburse the Town 
for the defense costs incurred by the Town in connection with, any such liability, 
claims, or demands.   The Permittee also agrees to bear all other costs and expenses 
related thereto, including court costs and attorney fees, whether or not any such 
liability, claims, or demands alleged are groundless, false, or fraudulent.   

 
2.  Permittee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town from any claim, action, 

liability, loss, damage or suit arising from or out of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(the “ADA”) based on any encroachment into the Town of Ridgway Right of Way, or 
access issues or the lack of ADA compliant ramps or other improvements at the 
location of the property identified for use under this permit and from any future litigation 
or claims resulting from the same.  

3.  Permittee hereby agrees to waive any claim against the Town, its officers or 
employees for damage to their persons or property arising out of this Permit, the 
exercise of rights granted under this Permit, or the use of the public property granted 
herein by the Town. 

 



 

 

4.  Permittee shall maintain and use the public property at all times in conformity with 
Town ordinances, regulations and other applicable law, keep it in a safe and clean 
condition and allow no nuisance to be created by virtue of the Permit, and not allow 
any traffic or safety hazard to exist.  Permittee shall not construct any buildings or 
improvements upon the public property except as authorized by this permit. 

 
5.  To the extent the encroachments are reduced, removed or discontinued, the extent of 

this permit shall be deemed reduced.  Permittee shall not restore a reduced 
encroachment or expand the existing encroachment(s) in any way. 

 
6.  The following conditions shall also apply: 
 

The Permittee is responsible for placement, maintenance, and repair of tables and 
chairs situated within the Town’s right of way; and any damage or harm to other Town 
infrastructure associated with the placement, maintenance, and repair of the 
encroachment. 

 
Any changes in the plan shall be submitted to the Town for review and approval prior 
to commencement of the plan.  No further encroachment or expansion of the 
encroachment into the right of way is permitted without prior approval of the Town. 
 
A minimum of six feet of open pedestrian passage that is contiguous to adjoining rights 
of way shall be available to the public at all times. 

 
7.  The Permittee will be using Town power:   Yes  X  No 
 
8.  Insurance required:     X Yes    No 
 
9.  Type and amount of coverage: General liability: $1,000,000 each occurrence; liquor 

liability with the Town, its officers and employees as Additional Insured; General 
Aggregate: $2,000,000 per insured club or insured individual; Damage to Premises 
$100,000; Workers Compensation: $150,000 for any one person, $600,000 for any 
one accident, and public property damage insurance with a minimum limit of $100,000 
for any one accident (see RMC), or “to cover obligations imposed by applicable laws 
for any employee engaged in the performance of work for Permittee”.  Permittee must 
file with the Town a certificate signed by a qualified agent of an insurance company 
evidencing the existence of valid and effective policies required and naming the Town 
and its officers and employees as an additional insured at least to the limits required, 
and submit a copy of an endorsement placed on each policy and requiring ten days 
notice by mail to the Town before the insurer may cancel the policy for any reason.  
 

10. The Permittee shall be responsible to reimburse the Town for all out of pocket costs 
incurred by the Town in the issuance, administration and enforcement of this permit, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees. Permittee shall reimburse the Town for any 
damage caused to Town property as a result of this permit and Permittee’s activities 
hereunder. If such amounts are not paid when billed by the Town, the Town may 



 

 

collect such amounts as an assessment against Permittee’s abutting property or other 
property to wit: 

 
Tacos and Beer LLC, including successors and assigns  
 
and certify it to the County Treasurer to be collected similarly as taxes, or collect it in 
any other lawful manner. 

 
11. This permit may be revoked all or in part by the Town following reasonable notice and 

hearing if it finds the Permittee is in material violation of the terms hereof, and the 
encroachments shall thereafter be removed at Permittee’s expense. 

 
 

The undersigned hereby accepts this Permit and all conditions above, this    
__________ day of _________________, 2025. 

 
 
 
12. Total Fees are as follows: 

 
 Permit Fee:  $50.00 

  

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS RELATED TO  
SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOL 

 

 
1. Permittee shall meet and comply with all applicable liquor licensing requirements. 
 
2. Permittee shall provide detailed description of right of way area to be used for sale and 

consumption of alcohol, which area shall be subject to review and approval by the Town.  
Any use of sidewalks upon rights of way private sale and consumption of alcohol shall 
allow for minimum unobstructed pedestrian passage of six feet in width.  Any 
improvements upon the right of way shall be subject to prior review and approval of the 
Town.   

 
3. The area of right of way area to be used for sale and consumption of alcohol shall not 

extend beyond the adjoining property lines of the premises subject to the Permittee’s liquor 
license.  The liquor license must include a description of the right of way within the defined 
premises in accordance with CRS § 12-47-301. 
 

4. Permittee shall take all necessary measures to ensure that the permitted use of right of 
way for sale and consumption of alcohol does not create any nuisance or disturbance to 
neighboring and nearby properties. 
 



 

 

 
 

5. The following conditions related to sale and consumption of alcohol shall apply to 
Permittee: 
  
A detailed description of use of Town right-of-way to be approved by Town Staff before 
permit will be issued.  

 
 
 
 
TOWN OF RIDGWAY PERMITTEE: Tacos and Beer  

Montrose LLC 
 
 
By                                               ___          By                                                            _________ 
     John Clark, Mayor     Adauto M. Jimenez, Member 

     
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #15 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   May 9, 2025 
Agenda Topic: Annual presentation from the Ridgway Youth Advisory Council 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
SUMMARY: 
The 2024-2025 Youth Advisory Council (YAC) met a total of 7 times during their term. Members include: 

• Keira DeLuccio 

• Lauren Mahlin 

• Patrick Megahee 

• Sophia Scranton 
 
Highlights of this year’s YAC program include: 

• Lauren Mahlin appointed mayor; Keira DeLuccio appointed mayor pro-tem 

• Local Government Basics Presentation 

• Presentation on Ridgway’s Dark Sky Community designation from DarkSky International 

• Presentation regarding Communities that Care (CTC) and Help Us Break Boredom (H.U.B.B.) 

• Discussion about Town projects in the FY2025 Budget 

• Discussions about key projects, activities and community issues.  

• Presentation regarding the Town of Ridgway Water System and tour of the Water Treatment 
Plant 

• YAC Community Pickleball Tournament Capstone Project  
 
YAC members will attend Wednesday’s Town Council meeting to deliver their end-of-year presentation. 
They are expected to provide their key takeaways from their time on the YAC.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #16 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   May 9, 2025 
Agenda Topic: Notice of Award for 2025 Housing Needs Assessment 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

SUMMARY: 
In March, the Town issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) seeking proposals from qualified, professional 
consultants to conduct a Housing Needs Assessment (HNA) for the Town of Ridgway and Ouray County. The 
selected consultant is expected to perform HNA services to assist the Town of Ridgway and Ouray County in 
achieving compliance with SB 24-174, through developing a strategy to assess current and future housing 
needs in the Town and County, analyzing data provided by staff, conducting market research and collecting 
additional data, developing methodologies to analyze data, conducting stakeholder engagement and 
coordinating with advisory groups, planning and coordinating with staff, and other methods. The selected 
consultant will need to consult the Housing Needs Assessment Guide for Colorado Communities that was 
issued in December 2024 to provide guidance on how to conduct a HNA, with a focus on state HNA 
requirements established by Senate Bill 24-174. The result is expected to be a robust regional Housing Needs 
Assessment that addresses the unique needs of the two jurisdictions.  
 
Bids were due by 4:00 p.m. on April 18th. The Town received the following four proposals: 

• Community Planning Strategies, LLC $116,820 

• Points Consulting, LLC   $48,840 

• Matrix Design Group, Inc.  $49,795 

• SCJ Alliance    $158,941 
 
An evaluation committee was assembled and included representatives of the Town of Ridgway and Ouray 
County. The committee reviewed the proposals carefully against the review criteria listed in the RFP and 
elected to interview the teams from Points Consulting, LLC and Matrix Design Group, Inc. Based on the 
interviews, the quality of the proposals, the selection criteria outlined in the RFP, and the results of a 
reference checking process, the evaluation committee is recommending that the Town enter into a 
Professional Services Agreement with Points Consulting, LLC for the project. This company is based out of 
Moscow, ID, and was able to showcase some impressive examples of previous work that fall in line with what 
the Town of Ridgway and Ouray County are looking for. Town staff and the evaluation committee feel that 
they are a good fit to complete this important community project.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
The Town’s Procurement Manual states that contracts for the purchase of supplies, goods, equipment and 
services in excess of $25,000 shall be approved by Council. Additionally, and as stated in the Procurement 
Manual, “Awards shall generally be made to the bidder whose bid best meets the requirements and criteria 
set forth in the RFB.” An award should be made to the best qualified, responsible and responsive bidder 
whose evaluation by the Town indicates that the award will be in the best interests of the overall project.  
 
It’s worth noting that while the Town and County are partners on this project, the Professional Services 
Agreement will be between the awarded consultant and the Town of Ridgway. This project was budgeted for 
in the FY2025 Budget at a total amount of $25,000. Ouray County is expected to contribute an equal share 



 

 

for this project. Also, the Town has applied for a grant through the Department of Local Affairs’ Housing 
Planning Grant Program to support this project.  
 
PROPOSED MOTION: 
“I move to authorize staff to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with Points Consulting, LLC to 
develop a Housing Needs Assessment.” 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #17 
 



 

 

To:    Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council 
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager 
Date:   May 9, 2025 
Agenda Topic: Consideration of promulgating Voluntary Water Restrictions pursuant to the 

Town’s Water and Conservation Management Plan  
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY: 
In 2018, the Council approved Resolution No. 18-06 (attached), ratifying the Town of Ridgway Water 
Conservation and Management Plan. At that time, Council expressed a desire to conserve water in times of 
need to ensure effective and safe delivery of water to the Ridgway community during all times, including in 
times of restricted or limited water supply and drought.  
 
According to the U.S. Drought Portal, accessible at www.drought.gov, areas in southwestern Colorado, 
including Ouray County, are currently experiencing either “Moderate” or “Severe” drought conditions. Given 
that we are currently in those drought and dryness categories and coupled with a dwindled water supply 
brought on with the issues at the Beaver Creek Diversion, staff recommends that Council promulgate, by 
motion and vote, Stage I Voluntary Water Restrictions for the Town of Ridgway. If the restrictions are put 
into effect, staff will utilize the Town’s various communication channels to promote “voluntary water 
restrictions” and continue encouraging residents to use water wisely this summer as every drop will count 
toward a healthy and sustainable water supply.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
“I move to promulgate Stage I Voluntary Water Restrictions for the Town of Ridgway.” 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Resolution No. 18-06 

http://www.drought.gov/
https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/beaver-creek-diversion-restoration-project


Resolution No. 18-06 
 

Resolution of the Town Council of Ridgway, Colorado  
Ratifying the Town of Ridgway Water Conservation and Management Plan 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the water supply for the Town of Ridgway is a precious, valuable and critical 
resource for the Ridgway community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Ridgway, State of Colorado and the United States have seen periods of 
drought that significantly impact the local water supply, threatening the health, safety and welfare of 
our communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to be proactive in communicating with the Ridgway 

community and water users of town-supplied water regarding the water conservation efforts that will 
be employed and the timing of such water restrictions; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to conserve water in times of need to insure effective and 

safe delivery of water to the Ridgway community during all times, including in times of restricted or 
limited water supply and drought. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF RIDGWAY, 
COLORADO the Ridgway Water Conservation and Management Plan as defined herein is ratified.   
 
 



Water Conservation and Management Plan 
 

Stage  Trigger Condition  Actions  

Stage I  Voluntary Restrictions:  

Statewide Drought Status 

  (Begins May 1) 

 Does not apply to drip systems and use of hand-

watering containers. 

 No irrigating between the hours of 9:00 am and 6:00 
pm, or when windy, in order to minimize evaporation, 
and anytime on Mondays. 

 Properties located on the SOUTH side of Hwy 62 & 
Hunter Parkway – irrigate only on Tuesdays, 
Thursdays and Saturdays. 

 Properties located on the NORTH side of Hwy 62 & 
Hunter Parkway – irrigate only on Wednesdays, 
Fridays and Sundays. 

 Outreach on water use and fixing leaks, limited 
gardening, etc.  

 

Stage II  Mandatory Restrictions: 

Demand exceeds system 

capacity (water from the town 

storage reservoir is the only 

source) 

 Properties located on the SOUTH side of Hwy 62 & 
Hunter Parkway – irrigate only on Tuesdays and 
Saturdays. 

 Properties located on the NORTH side of Hwy 62 & 
Hunter Parkway – irrigate only on Wednesdays and 
Sundays. 

 Town Parks irrigation limited to the same as 

properties north and south of Highway 62. 

 

  

Stage III  Demand remains above 
system capacity and tank 
levels are not sustained after 
Stage I and Stage II actions  

 Maintain all Stage II curtailments plus: 

 Water Waste Ordinance activated, including 

emergency rate structure reducing base water use 

allocation and increasing cost of water (may require 

more frequent meter readings – 2x month – for use 

and leak detection). 

 Largest outdoor water users significantly curtailed. 

 Restaurants only serve water upon customer 

request. 

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Stage  Trigger Condition   Actions  

Stage IV  Demand remains above 

system capacity and tank 

levels are not sustained after 

Stage III actions  

 Maintain all Stage III curtailments plus: 

 Properties located on the SOUTH side of Hwy 62 & 
Hunter Parkway – irrigate only on Tuesdays and 
Saturdays on the 2nd and 4th weeks of the month. 

 Properties located on the NORTH side of Hwy 62 & 
Hunter Parkway – irrigate only on Wednesdays and 
Sundays on the 1st and 3rd weeks of the month 

 Town Parks irrigation limited to the same as all 

properties north and south of Highway 62. 

  

Stage V  Demand remains above 

system capacity and tank 

levels are not sustained after 

Stage IV actions  

 Maintain all Stage IV curtailments plus: 
o No outdoor irrigation.  
o No car washing, pond, or pool filling.  

o No sidewalk washing.  

o No use of potable water in water features (e.g., 

fountains).  

Stage VI  Demand remains above 

system capacity and tank 

levels are not sustained after 

Stage V actions  

 Maintain all Stage V curtailments plus:  

o Allow no new connections to system until fall or 

relief from drought.  

o Contact largest commercial/industrial customers and 

meet to develop a plan to reduce indoor 

consumption by 30%. 

 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Enforcement 
 
Enforcement of this Water Conservation and Management Plan is per the Ridgway Municipal Code 
(RMC) and other enforcement provisions for the Town of Ridgway, including but not limited to RMC 
Section 2-4: Administrative Enforcement of the Ridgway Municipal Code: 
 
Under the existing Code Section for Administrative Enforcement, the general process, in part, is as 
follows, and is only provided here to provide notice to the Ridgway Community:  

First Violation – Optional Verbal or written notice, or written Notice of Violation 
Second Violation – written Notice of Violation 
Third Violation – Administrative Citation pursuant to RMC 2-4-13 

 
RMC 2-4-13: 

 (B)  If the responsible party fails to correct the violation cited, commits the same violations again, or 
fails to correct a violation as specified in accordance with an administrative enforcement order 
of the AHO, subsequent administrative citations may be issued for violations of the same code 
section.  The penalties assessed for each administrative citation issued for violations of the same 
code section or sections shall not exceed the following amounts regardless of the number of 
violations per citation: 



 (1)  First administrative citation: one hundred and fifty dollar ($150.00).  

 (2)  Second administrative citation: five hundred dollars ($500.00). 

 (3)  Third and each subsequent administrative citation: nine hundred and ninety-nine 
dollars  ($999.00). 

        (C)  Payment of the penalty shall not excuse the failure to correct the violations nor shall it bar 
further enforcement action by the Town. 

 
In addition, pursuant to RMC 9-1-3: Limitations on the Use of the Water and Sewer System, the 
following may be pursued: 
 
RMC 9-1-3, in part: 
 
(B) The Mayor may promulgate emergency regulations restricting the use of Town water for irrigation 
or other uses subject to confirmation or amendment by the Town Council. 
 
(C) The Town Council may declare by resolution a moratorium on taps or line extensions for the entire 
water or sewer systems or any part of them at any time due to limitations on system capacity or 
other circumstances which require such action. 
 
(D) The Town shall have the right to temporarily interrupt service without notice for the purpose of 
making repairs, taps, extensions or for other reasons as necessary for the proper operation and 
maintenance of the water and sewer systems. If practical, reasonable notice shall be given to the 
customer. 
 
(E) No customer located outside of the corporate limits of the Town may significantly increase the 
amount or degree of his use of Town water or sewer service beyond the extent of his use at the 
effective date of this Section. 
 
(F) The Town Council may set regulations governing the use of water for irrigation and sprinkling by 
resolution. 
 
Other Ridgway Municipal Code provisions may apply. 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 11th day of April 2018. 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 

TOWN OF RIDGWAY 
 
 
      
John Clark, 
Mayor 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
     
Pam Kraft, MMC,  
Town Clerk 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #18 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #19 
 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #20 
 



 

1 
 

May 13, 2025 
 
 
Town of Ridgway 
Attention: Ridgway Town Council 
201 N. Railroad Street 
Ridgway, CO 81432 
 
 
RE: Ridgway Planning Commission Appointment 
 
 
Members of Council: 
 
I am formally appointing Russ Meyer to the Planning Commission to fill Michelle 
Montague’s term, now that she’s an ex-officio member of the Planning Commission. Russ’ 
term will expire on November 1, 2029.  
 
Thank you for your time and attention to this matter.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
John I. Clark 
Mayor 
Town of Ridgway 

 



 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM #21 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

To:   Honorable Mayor Clark and Ridgway Town Council   
From:   Preston Neill, Town Manager  
Date:   May 12, 2025 

RE:  Town Manager’s Report 
 

INTRODUCTION 
This monthly report serves as an update to the Town Council and community members on key 
projects, activities, and community issues. 
 
RIDGWAY PARKS SMART IRRIGATION CONTROLLERS 
From Steven Schroeder, Public Works Maintenance Operator II: 
 
Public Works is currently halfway finished with an overhaul to the parks irrigation systems and 
how they are maintained. These Rain Bird smart controllers will give us on demand access to 
make adjustments on the system and to notify of any mechanical errors in our systems. This also 
allows for greater control over programming which will aid in efforts to save water. Once all boxes 
have been installed, Rain Sensors will be added to give automated adjustments to the runtime 
lengths or stopping watering entirely during weather events. The only parks omitted are 
Cottonwood, Rollans, and the section of Hartwell south of the Playground due to their current 
designs and the constraints of not having a centralized zone box. 
 
CURBSIDE BRANCH COLLECTION SERVICE 
The Town of Ridgway rolled out its curbside branch collection service starting on Wednesday, 
May 7th. From May through September, collection will be conducted by Public Works staff on the 
first Wednesday of each month. The criteria for collection remain the same as prior years and are 
as follows: 

• Branches between 1” and 4” in diameter and 8 ft. in length will be accepted. 

• No willow branches, sage brush, yard clippings, twigs, noxious weeds, vegetation with 
thorns, dirt, trash, kitchen waste or anything contained in bags will be accepted. 

• No rose bushes or anything with thorns will be accepted! 

• Branches must be placed in the front yard by the street, not the alley, before 8:00 a.m. 
on Wednesday morning. 

 
Please note that this service is intended to facilitate small routine maintenance by homeowners. 
Professional arborist work, commercial properties, HOAs, and entire tree removals are not 
eligible for branch collection. 
 
For more information on this service, please contact the Town of Ridgway at 970-626-5308 or 
pneill@town.ridgway.co.us.  

mailto:pneill@town.ridgway.co.us


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

LOVE YOUR VALLEY FESTIVAL 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RIDGWAY CONCERT SERIES 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

YOUTH ADVISORY COUNCIL COMMUNITY PICKLEBALL TOURNAMENT! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ANNUAL STREET IMPROVEMENT OPERATIONS CONTINUE THRU MAY 16TH  
The Town will continue annual street improvement 
operations through May 20th. Operations generally 
consist of adding gravel to the unpaved street 
sections that need to be built up and using a street 
grader to restore the driving surface and drainage 
attributes to the Town’s unpaved streets. The 
process will also include the application of a dust 
suppressant agent, known as magnesium chloride, to 
the unpaved streets. The remaining schedule can be 
found below and HERE.  
 
 

https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/sites/townofridgway/files/documents/2025%20Street%20Improvement%20Schedule%20Press%20Release%202025%2004%2022.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Remaining Street Improvement Schedule 
May 13   S Railroad St., Hyde St., S Mary St., N Mary St., S Laura St. & N 

Laura St. 
May 14   Clinton St., S Cora St. & N Cora St. 
May 15   Charles St., Frederick St. & Otto St. 
May 16   Magnesium Chloride application on streets 

 
BEAVER CREEK DIVERSION RESTORATION PROJECT WEBPAGE 
https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/beaver-creek-diversion-restoration-project  
 
RIDGWAY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/beaver-creek-diversion-restoration-project


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – HOUSING ADMINISTRATOR 
Ouray County, City of Ouray and Town of Ridgway are seeking Requests for Proposals for an 
Affordable Housing Services Administrator. In December of 2024, Ouray County, the Town of 
Ridgway and the City of Ouray entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), to establish 
an Affordable Housing Services Administrator. The RFP is the next step in the procurement of an 
Administrator. The Administrator would be a separate entity and not an employee of Ouray 
County, City of Ouray or Town of Ridgway and shall perform its duties under the Scope of Work 
and the IGA Agreement (RFP: Exhibit A).     
 
Proposers shall submit two (2) paper copies and a flash drive of the proposal in a sealed envelope 
marked “Affordable Housing Services Administrator Proposal” to “Ouray County Administration” 
at the Ouray County Courthouse, P. O. Box C, Ouray, CO 81427 or directly to 541 4th St., Ouray, 
CO 81427. Proposals shall be received no later than 3:30 p.m. on Thursday, May 29, 2025. Please 
note that Ouray County offices are not open on Fridays. The full Requests for Proposals can be 
accessed HERE.  
 
Ouray County reserves the right to reject, for any reason whatsoever, any and all proposals, and 
to waive any informality or irregularity in a proposal. Awarding of the proposal is not based solely 
upon low quotation price, but on overall service, quality, and “best overall value” to the County 
in accordance with the Ouray County Purchasing Policy. 
 
SERVICE LINE INVENTORY 
The Town completed the final step (field verification phase) for its Service Line Inventory and 
Ridgway now has a non-lead system! The field verification phase consisted of looking at our 
unknowns and generating a Minimum Service Line Verification Required list. This list consisted 
of both public and customer sides of the service lines. We were able to identify all of the materials 
so no potholing was needed and based on CDPHE's policy, we can now make the assumption that 
we have a non-lead system. The Town has now met all requirements of the Lead and Copper Rule 
Revisions.  
 
NEW HIRES! 
The Town has hired Emme Brown, Paul Steinke, Patrick Megahee, and Kaden Matsuda-Whaling 
for the parks seasonal positions this summer. Welcome! 
 
TOWN HIRING FOR EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT POSITION 
The Town of Ridgway is seeking to fill the position of Executive Assistant. This is a full-time, 
exempt position with an excellent benefit package. For more information, or to apply, visit 
https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/resources/job-opportunities.  
 
 
 

https://ouraycountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/21743/RFP---Affordable-Housing-Services-Administrator-5-1-2025
https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/resources/job-opportunities


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

TOWN HIRING FOR PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE OPERATOR I, II, OR III POSITION 
The Town of Ridgway is seeking to fill the position of Public Works Maintenance Operator I, II, or 
III. This is a full-time, non-exempt position with an excellent benefit package. For more 
information, or to apply, visit https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/resources/job-opportunities.  
 
MENTAL HEALTH AWARENESS MONTH 
Ridgway Town Hall and the Ridgway Marshal’s Office are shining 
the light on mental health during Mental Health Awareness Month.  
 
RED MOUNTAIN ELECTRICAL RELIABILITY AND BROADBAND 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
From Alex Shelley, SMPA Communications Executive: 
 
Dear Community Stakeholders, State Officers, Representatives, and SMPA Members: 
 
This spring, we are planning the reconstruction of the Red Mountain line from the Red Mountain 
substation to the Alpine Loop turnoff (South of Ruby Walls).  This work will affect travel on 
Highway 550.   
 
The Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) has approved the following schedule of 
traffic holds and road closures:  
 

• Hwy 550 from Mile Marker 87.4 to Mile Marker 89.5: 
o May 8th to May 16th, (Excluding weekends) 
o 7 AM to 6 PM 
o intermittent, 15-minute Traffic holds 

 
o May 13th to June 20th, (Excluding weekends and the week of Memorial Day (May 

26th - May 30th)) 
o 7 AM to 9 AM and 4 PM to 6 PM. 
o 2-3 x 15-minute Traffic holds per work period 

 
o June 23rd to July 2nd, (Excluding weekends) 
o 7 AM to 6 PM 
o appx. 1 x 15-minute Traffic hold per hour 
o July 9th, 16th, 23rd, 30th (Wednesdays) 
o August 5th, 7th, 12th, 14th, 19th, 21st, 26th, 28th (Tuesdays & Thursdays) 
o 7 AM to 6 PM 
o intermittent, 15-minute Traffic holds 

 
 

https://townofridgway.colorado.gov/resources/job-opportunities


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

o September 2nd- 4th, 9th-11th, 16th-18th 
o 5-Hour FULL CLOSURES: 8 AM to 1 PM 

  

• Depending on variables like weather, and helicopter availability, not all of the above 
dates/times may be necessary.  If/when the decision is made not to work during one of 
these periods, SMPA will endeavor to notify affected community contacts. 
 

SMPA will invite collaboration with Public Information Officers and local outlets to inform the 
public of all travel availability updates. The most up-to-date information will be posted on 
www.cotrip.org, with further details on www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-
broadband-improvement-project.  
 
We appreciate your understanding as we move forward with this important project. While the 
work may cause temporary disruptions, it serves a vital long-term purpose. The existing Red 
Mountain electrical transmission line has reached the end of its service life and must be replaced 
to ensure continued reliability as a backup power source for the communities of Ouray County. 
 
The new line will incorporate modern engineering standards and technology, making it safer and 
easier to maintain in the challenging mountain terrain. Additionally, fiber optic cable is being 
installed along the new structures, which will help expand the local fiber optic network and open 
up new opportunities for broadband development in the area. 
 
If you have any questions or would like to share feedback, please don’t hesitate to reply to this 
email or call me directly at 970-209-5593. 
 
More information about the Red Mountain Electrical Reliability and Broadband Improvement 
Project is here: https://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-
improvement-project.  
 
Together, we can build a safer and more resilient system for our members and communities. 
 
BUILDING SCIENCE AND ENERGY CODE WORKSHOPS 
From Kendra Held, EcoAction Partners: 
 
EcoAction Partners is hosting two identical Building Science & Energy Code Workshops for 
builders, contractors, architects, designers, engineers, and building officials. These workshops 
aim to educate our regional building community as we plan for adoption of state energy code 
requirements by January 2026 across San Miguel, Ouray, and San Juan counties. 
 

http://www.cotrip.org/
http://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-improvement-project
http://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-improvement-project
https://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-improvement-project
https://www.smpa.com/red-mountain-electrical-reliability-and-broadband-improvement-project


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Join us for one of these full day workshops with Robby Schwarz on best practices for applying 
building science principles in design and construction to align with 
upcoming energy codes and our cold climate. 
 

• Wednesday May 14th, 9am-5pm (AhHaa LaunchPad, 
Telluride) 

• Thursday May 15th, 9am-5pm (Town Hall, Ridgway) 
 
Please RSVP using this google form (or scan the QR code at right) 
and share with your contact lists. Space is limited, so sign up ASAP!  
 
UPCOMING UNCOMPAHGRE WATERSHED PARTNERSHIP EVENTS 
From Tanya Ishikawa, UWP Executive Director: 
 
Friday, May 23: 9th Annual Fly-Fishing Film Tour and Benefit for the Uncompahgre River, 5 - 9 
p.m., Million Roadhouse, Ridgway, CO https://www.uncompahgrewatershed.org/event/2025-
benefit-for-the-uncompahgre-river-with-the-fly-fishing-film-tour/ (for shorter link, just use: 
https://www.uncompahgrewatershed.org/events/)  
 
RIGS Fly Shop and Telluride Angler have joined forces for the fourth year in a row to bring the 
2025 Fly Fishing Film Tour to Ridgway and support the Uncompahgre River! 100% of the proceeds 
raised from this event will be donated to the Uncompahgre Watershed Partnership for projects 
slated to improve river health and habitat within the Uncompahgre River Valley. Celebrate all 
things fly fishing with an array of short films from destinations around the world, all while raising 
awareness for the Uncompahgre River Watershed.  
___________________________ 
  
Saturday, June 28: 17th Annual Ridgway RiverFest, Noon to 5 p.m., Rolland Park, Ridgway, CO 
https://ridgwayriverfest.org/  
 
This annual festival offers an afternoon of family-friendly fun and education in celebration of the 
Uncompahgre River Watershed – free to festivalgoers from near and far with all-age river races, 
awards and prizes, information about local nature and outdoor recreation, live music, food, and 
beverages. It is a fundraiser for the Uncompahgre Watershed Partnership, providing awareness 
and funding for our rivers, water resources, the need for conservation and important water 
quality and riparian area monitoring and restoration activities. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdbqx_PDAipQRe1mY44Zn3RzH3g4bmennhJxTeZqNs6kljjiw/viewform
https://www.uncompahgrewatershed.org/event/2025-benefit-for-the-uncompahgre-river-with-the-fly-fishing-film-tour/
https://www.uncompahgrewatershed.org/event/2025-benefit-for-the-uncompahgre-river-with-the-fly-fishing-film-tour/
https://www.uncompahgrewatershed.org/events/
https://ridgwayriverfest.org/


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

GMUG NATIONAL FORESTS TO TEMPORARILY CLOSE BLUE LAKES AREA 
From Forest Service News Release dated May 1, 2025: 
 
The Grand Mesa, Uncompahgre and Gunnison (GMUG) National Forests announce temporary 
closure of Blue Lakes area for trailhead construction and restoration efforts, beginning June 2. 
The closure is expected to remain through August 2025 and will be lifted as soon as it is safe to 
access the area. 
 
These efforts kickoff the first phase of the Blue Lakes visitor use management plan, aimed at 
improving visitor experiences and ensuring long-term sustainability of the site’s natural 
resources. 
 
“We are looking forward to putting this plan into motion,” said Dana Gardunio, district ranger for 
the Ouray District. “While we understand, having a temporary closure is an inconvenience, the 
outcome will vastly improve the parking and public health and safety issue in the area. We 
appreciate the public’s cooperation in respecting the closure.” 
 
The work includes reconstruction of the trailhead parking area and the installation of two new 
vault restrooms. These projects will use funding from the Great American Outdoors Act (GAOA). 
 
In addition to site improvements, the forest will be installing kiosks and interpretive panels, 
cataloging invasive plants, installing signage, developing outreach campaigns, installing 
temporary fences to preserve restored areas, and developing a monitoring plan for improved 
visitor use metrics. 
 
The Forest Service will also begin work to establish designated camping areas and complete 
restoration work on social trails and impacted sites, through partnerships with the National 
Forest Foundation and Southwest Conservation Legacy, a program of Conservation Legacy. 
 
The Blue Lakes Trailhead is accessed from County Road 7, approximately 12 miles southwest of 
Ridgway. The closure area includes the road starting at the Forest Service boundary at the end of 
County Road 7 and extends to the Mount Sneffels Wilderness boundary on the Blue Lakes Trail. 
Portions of the Dallas and Wilson Creek trails, adjacent to the trailhead, will also be closed.  This 
closure is necessary to ensure the safety of visitors and workers during the construction period.    
 
For more information on the Blue Lakes Visitor Use Management Plan, visit the project webpage: 
https://www.fs.usda.gov/project/gmug/?project=61979.  
 
 
 
 

https://www.fs.usda.gov/project/gmug/?project=61979


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

• Town Council Regular Meeting – May 14, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. in-person at Town Hall and 
virtually via Zoom 
 

• Love Your Valley Festival – May 17, 2025 at 1:00 p.m. in Hartwell Park 
 

• FUSE Committee Meeting – May 20, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. at the Decker Room 
 

• Planning Commission Meeting – May 21, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. at Town Hall and virtually via 
Zoom 

• Sustainability Advisory Board Meeting – June 3, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. at Town Hall and 
virtually via Zoom 

 

• Town Council Regular Meeting – June 11, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. in-person at Town Hall and 
virtually via Zoom 

 
JOKE OF THE DAY 
From Ryan Hanson, Sergeant: 
 
A virus going around is making people forget 80’s rock bands. 
 
Nobody knows The Cure. 
 
Bonus Joke from Bo James Nerlin, Town Attorney: 
 
What do you say when you lose 25% of your roof? 
 
-oof 


	00 May 14 tc agenda
	01 Consent Agenda
	02 April 9 tc min
	03 Workforce Committee April 9 min
	04 April 29 special tc min
	05 Register of Demands
	06 Agenda Item 6
	07 OC Community Wildfire Protection Plan
	00 Memo for Town CWPP Adoption
	01_Ouray County CWPP_2025
	Appendix A_Public Survey Summary
	Appendix B_Fuel Treatment History

	08 Agenda Item 7
	09 Fete de la Musique Map
	10 Rally thru Alley Map
	11 Agenda Item 8
	12 Agenda Item 9
	13 Flag of Planet Earth Request
	01 Message from Hansa Devi
	02 IFOPE - Flag Master Article 2025
	The Evolution of the Flag 
	The Design and Usage 
	A Catalyst for Change 


	14 Agenda Item 10
	15 Flag of Planet Earth Proclamation
	16 Agenda Item 11
	17 Mental Health Awareness Month Proclamation
	18 Agenda Item 12
	19 Public Lands Day Proclamation
	20 Agenda Item 13
	21 Liq License Tacos and Beer srp
	22 Agenda Item 14
	23 Revocable Alcohol on Sidewalk Tacos and Beer
	24 Agenda Item 15
	25 YAC Presentation
	26 Agenda Item 16
	27 Housing Needs Assessment Notice of Award
	28 Agenda Item 17
	29 Water Restrictions
	01 Memo
	02 18-06 Water Conservation

	30 Agenda Item 18
	31 Agenda Item 19
	32 Agenda Item 20
	33 Appointment to Ridgway Planning Commission 2025 05 13
	34 Agenda Item 21
	35 Town Manager's Report - May 12, 2025

